Rellm®

Consolidated Income Statement

BE-Z-_NE+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2024

FBHA Interest income 6 8,146,214 7,901,337
FEXH Interest expense 7 (7,528,253) (7,504,429)
EAE WA Net interest income 617,961 396,909
RIS WA Insurance revenue 8 1,320,030 1,128,783
1RB& AR SS T 2 Insurance service expenses 12, 28 (3,299,828) (1,586,402)
Fris B BRE & LRI A S AN Net income from reinsurance
contracts held 10 352,922 278,699
R B8 AR 550l 57 Insurance service result (1,626,876) (178,920)
FIE IR G 49K Net finance expenses from insurance
W25 32 AN contracts issued 9 (414,920) (1,700,443)
Fiis B BIRE A 49/ Net finance income from reinsurance
e N contracts held 9 10,268 2,932
fREE W55 32 880 Insurance finance expenses, net (404,652) (1,697,511)
H A A Other income 1 1,258,034 1,410,775
AESHRET Total operating loss (155,533) (68,747)
RELTH Operating expenses 12 (362,166) (323,822)
RITRENHEE S Operating loss before impairment (517,699) (392,569)
BB T Change in impairment allowances 14 (34,911) (19,987)
CX IR Loss before taxation (552,610) (412,556)
I Taxation 15(a) 134,570 153,054
KEETHR Loss for the year (418,040) (259,502)
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financial statements.

The notes on pages 232 to 409 are an integral part of these consolidated
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GetHWEE

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE-Z-_NE+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2024

2023
T4 7T
HK$'000
REE SR Loss for the year (418,040) (259,502)
Hitpems (Ti) Other comprehensive income/(loss):
HEWREEF X EHR Items that are or may be reclassified
E’ﬂﬁ B : subsequently to profit or loss:
ANFES T AR Debt instruments at fair value through
E’Mm Z£TH: other comprehensive income:
— ANFEZ R — change in the fair value, net 15,213 8,698
— SHKREZDEM — change in the loss allowance, net 14 147 477
TFEMLEKEBIANILE R Cash flow hedges recognised in other
K comprehensive income:
— NFEEEH — change in the fair value, net (20,022) (120,247)
FTE &R A LIRSS U A Finance income from insurance
contracts issued 9 339,509 68,493
FiisE BRI & LRSS i Finance expenses from reinsurance
contract held 9 (124,574) (60,393)
126 SE R TN Deferred taxes 15(b) (52,454) (13,759)
AEFEEMEEmKES(SH) Other comprehensive income/(I0ss)
H B F I for the year, net of tax 157,819 (116,731)
AEELHESH L Total comprehensive loss for the year (260,221) (376,233)

F232F2 409 Tk E NERE MBS IREFM —3B5 ©

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FoE-MF+=A=+—H
as at 31 December 2024

B’ ASSETS
e REHRRE Cash and short-term funds 16 52,647,182 51,821,051
R FI B KSR Interest and remittance receivables 17 3,221,379 3,370,378
PTESBITE Derivative financial instruments 18 664,618 828,542
BNRRER S A Loans with 100% guarantee
HEIRHY DI from the Government 19 82,782,698 97,362,356
TIRAA BN Loan portfolio, net:
— U ATFEEZL — fair value through profit or loss
1T Affies 20(a) 2,596,858 1,907,045
— R PEAE AR FI — amortised cost 20(b) 10,117,117 10,230,417
IEHER Investment securities:
— AAFEZEEITA — fair value through other
EfemElas comprehensive income 21(a) 3,721,821 2,509,537
— U RAFEZRHITA — fair value through profit or loss
e 21(b) 9,774 9,870
— R PEAE AR B — amortised cost 21(c) 15,105,470 14,573,985
INSCEESFR Placements with the Exchange Fund 22 49,244,684 34,070,393
TS I - = Prepayments, deposits and other assets
K E A7 7= 24 385,987 1,582,032
BREE LR Reinsurance contract assets 28 1,081,689 761,043
[&] 7E R 7= Fixed assets 25 246,899 276,160
B BE Total assets 221,826,176 219,302,809

EBRBIISERLT —T-_mEEHR 227



SAEMEMRREK Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2023
T4 7T
HK$'000
R LIABILITIES
R FILE Interest payable 26 3,342,324 3,684,415
RIfFRIRN ~ RIITFF 2 Accounts payable, accrued expenses
REMSA G and other liabilities 27 4,132,666 4,107,469
PTHEESRTE Derivative financial instruments 18 1,740,649 2,825,522
L AR IR (R Current tax liabilities 15(b) 223,782 156,851
REE & DR Insurance contract liabilities 28 24,850,887 19,288,197
BREA DR Reinsurance contract liabilities 28 195,009 87,648
B RITRSIES Debt securities issued 29 148,299,636 161,718,497
1% AEFR I A (= Deferred tax liabilities 15(b) 174,488 307,254
TR B8 Total liabilities 182,959,441 192,175,853
& EQUITY
W358 AR AR A Capital and reserves attributable
FiEg to the equity holder:
i Share capital 30 26,500,000 14,500,000
REB AT Retained profits 8,397,399 9,358,885
MBS & contingency reserve 3,560,638 3,017,192
RIS W 2514 & Insurance finance reserve 386,483 224,002
NEERES Fair value reserve 23,518 8,158
KR A Hedging reserve (1,303) 18,719
PR Total equity 38,866,735 27,126,956
AL E IR Total liabilities and equity 221,826,176 219,302,809

FERET-_E-_AFRA - BHERKRN  Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 May
F1T o 2025.

REX YUE Wai Man, Eddie s POU Hak Wan
BIFEFNTTESE Deputy Chairman and Executive Director  #i77ZE F 3 &£t Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

F2RFA9TFTETE NEREMSIREFN—E - The notes on pages 232 to 409 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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RENEETR
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-Z-_NE+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2024

& REBEHN REfEE REMSHE ATERS NAREE
Insurance
Share  Retained Contingency finance  Fair value Hedging

capital profits reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
TAT TAL TAL TATL TAL THL TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-Z-=F—f—R%% Balance asat 1 January 2023 12000000 10142109 2493470 229,661 (1,017) 138966 25,003,189
AEETH Loss for the year - (259,502) - - - - (259.502)
H £ (S5H),/a  Other comprehensive (loss)/income - - - (5,659) 9,175 (120247 (116,731
REELE(TR)/ Total comprehensive (l0ss)/income

Rag e for the year - (259502) - (5,659) 9,175 (120247) (376233
R (E30) Capital injection (Note 30) 2,500,000 - - - - - 2500000

RSB35 A2 Bk Transfer of 50% or 75% of relevant
{RF5H)50% 3% 75% premium earned from retained
ERER profits to contingency reserve - (701,073) 701,073 - - - -

mNfE R E 2R %7 Release of contingency reserve

to retained profits = 177,351 (177,351) = = = =

F-g-=£ Balance as at 31 December 2023
T-A=1-HE%R 14,500,000 9,358,885 3,017,192 224,002 8,158 18,719 27,126,956
KEESH Loss for the year - (418,040) - - - - (418,040)
Et4EE /(%) Other comprehensive income/(loss) - - - 162,481 15,360 (20,022) 157,319

AEELENE/ Total comprehensive income/(loss)
(53 EH for the year - (418,040) - 162,481 15,360 (20,022) (260,221)
AR (HE30) Capital injection (Note 30) 12,000,000 - - = = - 12000000

IR BT A B ARk Transfer of 50% o 75% of relevant
TREH)50% 5 75% premium earned from retained
EREER profits to contingency reserve - (733,164) 733,164 - - - -

BN SR EERE)EH Release of contingency reserve

to retained profits - 189,718 (189,718) - - - -
F-E-ME+=R Balance as at 31 December 2024
=t+-B4% 26,500,000 8,397,399 3,560,638 386,483 23,518 (1,303) 38,866,735
F232F 409 T P M E R A MR IRF A — 265 The notes on pages 232 to 409 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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GEMERER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-Z-_NE+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2024

2023

TAT
HK$'000

ZELSZRERE Cash flows from operating activities
AREERB ISR Loss before taxation for the year (552,610) (412,556)
FAT SIEH K 1FEE - Adjustments for:
A2 A Interest income 6 (8,146,214) (7,901,337)
FEZH Interest expense 7 7,528,253 7,504,428
A% S A Dividend income 11 (289) (265)
kBINCESFRB K Income from placements with the
Exchange Fund 11 (1,374,291) (1,267,546)
LA B 1T AR a A3 5 Net loss/(gain) on investments at fair
S (Uhes) B value through profit or loss 11 48 (238)
HENATETHITAEM4LE Netgain on disposal of investments
W IR R R R A at FvoCl 11 (400)

IRBE A FEZR D) 25 Net change in fair value of loan portfolio 11 210,636 (51,532)

718 Depreciation 12 89,748 82,158

BEKBE Change in impairment allowances 14 34,911 19,987

TRITAEANFEED Change in fair value of financial

instruments (420,384) 114,773
B W B Interest received 7,983,911 7,701,804
DR S Interest paid (7,345,111) (7,120,070)
RTEER" RN GEZHEILE  Cash flows used in operating activities
VWEERAZIERE before changes in operating assets
and liabilities (1,991,792) (1,330,394)
REVEA BB =D A/ Change in time deposits with original

TE B FE R A B maturity of more than three months (9,480,000) 3,948,172
RIUBCCFRAE 5 Change in remittance receivables 53,591 26,446
AR FRIN ~ 3RE R EM A4 Change in prepayments,

deposits and other assets 1,196,045 2,943,872
KR A S BHRENTHETS  Change in loans with 100% guarantee

from the Government 14,579,658 (7,200,121)
WREEES Change in loan portfolio (820,232) (79,732)
NASHRIT « RT3 K& Change in accounts payable,

E A s) accrued expenses and other liabilities 43,352 (8,697,735)
MR BREEHRREE Y Change in insurance contract liabilities,

AT net of reinsurance 5,564,340 3,225,962
LR ZEE Exchange differences 432,959 (364)
ZEBWS=%/(FR)z20¢ Cash generated from/(used in) operation 9,577,921 (7,163,894)

B E / (B B Taxation refunded/(paid) 16,281 (74,017)

BlESEE (FR)Z Net cash generated from/(used in)

&3 operating activities 9,594,202 (7,237,911)
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REFEDZAERE

Cash flows from investing activities

T 3E [ & & 7= Purchase of fixed assets (38,734) (39,557)
TE AN FEZITA Purchase of investment securities
HAth 2 E U EIEF IR at fair value through other
comprehensive income 21(a) (1,512,090) (1,440,325)
) SEA% M A A AR B Mk BOAIE 548 % Purchase of investment securities
at amortised cost 21(c) (6,434,043) (3,945,347)
& B [BIUE S5 4% R T 15 2030 Proceeds from sale and redemption
of investment securities 6,130,939 2,703,685
INCEEFR Placements with the Exchange Fund (13,800,000) (3,395,000)
INSCE G IR Withdrawals from the Exchange Fund = 3,449,524
B ETRRRE Dividend received from listed
investments 289 265
SRR E 2 U4 8 Net cash used in investing activities (15,653,639) (2,666,755)
BURSESN BIIL &5 B /85 Net cash outflows before financing (6,059,437) (9,904,666)
REE 2 NS RE Cash flows from financing activities
RITEFFTE RN Proceeds from bank borrowings 22,143,958 64,455,326
ERBRITER Repayments of bank borrowings (22,143,958) (64,455,326)
KATESSUE S PS5 Proceeds from issue of debt securities 29 103,114,200 98,146,625
JR[E B & 1TSS Redemption of debt securities issued 29 (117,658,640)  (69,456,323)
AN RAAREZB D Principal elements of lease payments 25(b) (39,908) (35,182)
ST R TS RN Proceeds from capital injection 30 12,000,000 2,500,000
BEES (EF), /o4 Net cash (used in)/generated from
ZI &3 financing activities (2,584,348) 31,155,120
NERERNESTAE OFLD),~ Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
3 H0 5% E cash equivalents (8,643,785) 21,250,454
FONERERNELIE Beginning cash and cash equivalents 51,128,198 29,883,316
ICENNEREEAMETME MW Effect of exchange rates on cash and
cash equivalents (8,582) (5,572)
FARYSRERY ST E Ending cash and cash equivalents 16 42,475,831 51,128,198

SE22E AT R BMTENFEM SIREKE—E S -

The notes on pages 232 to 409 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 1) 2 o
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Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited (Company) and its subsidiaries (collectively
the Group) have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ((HKFRSs) which is a collective
term and includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRS), Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASSs) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
financial instruments) carried at fair value.

The accounting policies and the methods of computation used
in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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2.

Summary of material accounting policies

2.1. Adoption of HKFRSs

@)

New and amended standards effective on 1 January
2024

The Group has adopted the following amendments
to HKFRSs which are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
(the 2020 Amendments")
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments”)
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements
and HKFRS 7

The nature and impact of the new and revised HKFRSs
that are applicable to the Group are described below:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements
that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability
arising in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure
the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the
gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains.
Since the Group has no sale and leaseback transaction
with variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate occurring from the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, the amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.
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SREMEIREME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current, including
what is meant by a right to defer settlement and that
a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting
period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement. The amendments also clarify that a liability
can be settled in its own equity instruments, and that
only if a conversion option in a convertible liability is
itself accounted for as an equity instrument would the
terms of a liability not impact its classification. The 2022
Amendments further clarify that, among covenants of
a liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those
with which an entity must comply on or before the
reporting date affect the classification of that liability
as current or non-current. Additional disclosures are
required for non-current liabilities that are subject to
the entity complying with future covenants within 12
months after the reporting period. The amendments
shall be applied retrospectively. The amendments
did not have any impact on the measurement,
recognition or presentation of any items in the Group'’s
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and
require additional disclosure of such arrangements.
The disclosure requirements in the amendments
are intended to assist users of financial statements
in understanding the effects of supplier finance
arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and
exposure to liquidity risk. As the Group does not have
supplier finance arrangements, the amendments did
not have any impact on the consolidated financial
information of the Group.
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New standards and amendments issued but not yet

effective

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these consolidated financial statements.
The Group intends to apply these revised HKFRSs, if
applicable, when they become effective.

HKFRS 18
HKFRS 19
Amendments to

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 21

Annual improvements
to HKFRS Accounting
Standards — Volume 11

Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements®

Subsidiaries without Public
Accountability: Disclosures®

Amendments to the Classification
and Measurement of Financial
Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Lack of Exchangeability’

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 and HKAS 72

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2025

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2026

3 Effective for annual/reporting periods beginning on or after 1

January 2027

0 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described

below.
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HKFRS 18 replaces HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements”. While a number of sections have
been brought forward from HKAS 1 with limited
changes, HKFRS 18 introduces new requirements for
presentation within the statement of profit or loss,
including specified totals and subtotals. Entities are
required to classify all income and expenses within
the statement of profit or loss into one of the five
categories: operating, investing, financing, income
taxes and discontinued operations, and to present
two new defined subtotals. It also requires disclosures
about management-defined performance measures in
a single note and introduces enhanced requirements
on the grouping (aggregation and disaggregation) and
the location of information in both the primary financial
statements and the notes. Some requirements
previously included in HKAS 1 are moved to HKAS
8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors”, which is renamed as HKAS 8
“Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements”. As a
consequence of the issuance of HKFRS 18, limited,
but widely applicable, amendments are made to HKAS
7 “Statement of Cash Flows”, HKAS 33 “Earnings Per
Share” and HKAS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”. In
addition, there are minor consequential amendments
to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 18 and the consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs will be effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027
with earlier application permitted. Retrospective
application is required. The Group is currently analysing
the new requirements and assessing the impact of
HKFRS 18 on the presentation and disclosure of the
Group's consolidated financial statements.
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HKFRS 19 allows eligible entities to elect to apply
reduced disclosure requirements while still applying
the recognition, measurement and presentation
requirements in other HKFRSs. To be eligible, at the end
of the reporting period, an entity must be a subsidiary
as defined in HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial
Statements”, cannot have public accountability and
must have a parent (ultimate or intermediate) that
prepares consolidated financial statements available
for public use in compliance with HKFRSs. Earlier
application is permitted. As the Group has public
accountability, it is not eligible to elect to apply HKFRS
19.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 clarify the
date on which a financial asset or financial liability
is derecognised and introduce an accounting policy
option to derecognise a financial liability that is settled
through an electronic payment system before the
settlement date if specified criteria are met. The
amendments clarify how to assess the contractual
cash flow characteristics of financial assets with
environmental, social and governance and other similar
contingent features. Moreover, the amendments
clarify the requirements for classifying financial
assets with non-recourse features and contractually
linked instruments. The amendments also include
additional disclosure requirements for investments in
equity instruments designated at FVOCI and financial
instruments with contingent features. The amendments
shall be applied retrospectively with an adjustment
to opening retained profits (or other component of
equity) at the initial application date. Prior periods are
not required to be restated and can only be restated
without the use of hindsight. Earlier application of
either all the amendments at the same time or only
the amendments related to the classification of
financial assets is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group'’s
consolidated financial statements.
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Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10
and in HKAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction
when the sale or contribution of assets constitutes
a business. For a transaction involving assets that
do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’'s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture.
The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 was removed by the HKICPA.
However, the amendments are available for adoption
now. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial
Statements.

Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity
shall assess whether a currency is exchangeable
into another currency and how it shall estimate a
spot exchange rate at a measurement date when
exchangeability is lacking. The amendments require
disclosures of information that enable users of
financial statements to understand the impact of a
currency not being exchangeable. Earlier application
is permitted. When applying the amendments, an
entity cannot restate comparative information. Any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments
shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits or to the cumulative
amount of translation differences accumulated in a
separate component of equity, where appropriate, at
the date of initial application. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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“Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards
— Volume 11" set out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS
7 (and the accompanying Guidance on implementing
HKFRS 7), HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 and HKAS 7. Details of
the amendments that are expected to be applicable to
the Group are as follows:

o HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”:
The amendments have updated certain wordings
in paragraph B38 of HKFRS 7 and paragraphs IG1,
IG14 and IG20B of the Guidance on implementing
HKFRS 7 for the purpose of simplification or
achieving consistency with other paragraphs
in the standard and/or with the concepts and
terminology used in other standards. In addition,
the amendments clarify that the Guidance on
implementing HKFRS 7 does not necessarily
illustrate all the requirements in the referenced
paragraphs of HKFRS 7 nor does it create
additional requirements. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

o HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”: The
amendments clarify that when a lessee has
determined that a lease liability has been
extinguished in accordance with HKFRS 9, the
lessee is required to apply paragraph 3.3.3 of
HKFRS 9 and recognise any resulting gain or 10ss
in profit or loss. In addition, the amendments
have updated certain wordings in paragraph
5.1.3 of HKFRS 9 and Appendix A of HKFRS 9 to
remove potential confusion. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”:
The amendments clarify that the relationship
described in paragraph B74 of HKFRS 10 is just
one example of various relationships that might
exist between the investor and other parties
acting as de facto agents of the investor, which
removes inconsistency with the requirement in
paragraph B73 of HKFRS 10. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

HKAS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”: The
amendments replace the term “cost method”
with “at cost” in paragraph 37 of HKAS 7
following the prior deletion of the definition of
“cost method”. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
Statements.

2.2. Consolidation
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The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December 2024.

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has control.
The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.
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2.3.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interests in that subsidiary,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investment in the subsidiaries is stated at cost less provision
for impairment allowances. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income
statement for all interest-bearing financial instruments using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument but does not consider expected credit losses.
The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts.
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2.4.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
except for financial assets that subsequently become credit-
impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

Other income

@)

(©)

Fee income

Fees are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Upfront
arrangement fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate are recognised as an adjustment
to the effective interest rate in determining interest
income on the loans.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Income from placements with the Exchange Fund

Changes in fair value of the placements with the
Exchange Fund classified as “financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss” is recognised as income or
loss in the year in which they arise.
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2.5. Financial assets

@)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through OCI, or through profit or loss); and

3 those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI.

The Group has classified the placements with the
Exchange Fund as financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.
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amortised cost: assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain
or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at amortised cost and is not part of
a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or
loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired.

fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI). assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through OCI,
except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in profit
or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in other income/(l0ss).

fair value through profit or loss (FVPL): assets
that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost
or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss
on investment that is subsequently measured at
FVPL and is not part of a hedging relationship is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net in
the income statement within other income/(loss)
in the period in which it arises.
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2.6.

2.7.

() Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses (ECLS) associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 3.2
provides more details of how the ECLS is measured.

Equity securities and investment funds

Equity securities are measured at FVPL unless an election is
made to designate them at FVOCI upon initial recognition.

For equity securities at FVPL, changes in fair value are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

The election of FVOCI is made upon initial recognition
on an instrument-by-instrument basis and once made is
irrevocable. Gains and losses on these equity securities are
recognised in OCI, which are not reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss, including when they are derecognised.

Investment funds are measured at FVPL. Changes in fair
value of these funds are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and financial
liabilities measured at amortised cost. All the financial
liabilities are classified at inception and recognised initially at
fair value.

Debt securities issued in the statement of financial position
represent notes issued under the Medium Term Note (MTN)
Programme.

These notes are initially designated as either (i) financial

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss; or (i) financial
liabilities at amortised cost.
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2.8.

The notes classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost
are initially recognised at fair value, which is the fair value of
the consideration received, net of transaction costs incurred.
The notes are subsequently stated at amortised costs; any
difference between proceeds net of transaction costs and
the redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period of the debt securities using the effective
interest method.

On redemption/repurchase of the notes, the resulting gains
or losses, being the difference between the redemption/
repurchase amount and the carrying amount, are recognised
in the income statement in the period in which the
redemption/repurchase takes place.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Purchases and sales of investment securities are recognised
on the trade date, the date on which the Group purchases
or sells the assets. Loan portfolio and receivables are
recognised when cash is advanced to the borrowers.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. When the Group neither transfers or retains
substantially all the risks and reward of ownership of a
financial asset and retains control of the transferred asset, it is
required to recognise the financial asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement in the financial asset. Under
the continuing involvement approach, the Group continues
to recognise part of the transferred asset. The Group also
recognises continuing involvement asset and liability, which
represents the extent of the Group's continuing exposure to
the risks and reward of the transferred asset.
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2.9.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
and debt securities issued are recognised on the trade
date. Other financial liabilities are recognised when such
obligations arise. Financial liabilities are derecognised from
the statement of financial position when and only when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired.

The Group does not recognise an asset and a liability, when
the Group enters into an arrangement to pass through cash
flows from an asset and that arrangement meets specified
conditions. In these cases, the Group acts more as an agent
of the eventual recipients of the cash flows than as an owner
of the asset. Accordingly, to the extent that those conditions
are met the arrangement is treated as a transfer and
considered for derecognition even though the entity may
continue to collect cash flows from the asset. Conversely, to
the extent the conditions are not met, the entity acts more
as an owner of the asset with the result that the asset should
continue to be recognised.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subseqguently remeasured at their fair value. Fair values are
obtained from market prices in active markets, including
recent market transactions, and valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flow models and options pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets
when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value
is negative. Interest receivables and payables arising from
derivatives are separately presented in the statement of
financial position.
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The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial
recognition is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the
consideration given or received).

Certain derivatives embedded in financial liabilities are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of
the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the income statement.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or
loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being
hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as either: (i)
hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or
firm commitments (fair value hedge); or (i) hedges of highly
probable future cash flows attributable to a recognised asset
or liability, or a forecast transaction (cash flow hedge).
Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated in this
way provided certain criteria are met.

At the inception of the hedging, the Group documents the
economic relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, including whether changes in cash flows of
the hedging instruments are expected to offset changes in
the cash flows of hedged items. The Group documents its
risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
its hedge transactions. The Group also documents its
assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing
basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging
transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair
values or cash flows of hedged items.
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Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualified as fair value hedges are
recorded in the income statement, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability
that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of
a hedged item for which the effective interest method
is used, is amortised to income statement over the
period to maturity.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualified as cash
flow hedges are recognised in OCl and accumulated in
equity as hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to
the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the
income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the
income statement in the periods in which the hedged
item will affect income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or
when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in
equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised
when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised
in the income statement. When a forecast transaction
is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss that was reported in equity is immediately
transferred to the income statement.

Derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting
purposes

Derivative instruments entered into as economic
hedges that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
held at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the
fair value of any derivative instrument are recognised
immediately in the income statement.
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2.10.0ffsetting financial instruments

2.1

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

.Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are accounted as assets held
for sale and reported in “Other assets” and the relevant
loans are derecognised. The repossessed collateral assets
are measured at lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.

2.12.Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is the
person or group that allocates resources to and assesses
the performance of the operating segments of an entity. The
Group has determined the Chief Executive Officer as its chief
operating decision maker.

2.13.Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (functional currency).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000)
which is the Company’s functional and the Company’s
and the Group’s presentation currency.

250 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2024



RERER

SR BIRRZFHH R 2L ER
BERAMRERT - EEZERS
P 2L AT A RIARZRC
KBTI AT R~ R
AT =R 8BS NS
R ©

BNt KB HA - IR
&R MHRTLERE - UF
£ AN it 035
TIE - B EIA R BT
B A FEENHSNT
HIBEHTRE - SARE
AFAES B LR -

HPXNUARFEZRLITAE
foem e - FHAIDITNH
BEMUE 2 A FERDE - B
UE 25 34 45 P AR 28 30 P 7= AR
WREZA - KHAIEA IR E(E
M E b F AT E M IRE Z A
2XBIHR - BRMHKAZE
DR EEZFERE AR
A TRRRESD - IRE(E A E
R EEMSE DA
N

FEARFEZRLITARER
FRMEBMTANREZFZE
BARNTFEREN A5 - A
KARRFEELCITAEME
EEMIFEM T AN
BEFAT AN E N 0 A FEE

£ o

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at period-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are
translated with the closing rate as at the reporting
date. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency are translated with
the exchange rate as at the date of initial recognition;
non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are
measured at fair value are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

In the case of changes in the fair value of monetary
assets denominated in foreign currency classified
as FVOCI, a distinction is made between translation
differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of
the security and other changes in the carrying amount
of the security. Translation differences related to
changes in the amortised cost are recognised in profit
or loss, and other changes in the carrying amount,
except impairment, are recognised in OCI.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
instruments held at FVPL are reported as part of the
fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial instruments classified as FVOCI, are
included in the fair value reserve in equity.
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2.14.Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives.

shorter of the end of the useful life of
the right-of-use asset or the end of the

Right-of-use assets on
leased properties for

own Use lease term
Leasehold improvements over the unexpired period of the lease
Furniture and fixtures over the unexpired period of the lease
Computer three years
Office equipment three years
Motor vehicle four years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

2.15.Impairment of investment in subsidiaries

Impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary is
required upon receiving a dividend from that subsidiary if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary concerned in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the subsidiary in the Company's
statement of financial position exceeds the carrying amount
of the subsidiary’s net assets including goodwill in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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2.16.Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in OCI
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
OCl or directly in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures its tax
balances either based on the most likely amount or the
expected value, depending on which method provides a
better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. Deferred tax is
determined using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is
realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is
provided on temporary differences arising from investment
in the subsidiary, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2.17.Employee benefits

(@)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long-
service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of each reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave, maternity or
paternity leave are recognised when the absence
oCCurs.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created constructive obligations.

Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme
and a defined contribution scheme, the assets of which
are generally held in separate trustee-administered
funds. These pension plans are generally funded by
payments from employees and by the Group.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident
fund scheme and defined contribution scheme are
expensed as incurred.
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2.18.Leases

@)

As a lessee

0]

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at
the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the
date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Unless
the Group is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the leased asset at the end of the
lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease
term.

Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds it recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use.
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Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the
Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable.
The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain
to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate.

In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased
to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the lease of low-
value assets recognition to leases of assets that
are considered as low value. Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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2.19.Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise balances with original maturities
of three months or less, including cash and balances with
banks that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash

and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

2.20.Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting
period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

2.21.Insurance and reinsurance contracts classification

The Group issues insurance contracts in the normal course
of business, under which it accepts significant insurance
risk from its policyholders. In general, the Group determines
whether it has significant insurance risk, by comparing
benefits payable after an insured event with benefits payable
if the insured event had not occurred. Insurance contracts

can also transfer financial risk.

In the normal course of business, the Group uses
reinsurance to mitigate its risk exposures. A reinsurance
contract transfers significant risk if it transfers substantially
all of the insurance risk resulting from the insured portion
of the underlying insurance contracts, even if it does not

expose the reinsurer to the possibility of a significant loss.

The Group issues reinsurance contracts in the normal course
of business to compensate other entities for claims arising
from one or more insurance contracts issued by those

entities.
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2.22.Insurance and reinsurance contracts accounting
treatment

@)

Level of aggregation

HKFRS 17 requires an entity to determine the level of
aggregation for applying its requirements. The level
of aggregation for the Group is determined firstly by
dividing the insurance contracts written into portfolios.
Portfolios comprise groups of contracts with similar
risks which are managed together. Portfolios are
further divided based on expected profitability at
inception into three categories: onerous contracts,
contracts with no significant risk of becoming onerous,
and the remainder. This means that, for determining
the level of aggregation, the Group identifies a
contract as the smallest “unit’, i.e., the lowest common
denominator. The Group then makes an evaluation of
whether a series of contracts can be treated together
in making the profitability assessment based on
reasonable and supportable information, or whether
a single contract contains components that need to
be separated and treated as if they were stand-alone
contracts. HKFRS 17 also requires that no group for
level of aggregation purposes may contain contracts
issued more than one year apart. Accordingly, each
portfolio is disaggregated into groups of contracts that
are issued within a calendar year (annual cohorts).

The Group has defined portfolios of insurance and
reinsurance contracts issued based on its product lines
due to the fact that the products are subject to similar
risks and managed together. The expected profitability
of these portfolios at inception is determined based on
the existing actuarial valuation models which take into
consideration existing and new business.

The groups of contracts for which the fair value
approach has been adopted on transition include
contracts issued more than one year apart.
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The insurance contracts portfolios are divided into:

a group of contracts that are onerous at initial
recognition;

a group of contracts that at initial recognition
have no significant possibility of becoming
onerous subsequently; and

a group of the remaining contracts in the
portfolio.

The reinsurance contracts held portfolios are divided

a group of contracts on which there is a net gain
on initial recognition;

a group of contracts that have no significant
possibility of a net gain arising subsequent to
initial recognition; and

a group of the remaining contracts in the
portfolio.

Recognition

The Group recognises groups of insurance contracts
that it issues from the earliest of the following:

the beginning of the coverage period of the
group of contracts;

the date when the first payment from a
policyholder in the group is due, or when the first
payment is received if there is no due date; or

for a group of onerous contracts, as soon as
facts and circumstances indicate that the group
iS onerous.
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The Group recognises a group of reinsurance contracts
held it has entered into from the earliest of the
following:

o the beginning of the coverage period of the
group of reinsurance contracts held. However,
the Group delays the recognition of a group
of reinsurance contracts held that provide
proportionate coverage until the date when
any underlying insurance contract is initially
recognised, if that date is later than the
beginning of the coverage period of the group of
reinsurance contracts held; and

. the date the Group recognises an onerous group
of underlying insurance contracts if the Group
entered into the related reinsurance contract
held in the group of reinsurance contracts held at
or before that date.

Only contracts that individually meet the recognition
criteria by the end of the reporting period are included
in the groups. When contracts are identified to meet
the recognition criteria in the groups after reporting
date, they are added to the groups in the reporting
period in which they are identified to meet the
recognition criteria. The Group adds new contracts to
the group in the reporting period in which that contract
meets one of the criteria set out above.

Onerous groups of contracts

The Group has determined whether any contracts
issued form a group of onerous contracts before the
earlier of the beginning of the coverage period and
the date when the first payment from a policyholder
in the group is due. The Group looks at facts and
circumstances to identify if a group of contracts are
onerous based on:

. pricing information;

results of similar contracts it has recognised; and

. environmental factors, e.g., a change in market
experience or regulations.
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Contract boundary

The Group includes in the measurement of a group of
insurance contracts all the future cash flows within the
boundary of each contract in the group. Cash flows
are within the boundary of an insurance contract if
they arise from substantive rights and obligations that
exist during the reporting period in which the Group
can compel the policyholder to pay the premiums,
or in which the Group has a substantive obligation to
provide the policyholder with services. A substantive
obligation to provide services ends when:

. the Group has the practical ability to reassess
the risks of the particular policyholder and, as
a result, can set a price or level of benefits that
fully reflects those risks; or

. the Group has the practical ability to reassess the
risks of the portfolio of insurance contracts that
contain the contract and, as a result, can set a
price or level of benefits that fully reflects the risk
of that portfolio; and

. the pricing of the premiums for coverage up to
the date when the risks are reassessed does not
take into account the risks that relate to periods
after the reassessment date.

A liability or asset relating to expected premiums or
claims outside the boundary of the insurance contract
are not recognised. Such amounts relate to future
insurance contracts.
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Insurance contracts — initial measurement

The Group measures a group of insurance contracts as
the total of:

. fulfilment cash flows; and

o a CSM representing the unearned profit the
Group will recognise as it provides service under
the insurance contracts in the group.

Fulfilment cash flows comprise unbiased and
probability-weighted estimates of future cash flows,
discounted to present value to reflect the time value
of money and financial risks, plus a risk adjustment for
non-financial risk.

The Group’s objective in estimating future cash
flows is to determine the expected value, or the
probability-weighted mean, of the full range of possible
outcomes, considering all reasonable and supportable
information available at the reporting date without
undue cost or effort. The Group estimates future cash
flows considering a range of scenarios which have
commercial substance and give a good representation
of possible outcomes. The cash flows from each
scenario are probability-weighted and apply the current
discount rates to reflect the time value of money and
the financial risks related to those cash flows.

When estimating future cash flows, the Group includes
all cash flows that are within the contract boundary
including:

. premiums and related cash flows;

. claims and benefits, including reported claims
not yet paid, incurred claims not yet reported
and expected future claims;

. an allocation of insurance acquisition cash flows
attributable to the portfolio to which the contract
belongs;
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o claims handling costs;

o policy administration and maintenance costs,
including recurring commissions that are
expected to be paid to intermediaries; and

. an allocation of fixed and variable overheads
directly attributable to fulfilling insurance
contracts.

The Group does not provide investment-return
services in respect of contracts that it issues, nor
does it perform investment activities for the benefit of
policyholders.

The Group incorporates, in an unbiased way, all
reasonable and supportable information available
without undue cost or effort about the amount,
timing and uncertainty of those future cash flows.
The Group estimates the probabilities and amounts
of future payments under existing contracts based on
information obtained, including:

. information about claims already reported by
policyholders;

. other information about the known or estimated
characteristics of the insurance contracts;

. historical data about the Group’s own experience,
supplemented when necessary with data from
other sources. Historical data is adjusted to
reflect current conditions; and

current pricing information, when available.

The measurement of fulfilment cash flows includes
insurance acquisition cash flows which are allocated
as a portion of premium to profit or loss (through
insurance revenue) over the period of the contract
in a systematic and rational way on the basis of the
passage of time. The Group does not elect to accrete
interest on insurance acquisition cash flows to be
allocated to profit or loss.
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The Group’s CSM is a component of the insurance
asset or liability for the group of insurance contracts
that results in no income at initial recognition. The
level of aggregation for CSM is on a group of contracts
basis consistent with the level of aggregation specified
above. If the fulfilment cash flows allocated to the
group of insurance contracts, together with any
previously recognised insurance acquisition cash flows
and any cash flows arising from the contracts at the
date of initial recognition in total are a net outflow,
the group of contracts is considered to be onerous. A
loss from onerous insurance contracts is recognised in
profit and loss immediately.

For reinsurance contracts, the Group recognises any
net gain or net cost as a CSM at initial recognition.
If any net cost of obtaining reinsurance coverage
relates to an insured event that occurred before
the purchase of the group of reinsurance contracts
held, it is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
In addition, if the underlying insurance contracts
are in an onerous position, the Group is allowed to
recognise a reinsurance gain immediately in profit or
loss for the portion of claims that the Group expects
to recover from the reinsurance, if the reinsurance
held was entered into prior to or at the same time as
the onerous contract. Consequently, a loss-recovery
component is created and adjusted for the group of
reinsurance contracts. This determines the amounts
that are subsequently presented in profit or loss as
reversals of recoveries of losses from the reinsurance
contracts and are excluded from the allocation of
reinsurance premiums paid. The Group adjusts the
loss-recovery component to reflect changes in the loss
of an onerous group of underlying insurance contracts.
The carrying amount of the loss-recovery component
must not exceed the portion of the carrying amount of
the loss of the onerous group of underlying insurance
contracts that the Group expects to recover from the
group of reinsurance contracts.
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Measurement of reinsurance contract cash flows is
consistent with the underlying insurance contracts, but
with an adjustment for any risk of non-performance by
the reinsurer.

Insurance contracts — subsequent measurement

The CSM at the end of the reporting period represents
the profit in the group of insurance contracts that has
not yet been recognised in profit or loss, because it
relates to future service to be provided.

For each profitability group of insurance contracts, the
carrying amount of the CSM of the group at the end of
the reporting period is adjusted by the Group to reflect
the effect of the following changes:

o the effect of any new contracts added to the
group;

3 interest accreted on the carrying amount of the
CSM during the reporting period, measured at
the discount rates at initial recognition;

o the changes in fulfilment cash flows relating to
future service, except to the extent that: (i) such
increases in the fulfilment cash flows exceed
the carrying amount of the CSM, giving rise to a
loss; or (i) such decreases in the fulfilment cash
flows are allocated to the loss component of the
liability for remaining coverage (LRC); and

o the amount recognised as insurance revenue
because of the transfer of services in the
period, determined by the allocation of the CSM
remaining at the end of the reporting period
(before any allocation) over the current and
remaining coverage period.
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The discount rate is determined periodically and only
the set of locked-in discount rates for a group of
contracts in each period will be applied for subsequent
measured. The discount rate used for accretion of
interest on the CSM is determined using the bottom-up
approach (Note 4.4(b)).

The CSM is recognised into insurance revenue over
the duration of the group of insurance contracts
based on the respective coverage units. The locked-in
discount rate is the rate applicable at the date of initial
recognition of contracts that joined a group for each
annual cohort.

The changes in fulfilment cash flows relating to future
service that adjust the CSM comprise:

. experience adjustments that arise from the
difference between the premium receipts
(and any related cash flows such as insurance
acquisition cash flows) and the estimate, at
the beginning of the period, of the amounts
expected. Differences related to premiums
received (or due) related to current or past
services are recognised immediately in profit
or loss while differences related to premiums
received (or due) for future services are adjusted
against the CSM;

. changes in estimates of the present value of
future cash flows in the liability for remaining
coverage, except those relating to the time
value of money and changes in financial
risk (recognised in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income rather than adjusting the
CSM);

266 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2024



S HITOT R R %
R 5 = HA SR bR AL A
EIR R AR D 2 B ZET
&

s SRERFHEXMIER
BRXUS B XU B B AR B

BRXBLIEEBEFIN - bk a
) Bl 55 W a5 B 18 B 4R PR I B )
mEIAN R & BRI 2R
EFENWEIARITE -

HEARBREAIN - HEHAS
MBI A LIRS W H
IKE S A - 1ZRRE £ A7
B ETRA AT IRAR
—HENHANERENZIHEE
HRSWRFREE > WEEH
MowmprAERM2TES
B FUBERERHIA - A
SHIZ S RIEARIEH R TR
PRIERL SRS - A E
FIAIRK - BT S IREE
R R LR K 12 13 5T BT FE 1R
BERWIANNTHR - ERRFS
RERIEBRNOI SR SARK
RSIBXRHEEEHE RGH
DEAK °

AERERRE B RITERR
BHAFINKE I NIA T
LA B ()R TR SUE
BE51ZE DR T AR ARK
REEARNBHRN©REIAR
ZBEIZARNNE HRS W
(N ANEHE F= £ R R f
BE51ZADE T 1Z4EH 8T
ERSHEANBLHNSRE -
THREBHNEHIN S RER
RER IR S mER
LRI TR o

NTHERREEY  KE 2K
RFRRQEEM R =MD~
ERREE RS o FIARA
REBENRA B @5KK
Hi AR IR & 40K W2 B AR S5 48
AOENATRE - Kb T1X
B HIREARIRA LIRS Yas

o differences between any investment component
expected to become payable in the period and
the actual investment component that becomes
payable in the period; and

3 changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial
risk that relate to future service.

Except for changes in the risk adjustment, adjustments
to the CSM noted above are measured at discount
rates that reflect the characteristics of the cash
flows of the group of insurance contracts at initial
recognition.

Where, during the coverage period, a loss is created
for a group of insurance contracts becoming onerous
when there is an increase in fulfilment cash flows
that exceeds the carrying amount of the CSM. Once
a change in fulfilment cash flows reduces CSM to nil,
the excess establishes a loss which is recognised in
profit and loss immediately for the net cash outflow.
A loss component is established by the Group for the
liability for remaining coverage for such onerous group
depicting the losses recognised. Any subsequent
decrease in the fulfilment cash flows will reverse the
losses previously recognised in profit and loss. Any
remaining loss will be released based on a systematic
allocation of subsequent changes relating to future
service in the fulfilment cash flows.

The Group measures the carrying amount of a group
of insurance contracts at the end of each reporting
period as the sum of (i) the liability for remaining
coverage comprising fulfilment cash flows related to
future service allocated to the group at that date and
the CSM of the group at that date; and (i) the liability
for incurred claims (LIC) for the Group comprising the
fulfilment cash flows related to past service allocated
to the group at that date. The fulfilment cash flows at
the reporting dates are measured using the current
estimates of expected cash flows and current discount
rates.

For reinsurance contracts, the carrying amount
represents the sum of the asset for remaining
coverage and the asset for incurred claims. The asset
for remaining coverage comprises: (a) the fulfilment
cash flows that relate to services that will be received
under the contracts in future periods; and (b) any
remaining CSM at that date.
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derecognition
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The Group derecognises insurance contracts when:

the rights and obligations relating to the contract
are extinguished (i.e., discharged, cancelled or
expired); or

the contract is modified such that the
modification results in a change in the
measurement model or the applicable standard
for measuring a component of the contract,
or the modified contract would have had a
substantially different contract boundary, or the
modified contract would have been included
in a different group of contracts. In such cases,
the Group derecognises the initial contract
and recognises the modified contract as a new
contract.

Insurance acquisition cash flows

Insurance acquisition cash flows arise from the costs of
selling, underwriting and starting a group of insurance
contracts (issued or expected to be issued) that are
directly attributable to the portfolio of insurance
contracts to which the group belongs.
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Presentation

The Group has presented separately in the statement
of financial position the carrying amount of portfolios
of insurance contracts issued that are assets, portfolios
of insurance contracts issued that are liabilities,
portfolios of reinsurance contracts held that are assets
and portfolios of reinsurance contracts held that are
liabilities.

The Group disaggregates the amounts recognised in
the consolidated income statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income into insurance
service result, comprising insurance revenue and
insurance service expenses from investment results,
which comprises insurance finance income or
expenses.

The Group does not disaggregate the change in risk
adjustment for non-financial risk between a financial
and non-financial portion and includes the entire
change as part of the insurance service result.

The Group separately presents income or expenses

from reinsurance contracts held and from insurance
contracts issued.
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Insurance revenue

The Group's insurance revenue depicts the
performance of insurance services through
provision of coverage and other services arising
from a group of insurance contracts at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which
the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those services. Insurance revenue from a group
of insurance contracts is therefore the relevant
portion for the period of the total consideration
for the contracts, (i.e., the amount of premiums
paid to the Group adjusted for financing effect
(the time value of money) and excluding
investment components). The total consideration
for a group of contracts covers amounts related
to the provision of services and is comprised of:

o expected insurance service expenses for
claims and other insurance expenses,
excluding any amounts allocated to the loss
component of the liability for remaining
coverage,;

o the risk adjustment for non-financial risk,
excluding any amounts allocated to the loss
component of the liability for remaining
coverage,;

. the CSM release; and

o amounts related to recovery of insurance
acquisition cash flows.

For management judgement applied to the
amortisation of CSM, please refer to Note 4.4(d).
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Insurance services expenses

The insurance service expenses arising from
insurance contracts are recognised in profit
or loss as they are incurred. The insurance
service expenses comprise: (a) incurred claims
and other insurance expenses; (b) losses on
onerous contracts and reversal of such losses; (c)
adjustments to liability for incurred claims; and
(d) related to amortising of insurance acquisition
cash flows.

Loss components

The Group has grouped contracts that are
onerous at initial recognition separately from
contracts in the same portfolio that are not
onerous at initial recognition. Groups that
were not onerous at initial recognition can also
subsequently become onerous if assumptions
and experience changes. The Group has
established a loss component of the liability
for remaining coverage for any onerous group
depicting the future losses recognised.

A loss component represents a notional record
of the losses attributable to each group of
onerous insurance contracts (or contracts
profitable at inception that have become
onerous). The loss component is released based
on a systematic allocation of the subsequent
changes in the fulfilment cash flows to: (i) the
loss component; and (ii) the liability for remaining
coverage excluding the loss component. The
loss component is also updated for subsequent
changes in estimates of the fulfiiment cash
flows related to future service. The systematic
allocation of subsequent changes to the loss
component results in the total amounts allocated
to the loss component being equal to zero by
the end of the coverage period of a group of
contracts (since the loss component will have
been materialised in the form of incurred claims).
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Loss-recovery components

When the Group recognises a loss on initial
recognition of an onerous group of underlying
insurance contracts or when further onerous
underlying insurance contracts are added to a
group, the Group establishes a loss-recovery
component of the asset for remaining coverage
for a group of reinsurance contracts held
depicting the recovery of losses.

Where a loss component has been set up
subsequent to initial recognition of a group of
underlying insurance contracts, the portion of
income that has been recognised from related
reinsurance contracts held is disclosed as a loss-
recovery component.

Where a loss-recovery component has been
set up at initial recognition or subsequently, the
Group adjusts the loss-recovery component to
reflect changes in the loss component of an
onerous group of underlying insurance contracts.

The carrying amount of the loss-recovery
component must not exceed the portion of the
carrying amount of the loss component of the
onerous group of underlying insurance contracts
that the Group expects to recover from the group
of reinsurance contracts held. On this basis,
the loss-recovery component recognised at
initial recognition is reduced to zero in line with
reductions in the onerous group of underlying
insurance contracts and is nil when loss
component of the onerous group of underlying
insurance contracts is nil.
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Insurance finance income and expense

Insurance finance income or expenses comprise
the change in the carrying amount of the group
of insurance contracts arising from:

. the effect of the time value of money and
changes in the time value of money, and

o the effect of financial risk and changes in
financial risk.

The Group disaggregates insurance finance
income or expenses on insurance and
reinsurance contracts issued between profit or
loss and OCI for general insurance business.
The impact of changes in market interest rates
on the value of the insurance and related
reinsurance assets and liabilities are reflected in
OCl in order to minimise accounting mismatches
between the accounting for financial assets and
insurance assets and liabilities. The impacts from
differences between current period rates and
locked-in rates are presented in OCI.

For general insurance business, the Group's
invested assets which are deposits and debt
securities investments backing the groups of
insurance contracts measured under the GMM
are measured at amortised costs. As a result, the
effect of the time value of money for the groups
of insurance contracts are reflected in profit or
loss and the effect of financial risk and changes
in financial risk is reflected in OCI.

The Group systematically allocates expected
total insurance finance income or expenses over
the duration of the group of contracts to profit
or loss using discount rates determined on initial
recognition of the group of contracts for which
changes in assumptions that relate to financial
risk do not have a substantial effect on the
amounts paid to the policyholder.
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In the event of transfer of a group of insurance
contracts or derecognition of an insurance
contract, the Group reclassifies the insurance
finance income or expenses to profit or loss as
a reclassification adjustment of any remaining
amounts for the group (or contract) that were
previously recognised in OCI.

With respect to the annuity business, insurance
finance income or expenses on the issued
insurance contracts is not disaggregated because
the related financial assets are managed on a fair
value basis and measured at fair value through
profit or oss.

Net income or expense from reinsurance
contracts held

The Group presents on the face of the
consolidated income statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income the net
amounts of expected recovery from reinsurers
and an allocation of the reinsurance premiums
paid. The Group treats reinsurance cash flows
that are contingent on claims on the underlying
contracts as part of the claims that are expected
to be reimbursed under the reinsurance contract
held. Amounts relating to the recovery of losses
from reinsurance of onerous direct contracts
are included as amounts recoverable from the
reinsurer. For reinsurance cash flows that are
not contingent on claims on the underlying
contracts (for example, some types of ceding
commissions), they are treated as reduction
in reinsurance premiums paid. The allocation
of reinsurance premiums paid represents the
total of the changes in the asset for remaining
coverage that relate to services for which the
Group expects to pay consideration.
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2.23.Loans that transfer significant insurance risk

There are contracts issued by the Group with a feature
combining a loan component with an agreement to
compensate the borrowers by waving the borrowers’
outstanding debt (for example, repayment of the loan
balance and payment of interest) if a specified uncertain
future event adversely affects the borrowers (for example,
death). The insurance risk transferred by these contracts
arises primarily from guarantees provided to the borrowers
of the maximum amount of outstanding debt that is
repayable if specified uncertain future events occur.
Following the adoption of HKFRS 17, the loan component is
no longer allowed to account separately from an insurance
contract. On the other hand, it is allowed to apply HKFRS 9 to
account for both components of such contracts in entirety.
The Group has applied HKFRS 9 to such contracts. The
objective of the Group's business model is to hold relevant
loans with insurance cover to collect contractual cash flows
until maturity rather than to sell. However, the cash flows
of these contracts fail to meet the “solely for payments
of principal and interest” test in view of the non-recourse
feature as the credit risk of the Group is exchanged for the
performance of underlying collateral value for repayment
of loan balance and payment of interest. Accordingly, such
contracts (with both loan and insurance components in
entirety) are measured as fair value through profit or loss
under HKFRS 9. The determination of the fair value of these
loans is based on income approach by discounting future
cash flows (including annuity payout, premium and interest
income, loan prepayment, collateral property value and so
on) to present value at a rate that market participant would
use when pricing the similar asset.

2.24.Contingency reserve

For general insurance business, 50% or 75% of the relevant
premiums or insurance premium earned, depending on
the respective product, under Insurance Ordinance basis
is set aside as a contingency reserve for a period of time
in accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as
considered appropriate by the directors. Withdrawals from
the contingency reserve can be made to meet excess claims
at any time during the period. At the end of the reporting
period, the unutilised balance of the contingency reserve can
be released to retained profits.
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3.

Financial risk management

3.1. Strategy in using financial instruments

The major activities of the Group are (i) to purchase
portfolios of mortgages or loans; (i) to raise financing for its
purchase of assets through issuance of debt securities; (iii)
to develop infrastructure financing business; (iv) to provide
mortgage insurance cover in respect of mortgage loans
and reverse mortgage loans originated by participating
lenders and secured on residential properties in Hong Kong,
life insurance policies and other assets, if applicable; (v) to
operate a scheme for the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (Government) providing
guarantee on loans advanced by participating lenders for
local small and medium enterprises (SMES) and to operate
a scheme for the Government providing 100% guarantee
on loans advanced by participating lenders for unemployed
individuals; and (vi) to offer life annuity products in or
from Hong Kong. By their nature, the Group’s activities
are principally related to the use of financial instruments
including cash, loans, debts, investments, and derivatives.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks and those activities involve the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and management of some degree of risk
or combination of risks. The Group manages the risks
in a prudent manner in sustaining the Group’s financial
performance.

The Corporate Risk Management Committee is set up at
group level to provide oversight of the enterprise-wide
risk matters including financial and non-financial risks.
The policies and limits for various risks are monitored and
reviewed regularly by various management committees
of the Company, including Infrastructure Financing and
Securitisation Investment Committee (IFSIC), Credit
Committee, Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO),
Transaction Approval Committee (TAC), Environmental,
Social and Governance (ESG) Committee, and Operational
Risk Committee (ORC) which report to the Corporate Risk
Management Committee.
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The IFSIC executes oversight and approval authority
over all investments in infrastructure loans. The Credit
Committee oversees the credit policies and standards for
asset acquisition. The ALCO oversees the implementation
of market risk management and investment guidelines
approved by the Board of Directors. The TAC conducts an in-
depth analysis of pricing economics and associated risks for
business transactions, whilst taking into consideration the
latest market conditions and business strategies approved
by the Board. The ESG Committee is established to direct
and oversee the development and implementation of ESG
strategy having regard to the relevant requirements and
guidelines. The ORC is responsible for ensuring that all
business entities and line functions maintain an effective
operational risk and internal control framework. The ORC is
also responsible for providing directions and resolving issues
related to policies, controls and management of operational
issues referred to by line functions, as well as ensuring
prompt and appropriate corrective action in response to
audit findings related to operational risks or internal controls.
In addition, Group Internal Audit Department is responsible
for the independent review of the internal control systems of
the Group.

The Group established Longevity Risk Committee to manage
longevity risk of the Group. Its duties include approving
longevity risk management policies and hedging transactions
and reviewing longevity experiences and exposures of the
Group. It also monitors and analyses the general trend,
technological changes and their implications for human
longevity.

In respect of general insurance business, a Risk Committee
is established by HKMC Insurance Limited (HKMCI) as an
independent oversight committee to assist its Board to
oversee implementation of risk management framework
and manage all risks faced by the HKMCI. For HKMC Annuity
Limited (HKMCA), a Risk Committee is established to
manage the enterprise-wide risk matters, including financial
and non-financial risks.

The most important types of risks are credit risk, market risk
which includes currency risk, interest rate risk and equity
price risk, liquidity risk and insurance risk.

EBRBISERLT —T-_mEER 277



SREMEIREME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.2.

st Mg

AEHEREEMA S NEI S MEBH
Re  EHFRA - INLEESHFR - T
RER BB RME A S BEARRT
F(BEADBHR/NERABFRITL
MBS BERIREZIITL) © R
RE RIEFRANETNE AR -
NXGHNFEEREIMNE - FENE
MG - |RITRRF] - BETIFRANT
BERBEERAENIRA SRR
EX - BEFE AR RIZIERIE A F
WRARBBFE R ARTRAIFR
TEAEREER(BEREERDE
BErSNLEE B TRBENF IR
T #ONCEEEROER XIS
BR - stEABTREE D BEERN T
RME - FREETTE LIRS i BUFT
LEELR

AERANERNERREERHA
&+ BMERA TR 2 BRd RBE 2 48
R RS o F AN H R B IR E 5T
R 1T T E B

JE D

NEFFOURAE B E - REH R
HENRERER : ()RBEE Nk
RAZERTT (i) REEIER R =K
D (i) 21T B BBOR A RER &
B (V)SEITRRESMIE 24 K
BANMILS  VBSEREFE]
B RV)BRE S XK R =3 R
58 RBIRE -

REFLEEEX [FB R 1T S
ERFEFE LHA B EEIZEFR
K FHR I AU EIRBUR BN S8 5K
ARITE T2 1T ) AT 58 B3 3K ] 4 7
B o RIBEE R SHAERIES| N DT
POE M ITRUE L - RERF I T
Was R HRR ©

3.2. Creditrisk

The Group's principal financial assets are its cash and
short-term funds, investment securities, placements with
the Exchange Fund, loan portfolio and loans with 100%
guarantee from the Government under the SME Financing
Guarantee Scheme (SFGS) and Dedicated 100% Loan
Guarantee Schemes (DLGS). The credit risk on liquid funds
and investment securities is limited because the credit
ratings of the counterparties, mainly sovereigns, quasi-
sovereign agencies, banks and companies, should meet the
minimum requirement in accordance with the investment
guidelines approved by the Board of Directors. The capital of
the HKMCA and the HKMCI as well as premium receipts of
the HKMCA are placed with the Exchange Fund managed by
the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (HKMA). The credit risk
on the placements with the Exchange Fund is very limited as
it is exposure to the Government. Regarding loans with 100%
guarantee from the Government, the credit default risk of the
loans is fully guaranteed by the Government.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its loan
portfolio, which is the risk that a loan borrower will be unable
to pay amounts in full when due. The Group therefore has a
prudent policy for managing its exposure to credit risk.

To maintain the quality of the loan portfolios, the Group
adheres to a prudent risk management framework to (i)
select Approved Sellers with established criteria; (ii) adopt
prudent asset purchasing criteria; (iii) conduct effective
and in-depth due diligence reviews; (iv) implement robust
project structures and financing documentation; (v) perform
an ongoing monitoring and reviewing mechanism; and
(vi) ensure adequate protection for higher-risk assets or
transactions.

The Group undertakes ongoing credit review with special
attention paid to problem loans. Business units will monitor
these loans and take recovery action such as establishing
relief plan with borrowers in order to maximise recoveries.
Loan impairment assessment is performed regularly and
impairment allowance is charged to income statement in
accordance with the guidelines approved by the Credit
Committee.
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Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group has implemented guidelines on the acceptability
of specific classes of collateral on credit risk mitigation,
which are subject to regular review.

Loan portfolio and loans with 100% guarantee from the
Government

The principal collateral types for residential mortgage
portfolio mainly consist of properties located in Hong Kong.
For hire purchase receivable, the collateral types include taxi
and public light bus licenses. Residential mortgage portfolio
and hire purchase receivable are generally fully secured
by collateral. The current collateral value of properties is
determined with the use of public indices on a portfolio
basis. The principal collateral types for infrastructure loan
portfolio mainly consist of security interests in the assets of
the borrowers and assignment of key project documents
and/or charge over bank accounts but the actual security
varies projects to projects.

Regarding loans with 100% guarantee from the Government,
no collateral is sought as the credit default risk of the loans is
fully guaranteed by the Government. Please refer to Note 19
for more details.

Time deposits with banks, investment securities and
placements with the Exchange Fund

Collaterals are generally not sought for time deposits with
banks as the exposures are considered to be low risk due
to the nature of the counterparties and short-term maturity.
Investment securities and placements with the Exchange
Fund are generally unsecured.
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Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into ISDA master agreement with all
counterparties for derivative transactions where each party
will be able to settle all outstanding amounts on a net basis
in the event of default of the other party. The Group also
executed Credit Support Annex (CSA) with all counterparties
in conjunction with the master agreement. Under CSA,
collateral is passed between the parties to mitigate the
counterparty risk inherent in outstanding positions.

For financial instruments such as derivatives, exposures
are monitored against counterparty risk limits established
in accordance with the investment guidelines and credit
risk policy of the Group. These counterparty risk limits
are subject to regular review by the Credit Committee
on an annual basis. At any one time, the amount subject
to counterparty risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments favourable to the Group (i.e. assets with positive
fair value), which in relation to derivatives is only a small
fraction of the contract, or notional values used to express
the volume of instruments outstanding. This counterparty
risk exposure is managed as part of the overall credit limits
with counterparties, together with potential exposures from
market movements.

Mortgage insurance contracts, other guarantee and
insurance contracts

The details are disclosed in Note 3.5.

Settlement risk arises in any situation where a payment in
cash, securities or equities is made in the expectation of a
corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily
settlement limits are established for each counterparty to
cover the aggregate of all settlement risk arising from the
Group's market transactions on any single day.
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Expected credit loss (ECL) measurement

For financial assets, the following credit risk modelling
applies:

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. It considers available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information with the following indicators
incorporated:

o external credit rating (as far as available);

o actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations;

o significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same borrower;

o significant changes in the value of the collateral
supporting the obligation or in the quality of third-party
guarantees or credit enhancements; and

o significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the
payment status of borrowers in the group and changes
in the financial conditions of the borrower.

A three-stage approach to measuring ECLS is applied on
loan portfolio, cash and short-term funds and investment
securities accounted for at amortised cost and FVOCI.
Financial assets migrate through the following three stages
based on the change in credit quality since initial recognition:
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Stage 1: 12-month ECLS

For exposures where there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that are
not credit impaired upon origination, the portion of the
lifetime ECL associated with the probability of default events
occurring within the next 12 months is recognised.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECLs — not credit impaired

For credit exposures where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that are not
credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECLs — credit impaired

Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred.
For financial assets that have become credit impaired, a
lifetime ECL is recognised and interest income is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
(net of impairment provision) rather than the gross carrying
amount.

ECLs are derived from unbiased and probability-weighted
estimates of expected loss. The amount of the ECLS is
recognised using an impairment allowance account with the
movement in this account charged to income statement.

At initial recognition, impairment allowance is required for
ECLs resulting from default events that are possible within
the next 12 months (12-month ECLS). At each reporting
date, the Group assesses whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk for financial assets since
initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring
over the expected life between the reporting date and
the date of initial recognition. In the event of a significant
increase in credit risk, impairment allowance is required
from all possible default events over the expected life of
the financial assets (Lifetime ECLS). If, in a subsequent
period, credit quality improves and reverses any previously
assessed significant increase in credit risk since origination,
then the impairment allowance reverts from Lifetime ECLS to
12-month ECLS.
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Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage
in a repayment plan with the Group. Loans are written off
after all the necessary procedures have substantially been
completed and the amount of the loss has been determined.
Where loans have been written off, the Group continues
to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover
the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are
recognised in profit or loss.

No impairment allowance was made on interest and
remittance receivables, deposits and other assets as the
amount was immaterial.

The Group uses three categories for loans which reflect their
credit risk and how the loan loss provision is determined for
each of those categories.

(@  Loans with 100% guarantee from the Government

These loans are fully guaranteed by the Government as
detailed in Note 19. The Group uses three categories
for loans which reflect their credit risk:

Stage 1. It represents performing loans with low risk
of default and the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet contractual cash flows.

Stage 2. It represents loans with significant increase
in credit risk since the moment of acquisition,
for example there is interest or principal
payment overdue between 30 days and 60
days.

Stage 3: It represents loans with significant increase in
credit risk with interest or principal payment
overdue for over 60 days, or loans with
default notice submitted by banks.
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F-E-mME+=-A=+—H
As at 31 December 2024

Given the default loss of these loans are fully
guaranteed, no impairment allowance is recognised in
view of the minimal default risk of the Government.

E—HE E-HME E=HME BE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

FER FET TR TR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

74,154,028 1,754,591 6,874,079 82,782,698

UNEIP=XE] Gross carrying amount
BELE Impairment allowance
Mk & Carrying amount

74,154,028 1,754,591 6,874,079 82,782,698

—E-_=F+=-B=+—H
As at 31 December 2023

F—ME E_ME F=MER BAR
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FHAT FHIT FHIT FATT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

92,050,026 2,015,090 3,297,240 97,362,356

UNEIPSIE] Gross carrying amount
BB & Impairment allowance
K E & Carrying amount

92,050,026 2,015,090 3,297,240 97,362,356
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AEFATEER S RITHAER
B RIZBLR AT

251
Category

E—E

Stage 1

—MER

Stage 2

FE=ME

Stage 3

A

Write-off

(b)

KANEN
Definition of category

ERAGZLREERIE - HERBRENE
AN

f
TeEHIERE -

Borrowers have a low risk of default and
a strong capacity to meet contractual
cash flows.

IRHER R KEEM: mFE

&/&$%Lw@ﬁﬁi 30K - DR
ERETRE EEEM -
Loans for wh|ch there is a significant
increase in credit risk; a significant
increase in credit risk is presumed if
interest and/or principal repayments
are more than 30 days past due.

MBER/ KA EZEEHOX
A== L

Interest and/or principal repayments
are 90 days past due, borrowers with
bankruptcy or properties repossessed.

RN

F T & 22 B A Uk =] g
iLa’A °

There is no reasonable expectation of
recovery on the delinquent interest
and/or principal repayments.

BB B R A

Loan portfolio

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the
Group’s ECL model on loans is as follows:

HWINT RS 51 5 Mk & R E A
Basis for recognition of
ECL provision

124 A TR 56X = 43 (40 33 7= A 700 HA 48 BB
SF 1240 R - M0 EA 5 3R 2 E 7 EA 48 B
= o)

12-month ECLs (Where the expected
lifetime of an asset is less than 12
months, expected losses are measured at
its expected lifetime.)

FHMERERSR — RREETRE

Lifetime ECLs — not credit impaired

THFRERSR — FEHREE

Lifetime ECLs — credit impaired

WA

9>1

Asset is written off
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However, in certain cases, the Group will also consider a
loan to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
enhancements held by the Group.

Over the term of the loans, the Group accounts for its credit
risk by appropriately providing for ECLS on a timely basis.
In calculating the ECL rates, the Group considers historical
loss rates for each category of loan portfolio, and adjusts for
forward-looking macroeconomic data.

Loan portfolio at amortised cost consists of residential
mortgage portfolio, infrastructure loans and others which are
hire purchase receivable and microfinance loans.

The Group have adopted a range of economic cycle stages
for the assessment of mortgage loans and hire purchase
receivable by portfolio basis. Probabilities are assigned to
different economic cycle stages for the assessment. Based
on market outlook, Credit Committee members form a view
on the likelihood of each economic cycle stage. The default
probability is based on the weighted average of likelihood
of different economic cycle stage and the corresponding
default probability.

For infrastructure loans assessed by individual project
basis, the Group has selected a forward-looking view
based on outlook of global economy, relevant regional
economic indicators, specific industry data, and taking
into consideration of the impact of any special events.
Infrastructure loans are rated under various scenarios. The
probability table is set up to determine the probability of
each scenario under each forward-looking view.
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TR B PRSI K &) BT
HREARERRE DT o

FT-EB-mE+=-A=+—~H
As at 31 December 2024

PR AT IR Ay

Loan portfolio at

E—HME
Stage 1

FET
HK$'000

E=MER
Stage 3

FET

HK$'000

The following table contains an analysis of the credit risk
exposure of loan portfolio at amortised cost.

kil
Total
F& T
HK$'000

RAE amortised cost
NP Gross carrying amount
EERBETHAS Residential mortgage
portfolio 2,807,202 3,844 5,501 2,816,547
EETR Infrastructure loans 7,290,487 - - 7,290,487
HAth Others 69,504 - 2,221 71,725
10,167,193 3,844 7,722 10,178,759
YRR &) Impairment allowance
8Tk A4 Residential mortgage
portfolio (6,849) - - (6,849)
EEWR Infrastructure loans (52,940) - - (52,940)
EAth Others (259) - (1,594) (1,853)
(60,048) - (1,594) (61,642)
ik & Carrying amount 10,107,145 3,844 6,128 10,117,117

F+—-A=1+—H
As at 31 December 2023

RS R AN M HY  Loan portfolio at

i

F—HE
Stage 1
FBT

HK$'000

M E
Stage 2
FAET
HK$'000

E=MER

Stage 3
FAT

HK$'000

kB E amortised cost
UNETPE (=] Gross carrying amount
EERB\ETRAS Residential mortgage
portfolio 2,795,317 5,042 4,501 2,804,860
HETRR Infrastructure loans 7,361,398 - - 7,361,398
HAh Others 87,938 - 2,441 90,379
10,244,653 5,042 6,942 10,256,637
BB % Impairment allowance
I8 A4 Residential mortgage
portfolio (2,134) - - (2,134)
HETRR Infrastructure loans (22,555) - - (22,555)
HAh Others (184) - (1,347) (1,531)
(24,873) - (1,347) (26,220)
N E] Carrying amount 10,219,780 5,042 5,595 10,230,417
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F:%:@iﬂ—*ﬂi—t——ﬁ The impairment allowance for loan portfolio as at 31
B EY SR B A RE R S 5 E R December 2024 reconciles to the opening impairment
TE%&‘%ZXWHDT _ allowance as follows:

E-HE E-HEB E=HE E#
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

TR TR TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-Z-=F—F—HH#) Impairment allowance

maw as at 1 January 2023 13,222 5 1,447 14,674
EMER T RIER Loans purchased and repayment 10,033 - - 10,033
MR AR Net measurement of impairment
BEITE 2 arising from changes of stage - (5) - ()
RELRRZM Movement due to changes in
PR credit risk 1,618 - 217 1,835
CEEREEE Recoveries of loans not
written-off - - (32) 32)
11,651 (5) 185 11,831
BBEE_ME Transfer to stage 2 = = - -
HEBEE=MER Transfer to stage 3 = - - _
e Write-offs - - (285) (285)

—E-=F+_R Impairment allowance as at
:+ AR RER & 31 December 2023 (Note 20)

(F33£20) 24,873 - 1,347 26,220
EMER TSR RER Loans purchased and repayment 27,402 = = 27,402
NN ) e ) Net measurement of impairment
REITE P arising from changes of stage - 2 - 22
RfE 5 MR Movement due to changes in
FFERRZ) credit risk 7,773 - 264 8,037
CEEREEE Recoveries of loans not
written-off - = (39) (39)
35,175 22 225 35,422
EBREEZME Transfer to stage 2 = = - -
BHEE=MNE Transfer to stage 3 = 22) 22 -
iG] Write-offs = = - -

F-F-_ME+=-4 Impairment allowance
=+-—-HAHREKRE  asat31December

(B 20) 2024 (Note 20) 60,048 - 1,594 61,642
RRRER & Change in loan impairment
allowance 35,175 22 225 35,422
RREBFRE Net change in loan commitment
RRED)2H impairment allowance 2.211) = = 2,211
W el B # 4 B Recoveries of loans
previously written-off - - (128) (128)

THE-Z-_NF Total change in impairment
+=A=t+—H1EE allowance recognised
FREWINNAERE  in profit or loss for year
B3 B (K 14) ended 31 December 2024
(Note 14) 32,964 22 97 33,083

TEE-_F-_=F Total change in impairment
+ZA=+—BIEE alowance recognised
ﬂm/\ﬁﬁl)\ﬁ’lmﬁ%z% in profit or loss for year
2 (11 14) ended 31 December 2023
(Note 14) 18,710 (5) (327) 18,378
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ToE-mME+—HA=+—H
MIAEREHRERERES
HAIPDRE IR F X IR0 T

Cash and short-term funds

The impairment allowance for cash and short-
term funds as at 31 December 2024 reconciles to
the opening impairment allowance as follows:

FET
HK$'000

—E-=F—F—-HHREEKE  Impairment allowance as at 1 January 2023 3,104
B T HERIAR RV ER 22 D) Change in the impairment allowance recognised

(fHE14) in profit or loss during the period (Note 14) 1,043
F_E—_=F+—_A=1+—HH Impairment allowance as at 31 December 2023

BB & (HE16) (Note 16) 4,147
HIN T HRaEMIARRER 2 Change in the impairment allowance recognised

(FfE14) in profit or loss during the period (Note 14) 1,502
F-_E_ME+=—HA=1+—HH Impairment allowance as at

BAEKZE (KX 16) 31 December 2024 (Note 16) 5,649

RESMHENKRRES A&
B AT 17 5T R B RTT SR F
B E RIS TTITRAVIRTT ©

RERBET — MR ERER -
ZREETENIRZHIF I
EBE AR R AR S E T
SIRLF 0 FREAREZEN
ZF IR ITINE - LA E R
BERENTHERTTR - A%
H B R HE £ IRE T s RExR
KR - B REMSAIE
R - R EE T AR
KFERNERAARELE
% o BHIEBR R AT ATIE
BREEBE -

According to the approved investment guidelines,
the Group can only place deposits with note-
issuing banks or banks with a certain minimum
credit rating.

The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the external credit rating of each
counterparty and the corresponding historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking macroeconomic data to determine the
ECLs for impairment allowance. The Group has
selected a range of possible economic outcomes,
based on outlook of global economy and relevant
economic indicators, taking into consideration
the impact of any special events, as the most
suitable views to the portfolio. A probability rate
table is set up to determine the probability rate
for the forward-looking views.
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All of these financial assets are considered to be
low risk in view of all deposit banks are rated at
investment grade by rating agencies, and thus
the impairment allowance recognised during the
period was limited to 12-month ECLs for stage 1.
During the year, the increase in the impairment
allowance was mainly due to the increase in
deposits with banks and there was no transfer to
stages 2 and 3.

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December
2023, the minimum acceptable short-term
credit ratings are A-2 (Standard and Poor's), P-2
(Moody's) and F-2 (Fitch's).

Investment securities

Investment securities are composed of debt
securities and investment funds, while debt
securities comprise conventional debt securities
and infrastructure-related bonds.

According to the approved investment
guidelines, conventional debt securities can only
be invested with a certain minimum credit rating.
The proportion of investments according to rating
categories is monitored and reviewed by ALCO.
Investment in infrastructure-related bonds which
are secured by project assets and other typical
security package for infrastructure financing, is
governed and monitored by IFSIC.



R IE IR AE BT R A48 B9 1T 5 The table below presents an analysis of debt

(FREER BEREE)NE securities by rating classification as at the end
T 9N ER A= BT AT R AR S A9 1T of the reporting period, based on external credit
REFIFITHIR BT - T rating agency’s ratings (Standard and Poor’s,
NERBRGRSEFRITER Moody's and Fitch's) or internal ratings based
RIEI T o QOIE 5 5% B 5 on the rating models provided by external credit
R AZITIESR - NRAIUE S % rating agency. In the absence of issue-specific
TAMIERZIR - ratings, the ratings for the issuers are reported.

UAFEEH B4 AR AR
TTARMEE FItkAViE 577
WHEMIEHRE Investment
Investment  securities at

securities at amortised B

FVOCI cost Total

FoP-mET=A=+-A FH FE Fi#
As at 31 December 2024 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA /Aaa AAA/Aaa 182,621 665,399 848,020
AA-Z AA+,/Aa3 E AaT AA-to AA+/Aa3 10 Aa1 2,745,410 6,790,367 9,535,777
A-ZEA+/A3EA A-to A+/A3 t0 A1 793,790 7,153,171 7,946,961
BBB* BBB* - 501,383 501,383
BE Total 3,721,821 15,110,320 18,832,141

* HEEHEXGH @ Infrastructure-related bonds

NRHEEE g AN
TTARMEE JIKEIEFR A

WS HIE 5 IR A Investment

Investment securities at
securities at amortised BN
FVOCI cost Total
FE-_=F+-A=+—H FHT FHT FHET
As at 31 December 2023 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAAAaa AAA/Aaa - 395,913 395,913
AA-Z AA+/Aa3 E Aal AA-t0 AA+/Aa3 t0 Aa1 1,622,326 3,878,862 5,501,188
A-EA+/A3ZEAT A- 10 A+/A3 t0 A1 887,211 10,303,881 11,191,092
SE Total 2,509,537 14,578,656 17,088,193

EBERBISERLAT —T-_mEEHR 291
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TREAEWIARERK FHIE
FRAMEERE DT o TH
W HEERREE_NERSE

The following table contains an analysis of the
credit risk exposure of investment securities
for which impairment allowance is recognised.

=HER o There was no transfer to stages 2 and 3 during
the period.
E—ME E-ME F=ME BE#
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F-B-ME+=-A=+—H TERT TERT TET FTHET
As at 31 December 2024 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TN =] Gross carrying amount
—UARFEEEITA  —FVOCI
Hi e ElEs 3,721,821 - - 3,721,821
— i A Rk AN I M — amortised cost 15,110,320 - - 15,110,320
HERS Impairment allowance
— IRMRRARTIE —amortised cost (4,850) - - (4,850)
ik E B Carrying amount
— URFEZREITA —FVOCI
A& EilEs 3,721,821 - - 3721821
— 1R AR T ik — amortised cost 15,105,470 = - 15,105,470
18,827,291 - - 18,827,291
E—MNE EME FEZME BE
NERCH Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
T=F==F+=R=+—H FHET FET FHET FHET
As at 31 December 2023 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
K E BB Gross carrying amount
—URFEEEITA  —FVOCI
H & EE 2,509,537 - - 2,509,537
— R AR — amortised cost 14,578,656 - - 14,578,656
EE F Impairment allowance
— IR A AN B i — amortised cost (4,671) - - (4,671)
MK E{E Carrying amount
— UAFEZAITA  —FVOCI
Hip 2wk 2,509,537 - - 2,509,537
— IRME R AT TR — amortised cost 14,573,985 - - 14,573,985
17,083,522 - - 17,083,522
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The impairment allowance for investment securities
as at 31 December 2024 reconciles to the opening
impairment allowance as follows:

E—ME E-ME BE=ME B
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

TAT TAT TAT TAET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T-2_=%—-H—H
COVERER

Impairment allowance
as at 1 January 2023

— URAFEEAITA —FVOCI
Hih 2 miz= 398 - - 398
— IRMEAERK ARSIk — amortised cost 4,582 = - 4,582
BRI Change in the impairment
BER &S allowance recognised in
profit or loss during the
period
— UAFEZAITA  —FVOCI (Note 14)
H 4 E s
(Fix14) 477 - = 477
— RS ARSIk — amortised cost
(5% 14) (Note 14) 89 - - 89
—E-=F+=H Impairment allowance
=+ BHMEKXRE asat31December 2023
—URFEEAITA —FVOCI
Hih2miz= 875 - - 875
— IR MAER ARSI — amortised cost
(BiFE21(c)) (Note 21(c)) 4,671 - - 4,671
B THaEmIAN Change in the impairment
BB RED allowance recognised in
profit or loss during the
period
— UAFEEAITA  —FVOCI (Note 14)
Hih e mEdEs
(PFiF7x14) 147 - = 147
— RS ARSIM  — amortised cost
(Fi7x14) (Note 14) 179 = - 179
F=Z=-WFE+=4 Impairment allowance
=+—B#REERKREZ asat 31 December
2024
— UAFEEHK — FVOCI
TTAEMEEKE 1,022 - - 1,022
— RME ARGk  — amortised cost
(BiFE 21(c)) (Note 21(c)) 4,850 - = 4,850
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%2 B X 2R 51 R A9 OF 55
SR BEETmRIELED
fFiEH TF -
F+-A=1+—HHWK
B BR AN 51 i O IIE 25 4%
REEKESHYRE
RENRLOE ¢

() Investment securities at amortised cost

Investment securities at amortised cost
include listed and unlisted debt securities. The
impairment allowance on investment securities
at amortised cost as at 31 December 2024
reconciles to the opening impairment allowance
as follows:

FTExT
HK$'000

F—FE-_=F—AF—H E’Jﬂ@?ﬂiﬂ Impairment allowance as at 1 January 2023 4,582
BN FImmmIAR B ER 225 Change in the impairment allowance
(FftE14) recognised in profit or loss during the
period (Note 14) 89
F_E—_=F+=-A=+—HH Impairment allowance as at 31 December
BB % (£ 21(c)) 2023 (Note 21(c)) 4,671
BN T IA BB E & Change in the impairment allowance
(BHE14) recognised in profit or loss during the
period (Note 14) 179
F-ZE-_mWE+=-A=+—HW Impairment allowance as at 31
BAEKE (KX 21(c)) December 2024 (Note 21(c)) 4,850

AEFHERBRIL N HKE
B ZEEETEAN
R 5 3 F #) N EB 45 BT 1T
TR NS DT R (R
HNERAS DT AT J LA 1R 4R
RUE R AR A 1T) SR AR KL
MEAEERS ML
FHREEERUNLF
WIEHTIHE  ATE
BREEXBNMBERS
o REHRERIESIR
255 B = KA KA T8
br o HEEREMEFRSE
1¢E’JE7HF]F ®EET
BEMAFTERNB X
mFLé B 2l
m*ﬁ%%z‘%uﬁ'ﬁﬁl EHE
EEEBE o

The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the external credit rating or
internal credit rating (based on rating model
provided by external credit rating agency) of each
counterparty and the corresponding historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking macroeconomic data to determine the
ECLs for impairment allowance. The Group has
selected a range of possible economic outcomes,
based on outlook of global economy and relevant
economic indicators, taking into consideration
the impact of any special events, as the most
suitable views to the portfolio. A probability rate
table is set up to determine the probability rate
for the forward-looking views.
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(ii)

All of these investment securities carried at
amortised cost are considered with no significant
increase in credit risk as at 31 December 2024,
and thus the impairment allowance recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2024 was limited
to 12-month ECLs under Stage 1. During the
year, the increase in the impairment allowance
was mainly due to the increase in investment
securities at amortised cost.

Investment securities at FVOCI

Investment securities at FVOCI include listed
and unlisted debt securities. The impairment
allowance on investment securities at FVOCI as
at 31 December 2024 reconciles to the opening
impairment allowance as follows:

FHT
HK$°000

F-E-_=%—HF—H

Impairment allowance recognised

TEHA 2 EIEHIANEELRZ  In0Clas at 1January 2023 398
B T IAR R (E R 222 Change in the impairment allowance
(BHE14) recognised in profit or loss during the
period (Note 14) 477
F=E=_=F+=RA=+—8H Impairment allowance recognised
T E Ath 2 UGS AR R (E R % in OCl as at 31 December 2023 875
BN THREBIANRELR ZZD) Change in the impairment allowance
(B$E14) recognised in profit or loss during the
period (Note 14) 147
Fo-E-_NE+=-H=+—H Impairment allowance recognised
THLEBREHIANREKE in OCI as at 31 December 2024 1,022
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The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the external credit rating of each
counterparty and the corresponding historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking macroeconomic data to determine the
ECLs for impairment allowance. The Group has
selected a range of possible economic outcomes,
based on outlook of global economy and relevant
economic indicators, taking into consideration
the impact of any special events, as the most
suitable views to the portfolio. A probability rate
table is set up to determine the probability rate
for the forward-looking views.

All of these financial assets are considered to
be low risk in view of all investment securities
at FVOCI are rated at investment grade by rating
agencies, and thus the impairment allowance
recognised for the year ended 31 December
2024 was limited to 12-month ECLS under Stage 1.
During the year, the increase in the impairment
allowance was mainly due to the increase in
investment securities at FVOCI.

In preparing the ECL, Credit Committee had formed
three forward-looking views (that is good, normal and
bad) based on market conditions, real economies
and a designated period of historical macroeconomic
variables to formulate the probability rating for three
scenarios (that is optimistic, base and pessimistic)
under each forward-looking view. The good view
assumed a high probability of optimistic scenario
outcome whereas the bad view assumed a high
probability of pessimistic scenario outcome. A
designated period of historical data that covers peaks
and troughs of economic cycles were selected to
ensure the selection of scenarios stays unbiased.
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The weightings assigned to each economic
scenario, base, pessimistic and optimistic as at
31 December 2024, were maintained at the same
weightings as at 31 December 2023 in view of
market conditions, for the Group’s infrastructure
loans, deposits and debt investments, of which
the impairment allowance is provided based on
credit ratings (either external or internal) and
forms the majority of total impairment allowance.

(e)  Sensitivity analysis of ECL

The Group applies three alternative macro-
economic scenarios (base, pessimistic and
optimistic scenarios) on the forward-looking
views to reflect probability-weighted range
of possible future outcomes in estimating
ECL. The table below provides approximate
levels of provisions of impairment under the
normal, bad and good forward-looking views
for the infrastructure loans, deposits and debt
investment portfolio of the Group:

2024 2023
SHRFHER
SREZH S

Amount
change from

EIRTHAE DT
STIRE I
Amount
change from

the reported ECL the reported ECL

ECL:

F#&xT FHTT

HK$'000 HK$'000

B, CRd) #hn,/ Ch)

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)

— normal view (32,965) (16,541)
— bad view - -
— good view (39,200) (20,078)

EBRBISERLT —T-_mEEHR 297



SREMEIREME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(H ERITFAFEERBREME (f)  Maximum exposures to credit risk of the financial
TTRHEEMBERET - AEFHS assets of the Group before taking into account of
BB M = 15 BT UG 5 H ik collateral held or other credit enhancements are
[H &5 - equal to their gross carrying amounts.
@ ERRERR (g Credit-impaired loans
2024 2023
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
RERTES B Gross impaired loan portfolio 2,221 2,441
BRERKIFRE Allowance for loan impairment in
KE— F=NE respect of such advances — Stage 3 (1,594) (1,347)
627 1,094
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There were no credit-impaired loans for the
residential mortgage portfolio as at 31 December
2024 and 31 December 2023. Allowance for loan
impairment is assessed after taking into account
of collateral held for impaired loans.

Repossessed properties

The Group obtained assets by taking possession
of collateral held as security.

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as
practicable, with the proceeds used to reduce
the outstanding indebtedness and are classified
in the statement of financial position within “Other
assets”. If excess funds arise after repayment
of the outstanding indebtedness, they are
distributed to the beneficiaries of the assets
under the applicable laws.
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3.3. Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the
risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate,
currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to
general and specific market movements and changes in the
level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest
rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity
prices. The Group’s exposures to market risk primarily arise
from the interest rate management of the entity’s financial
instruments of different repricing characteristics, or from the
net exposure of the foreign currency denominated financial
instruments. The Group hedges a major proportion of its
existing interest rate risk of the fixed-rate bond issuance
using fair value hedges in the form of interest rate swaps
by swapping into floating-rate funding to better match the
floating-rate assets. The Group also hedges the net exposure
of the foreign-currency denominated debts issued and
assets by the use of cross-currency swaps as fair value
hedges and economic hedges respectively.

The management of market risk is principally undertaken
by the Treasury Department using risk limits approved
by the Board of Directors. Strategies on interest rate
risk management, financing, hedging, investments are
formulated by ALCO. Regular meetings are held to review
the latest conditions in the financial markets and the asset-
liability portfolio mix. The Treasury Department is responsible
for monitoring financial market movements and executing
transactions in the cash, derivatives, debt and investment
markets in accordance with the strategies laid down by
ALCO. The middle office monitors the compliance of risk
limits and performs stress tests to assess the potential size
of losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The results
of the stress tests are reviewed by ALCO.
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A principal part of the interest rate risk management is to
monitor the sensitivity of projected net interest income under
different interest rate scenarios and to mitigate the negative
impact through hedging operations. A 20 basis points parallel
downward shift of the interest rate curve as at 31 December
2024 would increase the future net interest income for the
next twelve months by less than HK$1 million (2023: less
than HK$1 million) and decrease by less than HK$1 million
(2023: less than HK$1 million) for a similar upward parallel
shift.

As at 31 December 2024, if interest rates at that date had
experienced a 20 basis points parallel shift downwards, profit
for the year would have been higher by around HK$30 million
(2023: HK$39 million) and the fair value reserve would have
been higher by around HK$20 million (2023: HK$14 million) as
at 31 December 2024. If interest rates had experienced a 20
basis points parallel shift upwards, profit for the year would
have been lower by HK$30 million (2023: HK$39 million) and
the fair value reserve would have been lower by around
HK$19 million (2023: HK$14 million).

As at 31 December 2024, with all other variables held
constant, if the Hong Kong dollars had weakened by 100
price interest points against the US dollars, profit for the
year would have been around HK$14 million higher (2023:
HK$10 million). Conversely, if the Hong Kong dollars had
strengthened by 100 price interest points against the US
dollars, profit for the year would have been around HK$14
million lower (2023: HK$10 million).

As at 31 December 2024, with all other variables held
constant, if the Hong Kong dollars had weakened by 100
price interest points against foreign currencies other than US
dollars, profit for the year would have been higher by HK$0.2
million (2023: HK$0.5 million). Conversely, if the Hong Kong
dollars had strengthened by 100 price interest points against
foreign currencies other than US dollars, profit for the year
would have been lower by HK$0.2 million (2023: HK$0.5
million).
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The Group is exposed to financial risk arising from changes
in the rate of return on the placements with the Exchange
Fund, which is set annually (the placements include
Investment Portfolio which rate of return will reset in January
while the return of Long-Term Growth Portfolio will only be
available in March in the following year). As at 31 December
2024, if there were an increase/decrease of 0.1% in the
current year rate of return, it is estimated that, with all
other variables held constant, the Group's income from the
placements with the Exchange Fund would have increased/
decreased by approximately HK$38 million (2023: HK$34
million).

As at 31 December 2024, with all other variables held
constant, if the price of exchange-traded funds had
decreased by 1%, profit for the year would have been around
HK$0.1 million lower (2023: HK$0.1 million). Conversely, if the
price of exchange-traded funds had increased by 1%, profit
for the year would have been around HK$0.1 million higher
(2023: HK$0.1 million).

The increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates, exchange rates and equity prices for a 12-month
period.

An analysis showing the impact of interest rate curve
movement on profit before tax and equity driven by
insurance and reinsurance contracts is included in Note
3.3(0).

(@) Foreign currency exposure

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations
in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rate on
its financial position and cash flows. The Board sets
allowable currencies for investment purposes. The
ALCO sets limits on the currency exposure that may be
undertaken, which is monitored daily. At funding side,
the multi-currency feature of the MTN programme
enables the Group to issue notes in major currencies,
including US dollars, renminbi, Singapore dollars, British
pounds, Australian dollars, Euro and Japanese yen. All
foreign currency-denominated debts are hedged into
Hong Kong dollars or US dollars.
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The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency exchange rate risk. Included in the

BRF=S5 5065 - HiRE MM tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,
D o categorised by currency.

B

HKD
TER
HK$'000

E
usD
TER
HK$'000

Htshm
Other foreign
currencies
TEx
HK$'000

=%
Total
TRT
HK$'000

FoE-NE As at 31 December 2024
T=A=t-8
SRR Financial assets
NekEBre Cash and short-term funds 51,641,868 992,467 12,8471 52,647,182
R4 B RO Interest and remittance
receivables 2,200,462 741,030 279,887 3,221,379
fTEemIA Derivative financial instruments 664,618 - - 664,618
BRREAESEER  Loans with 100% guarantee
)69 from the Government 82,782,698 - - 82,782,698
AR ST Loan portfolio, net
—URTEEEITA —FPL
M 2,596,858 - - 2,596,858
— RPE SRR AN 5t — amortised cost 3,539,734 5,511,228 1,066,155 10,117,117
IFRIRA - Investment securities:
—URTEREITA  —FOCl
A2 E ks 494,313 2,159,566 1,067,942/M0 3,721,821
—URTEEEITA —FPL
M 1,318 8,456 - 9,774
— SRR SR AN 5t — amortised cost 1,846,188 12,277,696 981,5867AA 15,105,470
INCEETH Placements with the Exchange
Fund 49,244,684 - - 49,244,684
&e REMR> Deposits and other assets 71,423 308,900 88 380,411
SRAFREA Total financial assets 195,084,164 21,999,343 3,408,505 220,492,012
SRR Financial liabilities
R 8 Interest payable 2,454,023 612,558 275,743 3,342,324
MATIRIR » RHFF Y Accounts payable, accrued
REMS expenses and other liabilities 2,210,375 1,922,291 = 4,132,666
fTESRTA Derivative financial instruments 1,740,649 - - 1,740,649
BRIIRSIES Debt securities issued 103,576,603 26,302,558* 18,420,475** 148,299,636
SRAGEH Total financial liabilities 109,981,650 28,837,407 18,696,218 157,515,275
BRAM Net position® 60,992,512 (6,838,064)  (15,287,713) 38,866,735
RERGRINE Off-balance sheet net notional
ZUHLH position* (34,136,902) 18,058,822 15,241,661 (836,419)
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Amounts included cash and short-term funds in Australian
dollars of HK$12 million and renminbi of HK$0.4 million.

Amounts included loan portfolio, net at amortised cost in
Australian dollars of HK$1.1 billion.

Amounts included investment securities at FVOCI in renminbi
of HK$1.1 billion.

Amounts included investment securities at amortised cost in
renminbi of HK$0.5 billion and Euro of HK$0.4 billion.

Fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.

Amounts included debt securities issued in Australian dollars of
HK$0.6 billion and renminbi of HK$17.6 billion, fully hedged into
Hong Kong dollars.

“Net position” represents the difference between total assets
and total liabilities.

"Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the
difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements and their
fair values.
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BT

HKD
A7
HK$'000

e
usb
THL
HK$'000

Hfohm
Other foreign
currencies
TET
HK$'000

Total
TET
HK$'000

F-E-_=F As at 31 December 2023
+-A=+-H
ERTT Financial assets
NekEgfine Cash and short-term funds 49,456,853 2,326,572 37,6217 51,821,051
RIS ROL R Interest and remittance
receivables 1,756,009 1,123,738 490,631 3,370,378
fTHEERMIA Derivative financial instruments 828,542 - - 828,542
B EE EAR  Loans with 100% guarantee from
5T the Government 97,362,356 - - 97,362,356
TRAER B Loan portfolio, net
—UAYEZHITA  —FVPL
g 1,907,045 - - 1,907,045
— RMESERARGIE  —amortised cost 3,523,735 5,520,608 1,186,074/1 10,230,417
AR Investment securities:
—URFEZHITA  —FVOCl
Hit 2 mE e - 1,785,727 723,810 2,509,537
—UAYEEHITA  —FVPL
7 1,308 8,562 - 9,870
— RMESERARGIE  —amortised cost 3,709,195 9,378,134 1,486,656MA 14,573,985
INCESTER Placements with the
Exchange Fund 34,070,393 - - 34,070,393
e REMAT Deposits and other assets 1,050,545 523,531 91 1,574,167
SRR LA Total financial assets 193,665,986 20,666,872 3,924,883 218,257,741
ERAGR Financial liabilities
NATFIE Interest payable 2,153,898 1,057,906 472,611 3,684,415
NATIRIR ~ RTFF S K Accounts payable, accrued
Hibffn expenses and other liabilities 3,067,433 1,040,036 - 4,107,469
TESMTA Derivative financial instruments 2,825,522 - - 2,825,522
BERITRFIEH Debt securities issued 105,581,434 30,424,259* 25,712,804** 161,718,497
SRAGKEHM Total financial liabilities 113,628,287 32,522,201 26,185,415 172,335,903
Boam Net position* 61,242,817 (11,855,329) (22,260,532) 27,126,956
RERRING Off-balance sheet net notional
B/ position® (44,000,532 20,124,483 22,221,762 (1,654,287)
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A Amounts included cash and short-term funds in Australian
dollars of HK$34 million and renminbi of HK$4 million.

AN Amounts included loan portfolio, net at amortised cost in
Australian dollars of HK$1.2 billion.

AAN- Amounts included investment securities at amortised cost in
renminbi of HK$1.5 billion.

S Fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.

* Amounts included debt securities issued in Australian dollars of
HK$1.2 billion and renminbi of HK$24.3 billion, fully hedged into
Hong Kong dollars.

# “Net position” represents the difference between total assets
and total liabilities.

# “Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the
difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements and their
fair values.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value
interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group takes on exposure to the
effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates on both its fair value and cash flow risks.
Interest margins may increase as a result of such
changes but may reduce or create losses in the event
that unexpected movements arise. The ALCO sets
limits on the level of interest rate mismatch that may
be undertaken, which is monitored regularly.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to
interest rate risks. Included in the tables are the assets
and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the
earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates. The
carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to reduce the Group's
exposure to interest rate movements, are included
under the heading “Non-interest bearing”.
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-MBRE  EABBE -k
L0 E-F it Fitg
-l Over Over Over BENE Non-

Upto  1monthto 3 monthsto 1year to Over interest
1month 3 months 1 year 5 years 5 years hearing Total
T#n Tén Tén Thn Tén Thr Tén
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FoE-mE+-R=+-H As at 31 December 2024

SRR Financial assets
NeREERE Cash and short-term funds 24,421,783 27,881,330 - - - 344,069 52,647,182
LGNS Interest and remitance
receivables - - - - - 339 3221319
fEeRTE Derivative financlal instruments - - - - - 664,618 664,618
B REE D BRROAR Loans witf 100% guarantee
from the Government 82,782,698 - - - - - 82,782,698
THEA A Loan portfolio, net
—UAFETKIASS —FVPL 225,843 - - 33034 2,337,981 - 2,596,858
— SRR AR — amortised cost 5383365 2077927 2,062,443 340 593,042 - 107117
EFRR Investment securities:
—UAFERHIr AR 2 ESE  —FVOC 212,175 233,278 592,321 2,526,782 97,265 - 3721821
—ATERKI ARG —FVPL - - - - - 9774 9,774
— AR Ak — amortised cost 504,668 1,285,373 2,169,752 8,698,347 2,447,330 - 15,105,470
INCERRR Placements with the
Exchange Fund - - - - - 49,244,684 49,244,684
REREMAF Deposits and other assets 308,854 - - - - 71,557 380,411
SRAFEA Total financial assets 113,899,386 31477908 4824516 11258503 5475618 53,556,081 220,492,012
e i Financial liabilities
RftFIE Interest payable - - - - - 334234 3342324

MR MR REAGE  Accounts payable, acorued
expenses and other liabiliies 2,530,790 - - -

1601876 4,132,666

fTEERIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1740649 1,740,649
BRR% A Debt securities issued 4209731 25292645 34,290,741 77,962,455 6,544,064 - 148,299,636
SRARER Total financial liabilities 6,740,521 25,292,645 34,290,741 77,962,455 6,544,064 6,684,849 157,515,275
FlE SR ERD SR Total interest sensitivity gap* 107,158,865 6,185,263  (29,466,225) (66,703,952) (1,068,446

FEGTETE (B84 LEHM)  Interest rate derivatives (notional
amounts of net position) (9,833,311) (12,905912)  8,088484 11,677,601 2,136,719

* RITAPTESRITAXNE X717 & Before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments
ASIEHFEE SR © on the debt securities issued.
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L

ERE itk
—MAR Qver RENE Non-
Upto  Tmonthto  3monthsto Tyearto Over Interest st
1 month 3months 1 year 5years 5Yyears bearing Total
ThT T ThTL T Thr ThL
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FoEZZF1ZA=1-A As at 31 December 2023
SRR Financial assets
NeREERE Cash and short-term funds 16105303 35,219,605 - - - 436,43 51,821,051
G Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 3,310,378 3,370,378
fELBIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 828,542 828,512
BRRER D BERNAR Loans with 100% guarantee
from the Government 97,362,3% - - - - - 97,362,3%
WAL # Loan portfolio, net
—WATERKI ARG —FVPL 123982 = = 10478 1772625 = 1907,045
— RIS — amortised cost 5,760,482 2,705,732 1,150,741 3 573019 = 10,230417
EARA - Investment securitis:
—NATERHIr AR 2 ESE  —FOC - 93768 86,418 2,054,381 274970 - 2,509,537
—ATERKI ARG —FVPL - - - - - 9,870 9370
— IR A — amortised cost 78,081 651,720 5,165,533 5,504,348 3,174,303 = 14,573,985
NCERRR Placements with the
Exchange Fund - - - - - 34070393 34070393
REREMAT Deposits and other assets 523,485 - - - - 1,050,682 1,574,167
SHRFER Total financial assets 119,953,649 38,770825 6,402,692 7,569,650 5794917 39,766,008 218,257,741
a2l Financial liabiltes
RiftFIE, Interest payable - - - - - 3,684,415 3684415
AT At REMAR  Accounts payable, accrued
expenses and other liabiltties 2,761,647 - - - - 1,345,822 4,107,469
fThEeRIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 280552 2825522
BRTFR&R Debt securities issued 2,833208 50,261,710 55,784,241 49,158,797 3,680,541 - 161718497
PRAREE Total financial liabilities 5,994,855 50,261,710 95,784,241 49,158,797 3,680,541 7855759 172335903
HegmERn a5 Total nterestsensivy gaps 114358794 (11490885 (9381549  (M1589,147) 211436
FEGETE (B 058MALEH)  Interest rate derivatives (notional
amounts of net position) (6499,036) (15610349 5057,665 15,596,706 (199.273)
* RITAPTESRTAXNE X717 S Before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments

RS HEE LRI o on the debt securities issued.
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(0 RERERBRRESANIERRK (c) Interest rate risk on insurance and reinsurance
contracts
LA 94 TR AT B HAth 28 #hdRk The following analysis is performed for reasonably
BB TN HE g m possible movements in interest rate curve with all
BRI A ZFLT © BRIR other variables held constant, showing the impact on
B R BRBL & 40 B B B A& profit before tax and equity driven by insurance and
RN EEA T2 © reinsurance contracts.

AEHETTLEB/(TH): X BRB A0 X XM
BB R GIRE (BB (R
BANEE RR)GFE RR)GFE RR)HFNH

Impact on

profit  Impact on
Parallel upward/ Impacton  hefore tax equity  Impacton
(downward) shift of profit net of gross of equity net of
interest rate curve; before tax reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance
THET TET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BMER 25bp 511,664 432,302 659,888 432,302
25 MER (25)bp (534,788) (450,211) (695,738) (450,211)

MEME 1LY/ (TH) XERT A X E popta
NBRHET 55 (kRS (BfEE (0% E
BARFM  ®REOFW  ®RR)OFW  R/E)EFN

Impact on

profit Impact on
Parallel upward/ Impact on before tax equity Impact on
(downward) shift of profit net of gross of  equity net of
interest rate curve: beforetax  reinsurance  reinsurance  reinsurance
THx THT THT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

B ES 25bp 410,267 326,945 502,231 326,945
2N E = (25) bp (429,464) (340,548) (530,681) (340,548)
ERETROZIREE MR The impact shown in the above table covers entire
HE - BERF—Ho(EERZE insurance portfolio, part of which, mainly reverse
EZRBEZ)REAFETAE mortgage loans, are held in the loan portfolio of the

BT HEEFEE o Group at fair value.
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3.4. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk of the Group not being
able to repay its payment obligations or to fund committed
purchases of loans. Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring
the actual inflows and outflows of funds on a daily basis and
projecting longer-term inflows and outflows of funds across a
full maturity spectrum. The Group has established diversified
funding sources to support the growth of its business and
the maintenance of a balanced portfolio of liabilities. Sources
of liquidity are regularly reviewed by ALCO.

@)

Undiscounted cash flows analysis

The tables below present cash flows payable by
the Group under non-derivative financial liabilities,
derivative financial liabilities that will be settled on
a net basis, derivative financial instruments that will
be settled on gross basis, and insurance liabilities by
remaining contractual maturities as at the end of the
reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the tables
are the projected contractual undiscounted cash flows
including future interest, claims and benefits payments
as appropriate on the basis of their earliest possible
contractual maturity. The Group’s derivatives include
interest rate swaps that will be settled on net basis;
Cross currency swaps and currency forwards that will
be settled on gross basis.
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iy IFTETEISHEA Gnd) ()  Non-derivative cash inflows/(outflows)

-MBRE  EABME -ENE
Z=AB E-F gt
L Oover Over Over RENE

Upto  1monthto 3 monthsto 1 year to Over Jak i
1month 3 months 1year 5 years 5 years Total
TiEn TiEn TR TiEn TiEn T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-F-mE+=-A=+-B  Asat31December 2024

il Liabilities

RIfT0EIR » BT R Accounts payable,

Eftifz accrued expenses

and other liabilities

— RSt — lease liabiltes (4,648) (9297  (41837)  (131,32) (5757)  (1923866)
RBA A Instrance contract iabilities (132,437)  (244,006)  (1,112,028)  (5,645880) (27,442,513) (34,576,864)
BRESAM Reinsurance contract liabilties (1,115) (2,233) (6,256) (54156)  (275:869)  (339,629)
BRITRSIES Debt securiies issed

— 5 eHn — principal portion (3,912,281) (23,421,321) (35,032,647) (79,729,622)  (6,697,163) (148,793,034)
— 85 — nterest portion (198971)  (1,899,583)  (3491,350)  (6784,746)  (1,628,996) (14,003,646)

(4,249,452)  (25,576,440) (39,684,118)  (92,345,731)  (36,050,298) (197,906,039)

A —FNE
=14 B
—M AR Over Over Over AENE

Upto Tmonthto 3 months to 1yearto QOver
1 month 3months 1 year 5years 5years
BT T TAr TAT TEL

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

“E-CEF-A=+—H  Asat31December 2023

i Liabilities
R B R Accounts payable,

Eftiifz accrued expenses

and other liabilities

— kR — ease liabiltties (2,3%9) (8716) (34,671) (147 456) (28783) (217,984)
REANAR Instrance contract liabilities 1,209 (272,887) (745731 (4,109.907)  (20584627)  (25711943)
BRRA ARG Reinsurance contract liabilities 4570 987) (4,380) 21,6%) (65,158) (87,648)
BRIT5%iER Debt securities issued

—1e3n — principal portion (1834,661)  (46,322548)  (57,514,499) (51,818 468) (3,870,511)  (161,360,687)

—HEHA — interest portion (126337 (2380489 (3430233 (3684544 (1351395  (10,97299)

(1957,577)  (48981,627)  (61729514)  (59,782,068)  (25,900,474)  (198,351,260)
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iy PTEIEIESHRACRt) (i) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)

-MEME  EABME —ENE
E=AB B-F gt
-MAR Over Over Over RENE

Upto  1monthto 3 monthsto 1 year to Over k.1
1month 3 months 1year 5 years 5 years Total
TERT TAn TAR TER TAn TAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-E-mE+-A=+-H  Asat31December 2024

BT ELER Derivative financial
fTEeHTA: instrument settled:
—AHEE — on net basis (193,100) (3,649) 68,577 (205,674) (18,883) (352,729)
—RHEE — 0N gross hasis
pihigex Total outflow (2,612,157)  (9,358,072) (14,355,600) (37,833,127)  (4,442,210) (68,601,166)
RALH Total inflow 2,399,452 9,241,245 14,218,156 37,971,719 4,323,924 68,154,496

(405,805) (120,476) (68,867) (67,082) (137,169) (799,399)

—MAKRE AY —Ep b
E=1A = BhfF
—MNAR QOver Over AEE

Upto Tmonthto  3months to 1year to QOver BA

1 month 3months 1year 5years 5years Total
AL 7 TAL TAL TAT TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-E-=F+-F=F-H  Asat31December 2023

BT ELER Derivative financial
ITESBTE: instrument settled:
—AHEE — on net basis (160,101) (8,970) 386,224 (57,049 (35,299) 124,805
—BHEE — 0N gross hasis
Jiolrgei Total outflow (980472 (30720341)  (11,389.8200  (32.812,102) (2,870,885 (78,773,620)
N Total inflow 892,614 30,301,411 11,047,507 32,766,483 2883 774 77,891,789

(247,99) (427,900) 4391 (102,668) (22410 (757,026)
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EH A D
TRIRERE Jﬁi? é’b'JHH
BRIRER - DM BRRA>

I ERA R -

()

g
Repayable

on demand
TET
HK$'000

Maturity analysis

The table below analyses the assets and liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date.

-MRE  EAAMRE
Z=/MA 2-F
Over Over
1monthto 3 months to
3 months 1 year
T T
HK$'000  HK$'000

—ENE
E3ik3
Over
1yearto
5 years
T
HK$'000

-MBA
Upto
1 month
TET
HK$'000

IFENULE
Over

5 years
THT
HK$'000

TR B
Undated Total
TR TR
HK$'000  HK$'000

FIRIEETZAZT-A As at 31 December 2024
#= Assets
NAREMAS (5 Cash and short-term funds (gross) 913,754 23,854,077 27,885,000 - - - - 52,652,831
HRRERSRA “M Loans with 100% guarantee
from the Government 42,060 1179226 1,803,777 8,549,097 41,141,100 30,067,438 - 82,782,698
‘ﬁ?ﬂ Loan portfolio
AATEZ ARG —FVPL - - - - - - 2,596,858 2,596,858
—rmﬁﬁmmﬁ(,@@@ — amortised cost (gross) 312 126069 118207 632746 3811014 5490076 335 10,178,759
EHER Investment securities
—WATERHIT AR AR —FVOC - 155,098 - 592,321 2,877,137 97,265 - 3721821
—DATEELIT AR —FVPL - - - - - - 9,774 9,774
— BRI (550 — amortised cost (gross) - 232882 8,584 2,292,098 9823178 2,753,578 - 15110320
INLELEH Placements with the Exchange Fund - - - 377157 14,743,389 30,730,138 - 49,044,684
956,126 25,547,352 29,815,568 15,837,419 72,395818 69,138,495 2,606,967 216,297,745
ik Liabilities
BRAIREIEH Debt securities issued - 3909800 23373275 35090701 79,381,796 6,544,064 - 148,299,636
- 3909800 23373275 35090701 79,381,796 6,544,064 - 148,299,636

Hlee 38
Repayable
on demand

i

E3ik3

—MAW Over Over
1 month to

RENE
Upto 3monthsto  1yearto Over i k1]
Tmonth  3month 1year 5 years 5years Undated Total
TAT TAL AT TAT TAL AL THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F=E==%+-A=1-H As at 31 December 2023
7 Assets
NeREHRS (L 5ﬁ) Cash and short-term funds (gross) 1128772 15413817 35282609 - - - - 51825198
BRRERHBRRHTR Loans with 100% guarantee
from the Government 46,102 1,075,873 1816511 9651688 49444714 35327 468 - 97,362,3%
ﬁﬁiﬁA Loan portfolio
AR TEEM I ARE —FVPL - - - - - - 1907045 1,907,045
= }* ARG (250) — amortised cost (gross) 919 116963 19081 507763 4066023 5405626 2% 10256637
IEFRA Investment secrities
—UATERHITAR4EKE —FVOC = = 93,763 86,418 2,054,381 274970 = 2,509,537
—RATEEHIARE —FVPL - - - - - - 9870 9870
— SRR (350) — amortised cost (gross) = 78083 558082 5166868 5600134 3175509 - 1457865
WNELER Placements with the Exchange Fund - - - 6190546 12958372 14921475 - 34070393
1175793 16684736 37910051 21603263 74123624 59,105,048 1917171 212,519,692
il Liabilities
BRAIRSILH Debt securities issued = 2833208 46240752  57,084223  51879,773 3,680,541 - 161,718,497
= 2833208 46240752  57,084223  51879,773 3,680,541 - 161,718,497
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Apart from the above, interest and remittance
receivables, prepayments and other assets, interest
payable, accounts payable, accrued expenses and
current tax liabilities are expected to be recovered or
settled within twelve months from the reporting date.
Other assets and liabilities included in the consolidated
statement of financial position are expected to be
recovered or settled in a period more than twelve
months after the reporting date.

In addition, the Exchange Fund has committed to
providing the Group with a HK$80 billion revolving
credit under the Revolving Credit Facility since 2020,
which enables the Group to maintain smooth operation
under exceptional circumstances, so that it can better
fulfil its mandate to promote banking and financial
stability in Hong Kong.
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3.5. Risks arising from insurance contracts

(@)

Insurance contracts and reinsurance contracts

Through its general insurance subsidiary, the Group
provides mortgage insurance cover to participating
lenders for first credit losses, in general, of up to 50%
of the property value of a residential mortgage loan in
Hong Kong with loan-to-value ratio 90% or below at
origination, or other thresholds as specified from time
to time. The general insurance subsidiary also provides
insurance cover in respect of reverse mortgage loans
originated by participating lenders and secured on
residential properties and, if applicable, other assets,
and in respect of policy reverse mortgage loans
originated by participating lenders and secured on
life insurance policies. Through its life subsidiary, the
Group offers annuity product to personal customers.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the
possibility that the insured event occurs and the
uncertainty of the amount of the resulting claim. By
the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk is
random and therefore unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory
of probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the
principal risk that the Group faces under its insurance
contracts is that the actual claims exceed the carrying
amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur
because the frequency or severity of claims are greater
than estimated. Insurance events are random and the
actual number and amount of claims and benefits will
vary from year to year from the estimate established
using statistical technigues.

314  The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2024



Fit - AERAERHESRR
T :

. Pl NI XS — REE
Bxe THERNEN
RS

e BTN —RIRART
& HE R (AR T30 HA i ik
PRIRAKHI KRS

. FERE — AFEZELR
SR = £ B K
XS

o BFEANR — RIBIT
RELHNE K

s  REFAARKNRK
FAL) — EARERF
BAREZLR (RMIRR)
SIE R [ i aE K Rk
B R o

REHFK B IR NTIRE B H
fif F A SEE R WRR AR
MnfR - BRREANER S
ToAE - AR R D o K e
B R 22 14 7 AT O AR R
KA AR SR B 15 5| A A R {58
RmohBREZHRE - It
SN ZFRIZ2RYE AT
ZRMTAEE R

Accordingly, the main risks that the Group is exposed
to are, as follows:

o property price risk — risk of outstanding loan is
higher than value of collateral;

. mortality risk — risk of loss arising from the
incidence of policyholder death being later than
expectation;

3 expense risk — risk of loss arising from expense
experience being different from expectation;

. loan default risk — risk of default of repayment
to mortgage loan; and

3 policyholder decision risk (non-death termination)
— risk of loss arising due to policyholder
experiences (lapses and surrenders) being
different from expectation.

The Group aims to ensure that sufficient reserves are
available to cover the liabilities associated with the
insurance that it issues. The risk exposure is mitigated
by diversification across the portfolios of insurance
contracts. The variability of risks is also improved by
careful selection and implementation of underwriting
strategy guidelines, as well as the use of outwards
reinsurance arrangements. In addition, the assumptions
are reviewed regularly with regular experience studies
conducted.
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The Group purchases reinsurance as part of its risk
mitigation measures. The reinsurance contract is quota
share reinsurance which is taken out to reduce the
overall exposure of the Group to certain classes of
business. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are
estimated in @ manner consistent with the underlying
insurance contract liabilities and in accordance with
the reinsurance contracts.

The Group's placement of reinsurance is diversified as
far as practicable to avoid being dependent on a single
reinsurer or a single reinsurance contract. The Group
conducts comprehensive assessment including the
financial strength and credit ratings of the reinsurers in
accordance with the reinsurance policy under the Risk
Management Framework. The approved reinsurers are
subject to periodic reviews.

The Group monitors closely and review regularly on
the exposure to key insurance risks. The nature of the
Group’s exposure to insurance risks and its objectives,
policies and processes used to manage and measure
the risks have not changed from the previous period.
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(b) BRE (b) Sensitivities

L‘ATﬁ(E‘%'I‘EﬁTﬁEa—-\EFﬁﬁE The following sensitivity analysis shows the impact
ﬁﬂﬁlﬁfﬂ%?jﬁ’]l B EE (gross and net of reinsurance held) on CSM, profit
R & 32 Al BE LB & LI AR before tax and equity for reasonably possible

S U - R AT P R AR 2
B (i A BREN B 2T
D L

movements in key assumptions with all other
assumptions held constant. The correlation of

BRI B AT - B assumptions will have a significant effect in determining
jlglEBHX{Exlxmﬁ-{{ﬁﬁ.#i% the ultimate impacts, but to demonstrate the impact
S0 - MR AN BB M A B due to changes in each assumption, assumptions
1% o BT Z LIRS T E had to be changed on an individual basis. It should be
G BIRE AR IS IRTES noted that movements in these assumptions are non-
HTAYE TR IR M A o linear. Sensitivity information will also vary according

to the current economic assumptions.

EERRAN Insurance contracts issued

HBRAER  WERHERR i R
(NRBRE) (BEERR) (NRERR) (BEERR)
Rigxk 2 HEN e 2

Impacton  Impacton  Impacton Impact
profit before  profit before equity on equity
Changein  taxnetof tax gross of net of gross of
HK$'000 assumptions* reinsurance  reinsurance  reinsurance  reinsurance

MINEERB DL Property price growth
percentage -0.5%  (1,747,881)  (1,795,057)  (1,486,789)  (1,426,673)
AR Mortality rates -10.0% (784,932) (785,090) (706,880) (678,761)
% Expenses +100%  (101,587) (101,587) (96,653) (96,653)
LS Default rates +10.0% (2,988) (3,371) (2,907) (3,281)
FRTAI % Non-death termination rates +10.0% 13,254 13,238 11,259 10,287

Insurance contracts issued

: ( ; (R
fRIREA * HEm
\mpacton \mpacton \mpacton Impact on
profitbefore  profit before equity equity
Change in taxnetof  taxgrossof net of gr0ss of
HK$'000 assumptions*  reinsurance  reinsurance  rensurance  reinsurance
MINEERE L Property price growth
percentage 0.5% (1,701,190) (1,703,495) (1,470,814) (1,377,094)
AR Mortality rates -10.0% (674,531) (674,797) (619132) (599,680)
% Expenses +10.0% (62,465) (62,528) (58,079) (58,143)
RYR Default rates +10.0% (2,654) (2,953 (2,434) (2,765)
E A g Non-death termination rates +10.0% 11,592 11,581 10292 9.708
* LERFTRBRIRE A H R0 &= * The impact on change in the assumptions shown in the above
%IA i@ i;%g EP); jﬂqr table covers entire insurance portfolio, part of which, mainly
& ;{K ;Z. Bl &) ﬁ; 4 f:;ﬁ reverse mortgage loans, are held in the loan portfolio of the
Ao Group at fair value.
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3.6. Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

3.6. EMErFRAGHLATE
(@ AFEMIt (@) Fair value estimation

TRINREAFEREGE
TEBE)WIANERTA -

The following table shows financial instruments
recognised at fair value, by valuation method.

2024
g-R £k %= ot 1] £ £ E=R ok
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level1 Level2 Level3 Total
iR TEr TER iR THL 7 Tar
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
&= Assets
fESRIA Derivative financial instruments - 664,618 - 664,618 - 828,542 - 808,542
REAR ST Loan portfolio, net
—UATFETHITARE —FVPL - - 2596858 2,596,858 - - 1,907,045 1,907,045
IE5RA Investment securities
—UATEEHITA  —FOCl
EfreEkE 3,605,206 116,615 - 318 2,509,537 - - 2,509,537
—WATERHIA —FWPL
bitad 9,774 - - 9,774 9870 = = 9870
INLEEER Placements with the Exchange Fund - - 09,244,684 49,244,684 - - 3070393 34070393
3,614,980 781,233 51,841,542 56,237,755 2,519,407 828,542 35,977,438 39,325,387
bl Liabilities
FTESHIA Derivative financial instruments - 1,740,649 - 1,740,649 - 2,825,522 - 2825522

TAREE F-R5F-FN
ERMTRZEFRBREE - I§
THEARERHE=Z -

iy F—EHemIA

TEBRMIZRZ 50 E 8
TH HRFELIRE
s B e R o
ART I RIEAIAR 5
0 E B 3 M X B P
RGR - Z8 - 17l
= EMRS A
EHAERF ] - 1%
SENMARBAFEE -
KR AE BT KR
Z e MRRBAFEITE
MR HAGRE — DR
ANMBHAN - XD
REZMEEKN N ER&EE
RERAFEONE - K
ZARITERATFE- M
XERTEARKBEES
7%"

There was no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 nor
transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the reporting date. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm'’s length basis. If an asset or a liability
measured at fair value has a bid price and an
ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread
that is most representative of fair value in the
circumstances shall be used to measure fair
value. These instruments are included in Level 1.
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Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 2 derivatives comprise interest rate swaps,
currency swaps and currency forwards. These
derivatives are fair valued using forward interest
rates and forward exchange rates, if applicable,
from observable yield curves.

Level 2 debt securities are fair valued using
quoted market prices in less active markets, or if
not available, a discounted cash flow approach,
which discounts the contractual cash flows using
discount rates derived from observable market
prices of other quoted debt instruments of the
counterparties.
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(iii)

Financial instruments in Level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in Level 3.

Loan portfolio at FVPL

Certain loan portfolio accounted for at fair value
through profit or loss at consolidation level is
included in Level 3 with fair value determined
by using an internal model based on income
approach by discounting future cash flows
which are dependent on the expected terms
of the loans, annuity payout, premium and
interest income, loan repayment and the value of
collaterals (for example, the residential properties
or insurance policies securing the loans). The
Group is exposed mainly to collateral risk arising
from drop in residential property price. The
information of sensitivity to long term property
price growth assumption is included in Note
3.5(b).

Placements with the Exchange Fund

The placements with the Exchange Fund,
accounted under fair value through profit or loss,
are included in Level 3 with fair value determined
by reference to the principal amount and the
estimated rates of investment return.

Movement in Level 3 fair value measurement as

BEITEZFPAT : follows:
2024 2023
UAFEELITA IMLES ULFEZLITA INCES
RENRRAS R DelRFds T3
Loan Placements with Loan  Placements with
portfolio  the Exchange portfolio the Exchange
at FVPL Fund at FVPL Fund
TR TEL TEL TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F=J=F Asat 1 January 1,907,045 34,070,393 1,225,736 32,798 933*
TUTRIARIAMYEE  Gains and losses recognised in
R5H
—Ha (fHE11) — profit or loss (Note 11) (210,636) 1,374,291 51,532 1,267,546
— H i — other liabilities - - = 58,438
ez | Placement - 13,800,000 - 3,395,000
b Withdrawal - - - (3,449 524)*
12 Drawdown 942,198 - 642,650 -
TN Repayment (40,403) - (12,066) -
W Amortisation (1,346) - (807) -
F+-—A=+—8 As at 31 December 2,596,858 49,244,684 1,907,045 34,070,393
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& B _——Ff A * Since 2021, the Group has placed on behalf of the

A sk URER R B R AT AR 1R Government HK$6 billion with respect to the advance
T2 E 5 BHEEN AR payment received from the Government for purchasing
BRI R T B BT loans under 100% Personal Loan Guarantee Scheme
IS FRIA A BT AE R (PLGS), of which HK$3 billion has been withdrawn to
OIZABT HFBER purchase of loans under PLGS for the Government and
B 3042 7% 7T 8 BT HK$3.4 billion was withdrawn by the Government in
EMABFERZILIT 2023. As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023,
MR F2E==F there is no outstanding balance of the advance payment
BB HEE 341275 TT © placed with the Exchange Fund or accrued interest.

FZF-_mWFE+=A
=t-AR=F=-=F
TZH=1—H " #%&
FINCESTF MBI
FINLE RIS ©

HEAQAFEITEN SR E™ (b) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities not
MARH D FE measured at fair value

F_E-_mF+=-_A=+—H The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
R_B_=F+_A=+— instruments not presented on the Group's statement of
B AERAHRTMSRKRE financial position at their fair values are not materially
BRAFTEERHNZIERIAD different from their fair values as at 31 December
KEES QA FEFEEERT 2024 and 31 December 2023 except for the following
@ o BrEMKEES R FEEE financial instruments, for which their carrying amounts
WEMIAIN - TRAEUAR and fair values and the level of fair value hierarchy are
TEITENE/MIT A ZIKE disclosed below:

B A FERRAFERMR

Al :

KEE KEE
Carrying ATE %-B %-E  Camying A 2-F #2F

amount  Fairvalue Level 1 Level 2 amount  Fairvalue Level 1 Level2
TEn TEr Thx TEn BT TiEn TiEn TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

SRR Financial assets
IEARA Investment securities
— RIStk — amortised cost 15105470 14,820,124 11,614,626 3205498 14573985 14261730 10493866 3,767,364
SHAR Financial liabilities
BRIREIH DeDt securities issued 148,299,636 148,086,035 - 148,086,035 161718497 161,602,374 - 161602374
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HiteRMIT AR FENEER
NIITERBRRIR

(i)

(iii)

The following methods and significant assumptions
have been used to estimate the fair values of financial

instruments:

NekEre (i)  Cashand short-term funds

NeREHRESBER Cash and short-term funds include bank deposits
TEFR FTHRBE and are stated net of impairment allowance.
% % 5 5k o )% B A7 K The fair value of floating-rate deposits is the
BN FEE A K EE o carrying amount. The estimated fair value of
ERFER(FRiEsE > fixed-rate deposits, which are normally less than
FANA)BEITAFEE six months, is based on discounted cash flows
DETEAREETR using prevailing money-market interest rates

fESMIATEMT S
MERKREHITEZ
WEANERE - Btk -
TFHRORFEHETH
TKIEI(E

BUFRE A 75 BHEERD (ii)
IR

TERAA TR ER
ZE T o BT B
MEANSHRRERES A
ER - WIHEITRAE
W& At WRAE
WIKEE N A FEHE
BIELT ©

TTRAAR B (iii)
TTRAE T MBRRER

B E 5|0k o /NED 5 BT R
PERETEFERITE -

At - TRAE Bk E
BAAFENEERMGIT -

74
&)

IE R T HIRR R ER
& fa B0k o 1% B BH A A
510K BOIE 25 3R R 2 A
BEURTNRELR5
IR O B Y O A o
il REEEG B X & #
MWXBABREER -
AHMARKREEFR R
ZAEF P IR T AN SR
E M A AW 7 R
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for debts with similar credit risk and remaining
maturity. Therefore, the fair value of the deposits
is approximately equal to their carrying value.

Loans with 100% guarantee from the Government

Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment
allowance. With the 100% guarantee provided
by the Government to cover the default loss of
the loans, no impairment allowance is provided.
Therefore, the carrying value of loan portfolio is a
reasonable estimate of the fair value.

Loan portfolio, net

Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment
allowance. An insignificant portion of loan
portfolio bears interest at fixed rate. Therefore,
the carrying value of loan portfolio is a
reasonable estimate of the fair value.

Investment securities at amortised cost

Investment securities are stated net of
impairment allowance. Fair value for investment
securities at amortised cost is based on market
prices or broker/dealer price quotations, which
are the clean prices. Where this information is
not available, fair value has been estimated using
quoted market prices for securities with similar
credit, maturity and yield characteristics, or
valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data.



(vii)

(viii)
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(Vii)

(viii)

Other assets

These mainly represent receivables from
debt securities issued for settlement after the
reporting date with the fair value approximating
the carrying amount.

Debt securities issued

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on
quoted market prices, which are the clean prices.
For those notes where quoted market prices are
not available, a discounted cash flow model is
used based on a current yield curve appropriate
for the remaining term to maturity.

Other liabilities

These mainly represented the guarantee fee
and fund received (net of claims and related
expenses) under the special concessionary
measures of the SFGS (Note 33) and the PLGS,
with the fair value approximating the carrying
amount.

Interest and remittance receivables and interest
payable

Accrued interest is recognised separately with
the fair value approximating the carrying amount
as it is expected to be recovered or settled
within twelve months from the reporting date.
Remittance receivables are expected to be
recovered within one month from the reporting
date with the fair value approximating the
carrying amount.
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3.7. Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital, which is a
broader concept than the equity on the face of the statement
of financial position, are:

o to comply with the capital requirements set by the
Financial Secretary of the Government (Financial
Secretary) and the Insurance Authority for its
insurance subsidiaries,

] to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholder;

o to support the Group's stability and growth;,

o to allocate capital in an efficient and risk-based
approach to optimise risk adjusted return to the
shareholder; and

o to maintain a strong capital base to support the
development of its business.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are
monitored daily by the management in accordance with the
Guidelines on Capital Adequacy Ratio (Guidelines) issued by
the Financial Secretary, by reference largely to Basel Il risk-
based capital adeqguacy framework. The minimum Capital
Adequacy Ratio (CAR) stipulated in the Guidelines is 8%.

The Chief Executive Officer is required to submit a report
to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis by reference
to the Guidelines issued by the Financial Secretary. If the
CAR drops to the threshold level of 14%, the Chief Executive
Officer will alert the Executive Directors. If the CAR falls to
12% or below, the Board of Directors will be informed and
appropriate remedial actions will be taken. During the period,
the Group complied with all of the capital requirement set
out in the Guidelines by the Financial Secretary.
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Pursuant to the Guidelines on the CAR, the calculation
basis of capital ratio follows the basis of consolidation for
financial reporting with the exclusion of subsidiaries which
are “regulated financial entities” (e.g. insurance companies).
It is because these entities are supervised by a regulator
and are subject to the maintenance of adequate capital (e.g.
solvency ratio) to support business activities comparable to
those prescribed for banks. The investment cost of these
unconsolidated regulated financial entities is deducted from
the capital base whilst the corresponding related exposures
are also excluded from the calculation of risk-weighted
assets.

The table below summarises the composition of capital base
and the CAR as at the end of the reporting period.

2024 2023

FHExT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

A& 7S (Fff)E 30) Share capital (Note 30) 26,500,000 14,500,000

63 Reserves 9,032,222 8,931,860

BB % Impairment allowance 71,803 34,837
kg : Deductions:

— TREEMREABNRR

— investment in regulated subsidiaries (27,500,000) (15,500,000)

— Hfty (640,826) (329,703)
G = = Total capital base 7,463,199 7,636,994
TARTE R E Capital Adequacy Ratio 19.9% 21.6%
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38. EMATFREMARZIVEH 3.8. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
TRBE D REREE LR E USSR The disclosures set out in the tables below pertain to
MERFIHRBEXNENEHA=NEF financial assets and financial liabilities that are not offset in
R - B2 R MRG58 2R the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position but
SEZHRRELEUERTANESE are subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or
Y FTLR © # FE A B B8 550 similar agreements that cover similar financial instruments.
BT RE - RIRGLBUTAE A B DT XS &Y The disclosures enable the understanding of both the gross
Bt et o and net amounts, as well as provide additional information

on how such credit risk is mitigated.

2024
BXEAREZEMSRRE
REN% THM LT VIS boplioka
KRR Related amount V) Related amount
kEE not set off in not set off in
Carrying  the consolidated statement carrying the consolidated statement
amounts of financial position® amounts of financial position*
onthe ——— onthe
consolidated fT£SMIA consolidated PASMIA
statementof  Derivative  H&HEAR #Ei*  statement of Derivative W&
financial financial Cash Net financial financial Cash
position  instruments collateral amount* position instruments collateral
ThERL Thx T TAR BT B TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SRR Financial assets
fTESRIEL Posttive fair values for
EBATE derivative financial
instruments 664,618 (646,152) (17,552) 914 828,542 (828,542) = =
SRNE Financial liabilities
fTEERIEL Negative fair values for
FERTE derivative financial
instruments 1,740,649 (646,152) (297,386) 797111 2,825,522 (828,542) (496,847) 1,500,133

& [HEX1B HRELRE W 55 KR I 4 & Amounts under “Related amount not set off in the consolidated
e | B aMEE T S BAH statement of financial position” represent the amounts of financial
WEEETZERERARNE 7GR liabilities/assets position that are subject to netting arrangements or
B RFEEH - similar agreements including CSA.

& BRI B 4 E T HE SR LY P * Net amount represents financial assets/liabilities that are subject
NROSEAF /1 BWELRE to netting arrangements or similar agreements but the Group's
BORSGNF RN - HIFREEER counterparty does not have equivalent financial liabilities/assets
SRARL R A SAKEEXH position with the Group to offset upon default.
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Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

4.1

4.2

Impairment allowances on loan portfolio

The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess ECLS on
a regular basis. In determining ECLS, the Group makes
judgements as to whether there is any significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition and where appropriate,
default and impairment indicators. It is required to exercise
judgements in making assumptions and estimates to
incorporate relevant information about past events, current
conditions and forecast of economic conditions. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

The carrying amount of loan portfolio as at 31 December
2024 is disclosed in Note 20.

Fair value of financial instruments

The majority of valuation techniques employ only observable
market data. However, the placements with the Exchange
Fund are valued on the basis of valuation techniques which
are determined by reference to the estimated rates of
investment return, approximate the carrying value. Details of
the fair value measurement of financial instruments are set
out in Note 3.6.
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4.3 Securitisation of infrastructure loans

For the securitisation of infrastructure loans, the Group
transfers a portfolio of loans to the special purpose entity
(SPE). On consolidation basis, the Group assesses whether
it controls the SPE, and the Group controls the SPE if and
only if the Group has (a) power over the SPE; (b) exposure
or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the
SPE; and (c) the ability to use its power over the SPE to
affect the amount of the Group’s returns. If the Group has
existing rights to give the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the SPE, is exposed to variable returns from its
involvement with the SPE and has the ability to affect SPE's
returns through its power over the SPE, consolidation of the
SPE is required.

When performing the consolidation assessment of SPE,
the Group considers its role as collateral manager to act
for the SPE that has a decision-making power which may
impact the returns of SPE. In addition, the Group prepares
a quantitative test to assess whether its exposure to the
variability of returns that would be deemed to have control
over the SPE. Whether the Group has a control over the SPE
and is therefore required to consolidate the SPE depends on
whether the Group has the ability to use its power to affect
the SPE’s returns as a “principal” or an “agent”. Based on the
above analysis, the Group is not required to consolidate the
SPE.

The Group also considers whether the securitised loans
could meet the necessary requirements for derecognition.
Loans are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the loans have expired or where the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
When the Group neither transfers or retains substantially
all the risks and reward of ownership of a loan and retains
control of the transferred loan, it is required to recognise
the loan to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
in the loan. Under the continuing involvement approach,
the Group continues to recognise part of the transferred
loan. The Group also recognises continuing involvement
asset and liability, which represents the extent of the
Group's continuing exposure to the risks and reward of the
transferred loan.
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4.4

Insurance and reinsurance contracts

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below. The Group based
its assumptions and estimates on parameters available
when the consolidated financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes
or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the
Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they occur.

(@ The methods used to measure insurance contracts

The Group primarily uses deterministic projections to
estimate the present value of future cash flows.

The following assumptions were used when estimating
future cash flows:

Mortality

Assumptions are based on standard industry table,
according to the type of contract written. They
reflect historical experience and are adjusted when
appropriate to reflect the Group’s own experiences.
An appropriate, but not excessive, allowance is made
for adverse selection and mortality improvements.
Assumptions are differentiated by policyholder gender
and age.

A decrease in expected mortality rates will increase the

expected claim cost which will reduce future expected
profits of the Group.
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Property price

Assumption are determined based on historical market
performance and long-term projection. A decrease in
the expected level of property price will reduce future
expected profits of the Group.

For Mortgage Insurance Programme, a drop in property
prices, where the collateral value falls below the
outstanding balance of the mortgage loan, will increase
the severity of claims.

For Reverse Mortgage Programme, future property
prices would affect the cash flow projections of the in-
force insurance contracts.

Loan default rate

Loan default rate is according to the best estimate to
the default rate of mortgage loan. They reflect historical
experience and are adjusted when appropriate to
reflect the Group’s own experiences.

An increase in the expected level of loan default rate
will reduce future expected profits of the Group.

Expenses

Operating expenses assumptions reflect the projected
costs of maintaining and servicing in-force policies
and associated overhead expenses. The current level
of expenses is taken as an appropriate expense base,
adjusted for expected expense inflation if appropriate.

An increase in the expected level of expenses will
reduce future expected profits of the Group.

Non-death termination

Lapses relate to the termination of policies due to
non-payment of premiums. Surrenders relate to the
voluntary termination of policies by policyholders.
Policy termination assumptions are determined using
statistical measures based on the Group’s experience
and vary by product type and policy duration.

The cash flows within the contract boundary include an
allocation of overheads directly attributable to fulfilling
insurance contracts. Such overheads are allocated to
groups of contracts using methods that are systematic
and rational, and are consistently applied to all costs
that have similar characteristics.
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Insurance contracts issued

4.32%

Discount rate

Insurance contract liabilities are calculated by
discounting expected future cash flows at a risk-free
rate, plus an illiquidity premium where applicable.
Risk-free rates are determined by reference to
those inferred from either swap rates or zero-
coupon government bond yields of that currency
(whichever of higher liquidity/market depth). This
method is comparable to the risk-free rate generation
methodology adopted under Hong Kong Risk-Based
Capital (HKRBC) regime. The illiquidity premium is
determined by reference to observable market rates
including corporate debt rates.

Discount rates (forward rates) applied for discounting
of future cash flows are listed below:

REES
Portfolio duration

FoR-ME+ZA=1-A

As at 31 December 2024

5%
5 years

108 plif:3 NE 1£

10years 20years 30years  fTyear  Syears  10years  20years  30years

495%  436%  486%  478% 3% 499% 3% 4e1%
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Risk adjustment for non-financial risk

The risk adjustment for non-financial risk is the
compensation that is required for bearing the
uncertainty about the amount and timing of cash flows
that arises from non-financial risk as the insurance
contract is fulfilled. Because the risk adjustment
represents compensation for uncertainty, estimates
are made on the degree of diversification benefits and
expected favourable and unfavourable outcomes in a
way that reflects the Group’s degree of risk aversion.
The Group estimates an adjustment for non-financial
risk separately from all other estimates. The Group
does not consider the effect of reinsurance in the risk
adjustment for non-financial risk of the underlying
insurance contracts.

The risk adjustment was calculated at Group level
and then allocated down to each group of contracts
in accordance with their risk profiles. The Group
determines the risk adjustment for non-financial risk
based on Margin Over Current Estimate (MOCE)
calculation methodology under HKRBC regime.

The MOCE reflects the uncertainty of liability cash
flows related to non-hedgeable risks, and is calibrated
to reflect the 75th percentile confidence level.

The methods and assumptions used to determine the
risk adjustment for non-financial risk were not changed
in 2023 and 2024.
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Amortisation of the CSM

The CSM is a component of the asset or liability for
the group of insurance contracts that represents the
unearned profit the Group will recognise as it provides
services in the future. An amount of the CSM for a
group of insurance contracts is recognised in profit or
loss as insurance revenue in each period to reflect the
insurance contract services provided under the group
of insurance contracts in that period. The amount is
determined by:

3 identifying the coverage units in the group;

3 allocating the CSM at the end of the period (before
recognising any amounts in profit or loss to
reflect the insurance contract services provided
in the period) equally to each coverage unit
provided in the current period and expected to
be provided in the future; and

. recognising in profit or loss the amount allocated
to coverage units provided in the period.

The number of coverage units in a group is the
guantity of insurance contract services provided by
the contracts in the group, determined by considering
the quantity of the benefits provided and the expected
coverage period. Contractual payments under
different scenarios and the respective probabilities are
considered when determining the quantity of benefit
provided. The total coverage units of each group of
insurance contracts are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period to adjust for the reduction of
remaining coverage for claims paid and cancellation
of contracts in the period. For the MIP insurance
contracts, the quantity of benefits is the contractually
agreed risk-in-force insured over the period of the
contracts while the quantity of benefits for the RMP
and the PRMP contracts is the contractually agreed
outstanding balance at death insured over the period
of the contracts. With respect to annuity product, the
coverage unit for amortisation will be the maximum of
(a) expected annuity payment; and (b) expected death
payment if there is a CSM.

For reinsurance contracts held, the CSM amortisation
reflects the expected pattern of underwriting of the
underlying contracts because the level of service
provided depends on the quantity of benefits provided
by the underlying contracts in-force.
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4.5 100% guarantee under the SME Financing Guarantee
Scheme (100% SFGS) and DLGS

As refer to Note 19, under 100% SFGS and DLGS, eligible
loans originated by the participating lenders are sold to the
Group, and the Government provides a financial guarantee
to the Group on these loans. The loans are classified as
financial assets measured at amortised cost under HKFRS 9.

In formulating the accounting treatment of 100% SFGS and
DLGS, the Group applied judgement on whether the loans
purchased from the participating lenders as recognised on
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position
should be de-recognised as a result of the arrangement
with the Government; whether the contracts between the
participating banks and the Group and the contract between
the Government and the Group should be considered
together in the determination of accounting treatments; and
whether the contractual cash flow of the loans represent
“solely payments of the principal and interest” (SPPI).

When performing this assessment, the Group considers
several factors including, whether the Group has transferred
the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the loans,
whether the contracts between the Government and Group
are considered together and whether the contractual cash
flows met the SPPI criteria etc.

Segment information

The Group is principally engaged in asset purchase and servicing,
general insurance and life insurance businesses in Hong Kong.
Other activities such as debt issuance to fund the loan purchase
and investment to reinvest the surplus funds from loan receipt are
considered ancillary to asset purchase business.

General insurance includes mainly mortgage insurance, reverse
mortgage and SME financing guarantee businesses. Life insurance
includes annuity business. Asset purchase and servicing include
loan acquisition business and other activities such as debt
issuance.
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TRINRANERAZLE D EBRWA ~ B F R The following tables represent revenue, profit and other
EH A RA o information for operating segments of the Group.

BRAFR
HREBRS

Asset — kAR

2 BEF
AFRR Inter-

purchase General Life

HE-E-_ME+-A=t—-HLLEE Yearended 31 December 2024

and servicing

TiER
HK$'000

insurance
TiER
HK$'000

insurance  elimination
TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000

segment Bit

Total
TR
HK$'000

AFIEBRA Net interest income 432,744 331,252 (146,035) - 617,961
AR5 Net insurance business results - (647,213)  (1,594,263) 209,948 (2,031,528)
HiglA Other income 308,886 162,772 1,221,874 (435,498) 1,258,034
ZEWA/(SH) Operating incomey/(0ss) 741,630 (153,189) (518,424) (225,550) (155,533)
2B Operating expenses (566,343) (20,685) - 224,862 (362,166)
RTBEFNZERT/ (5H) Operating profit/(loss) before impairment 175,287 (173,874) (518,424) (688) (517,699)
BERETH Change in impairment allowances (34,454) (227) (230) - (34,911)
BEANEF/(55) Profit/(loss) before taxation 140,833 (174,101) (518,654) (688) (552,610)

HE-T-=E+-FA=f-HILFE Yearended31December 2023

%
Asset

purchase
and servicing

TATL
HKS'000

—RRRE
General
insurance
THr
HK$'000

7 :‘Tf Tﬁ

AFERE Inter-
Life Segment
insurance glimination
THr THr
HK$'000 HK$'000

2t
Total
THr
HK$'000

Y9N Net interest income 225,059 309,548 (137,693) - 396,909
ARR LS Net insurance business results - (296,301) (1,805,804) 205,674 (1,876,431)
HiA Other income 271,89 138,533 1,139,374 (139,028) 1,410,775
ZEWAN/(SH) Operating income/(l0ss) 496,955 151,780 (804,128) 86,646 (68,747)
ZEIH Operating expenses (510,889) (3492) - 190,559 (323,822)
RITRERNZE(SH),/ B Operating (loss)/profit before impairment (13934) 148,288 (804,128) 277,205 (392,569)
RER SR Change in impairment allowances (20,106) 62 57 - (19,987)
BEE (S H),/ &7 (Loss)/profit before taxation (34,040) 148,350 (804,071) 277,205 (412,556)
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S EPIE 748
—RRR AFRE Inter-

purchase General Life segment Bt
and servicing insurance insurance  elimination Total
Ti#n Ti#n Ti#n T Ti#n
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-E-mE+-A=1-H As at 31 December 2024
PERE Segment assets 165,630,756 24,736,861 34,361,081  (2,902,522) 221,826,176
R Segment liabilities 157,586,492 6,984,385 22,112,903 (3,724,339) 182,959,441

U“\ A
HAEERS
Asset —MRRR NFERR
purchase General Life Bt
and servicing insurance insurance elimination Total
T T T T THx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-E-=5+-A=1—-H As at 31 December 2023
DER=E Segment assets 180,014,995 11,662,145 30,648,507 (3,022,838) 219,302,809
AR Segment liabilities 172,060,725 6,075,852 17,987,590 (3948314) 192,175,853
6. FIBKA 6. Interestincome

2024 2023
FET T 7T
HK$'000 HK$'000
R EA Loan portfolio 757,120 643,081

B RME A 7 B BIRAI DI Loans with 100% guarantee from
the Government 4,533,483 4,231,367
Ne MERRE Cash and short-term funds 2,048,875 2,434,607
UEHI 5 Investment securities 806,736 592,282
8,146,214 7,901,337
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FRXH

Interest expense

2024 2023

FH&x FETT

HK$'000 HK$'000

RITERRE KITHRSIUESH Bank loans and debt securities issued 7,363,943 7,314,481
AR MR Lease liabilities 8,338 2,591
HAith Others 155,972 187,356
7,528,253 7,504,428

PIBEMBX HkBHIEFEARFERLITA
Mas )2 A5

FRESUT A

TREFFAFINNREBA BT -

BEXATREFAZHHEH Amounts relating to the changes
in the liability for remaining
coverage

TEREM = £ RK RS T Expected insurance Service expenses

All interest expenses are for financial liabilities that are not at fair
value through profit or loss.

Insurance revenue

The table below presents an analysis of the total insurance
revenue recognised in the year:

2024

&R FER
RERY  BRRAY Bit
Insurance  Reinsurance Insurance  Relnsurance
contracts contracts contracts

contracts
issued issued Total issued issued Total
Fix TERT TET B BT THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

incurred in the period 449,877 4,743 454,620 371,710 835 372,545
FLBMRMMKIEZZE  Changein the risk adjustment
for non-financial risk (66,511) 19 (66,492) (21,84) 1 (21,840)
FRENBEANEL Amount of CSM recognised in profit or
R&YEEH oss 677,693 - 677,693 584,290 = 584,290
Eth45 - AERBERAE  Other amounts including experience
ZRER adjustments for premium receipts - - - 45 - 45
BEXBERRBENSHEERN Amounts relating to recovery of
X il insurance acquisition cash flows
HEEXMERKIEETS  Alocation of the portion of premiums
mERRSREDS that relate to the recovery of insurance
acquisition cash flows 254,209 - 254,209 193,743 - 193,743
REBA Insurance revenue 1,315,268 4,762 1,320,030 1,127,947 836 1,128,783
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B$5E 2.22(e)

Notes:

Expected insurance service expenses incurred in the period comprise claims
and other expenses which the Group expects to pay on insured events that
occurred during the period. Refer to Note 2.22(f) for the full list of the cash
flows included.

Change in risk adjustment shows amount of risk which expired during the
period. Refer to Note 2.22 for the details of accounting policy.

The CSM is recognised in profit or loss over the coverage period of the
corresponding group of contracts based on coverage units. Refer to Note
4.4(d).

Such adjustments exclude those that relate to future service which adjust the
CSM.

Acquisition cash flows are allocated in a systematic way on the basis of the
passage of time over the coverage period of the group of contracts. Refer to
Note 2.22(e) for details of accounting policy.
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FRELRIREY FMELRBR
BEEs FiEABRIESHN
S5 () WA B

NREJNFR T Res K E b2 m e iE A
VRS W 55 L Sy B AT -

Net finance (expenses)/income from insurance
contracts issued/reinsurance contracts issued/
reinsurance contracts held

The table below presents an analysis of net insurance finance
result recognised in profit or loss and OCI in the year:

FIERRREANREM S Insurance finance income/(expenses)
WA (XH) from insurance contracts issued
E-SRwilys Interest accreted (885,204) (721,952)
F= R B S RIR S8 Effect of changes in interest rates and
other financial assumptions 429,217 (1,041,004)
7B MRE T R IR e HIAR  Effect of measuring changes in estimates
R FI =S AR5 W at current rates and adjusting the CSM
EORRR= R b= | at the rates on initial recognition 382,457 139,395
FIEEREELHMS Net finance expenses from
F R insurance contracts issued (73,530) (1,623,561)
Z27 Represented by:
FHRERIAN Amounts recognised in profit or loss (413,039) (1,692,054)
TE M EK ISR Amounts recognised in OC| 339,509 68,493
LR BREEANRE Insurance finance income/(expenses)
MEWA (X H) from reinsurance contracts issued
E-Shw |y Interest accreted (7,282) (1,421)
F= R B S BRIRA S8 Effect of changes in interest rates and
other financial assumptions 3,601 (7,009)
R BRI RIR A RIAR  Effect of measuring changes in estimates
RFEIFEEA RS W e at current rates and adjusting the CSM
EORRR- A at the rates on initial recognition 1,800 41
BREARTELAMNKEAES Changes in non-performance risk
of reinsurer - -
FELABREEHNM S %5 Net finance expenses from
reinsurance contracts issued (1,881) (8,389)
Z25 Represented by:
THERIARN SN Amounts recognised in profit or loss (1,881) (8,389)
TFEMEEREHIANSI Amounts recognised in OCl = -
FREEERREANERRKISE  Reinsurance finance income/(expenses)
WA (ZH) from reinsurance contracts held
25L& Interest accreted 16,118 (96)
=G EmMREBIsTareng  Effect of changes in interest rates and
other financial assumptions (25,026) 2,150
RS RAR G RIZITIAR  Effect of measuring changes in estimates
MR RFES LIRS R at current rates and adjusting the CSM
1ITEE MW at the rates on initial recognition (100,854) (54,790)
BRE AR TELINEED) Changes in non-performance risk of
reinsurer (4,544) (4,725)
A BRBREANTSE X 124 Net finance expenses from
reinsurance contracts held (114,306) (57,461)
E=X7Vol Represented by:
TRz FIAN SR Amounts recognised in profit or loss 10,268 2,932
TFH 2 EBRHIAN S Amounts recognised in OClI (124,574) (60,393)
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10. FIISEBRIESYMMAET 10. Netincome from reinsurance contracts held

2024 2023

FET TR
HK$°000 HK$'000

o BA U [B] HA 8 7= A= B AR 6 AR 55 T 2. Expected recovery for insurance service

expenses incurred in the period (6,476) (78,716)
2 XS X IHZEE 5 Change in the risk adjustment for
non-financial risk 13,159 13,158
TREIAN G YRS K CSM recognised in profit or loss (75,073) (67,383)
SRIRRETE K& Amount relating to the changes
REREX A2 in the assets for remaining coverage (68,390) (132,941)
HAN =SB R R EMF A Amounts recoverable for claims and
AU E] & Fn other expenses incurred in the period 25,335 74,054
Frr= EE R R R A BT A HY Changes in amounts recoverable
GIE RN arising from changes in liability
for incurred claims 1,584 792
e BUXLES H XUBS AR B P Changes in amounts recoverable arising
FETRESFE S from changes in risk adjustment for
non-financial risk 5,802 513
S55HEMEXE B KH Changes in fulfilment cash flows which
BAONEREED relate to onerous underlying contracts 388,591 336,281
A [ BRI A B4 2 79 S 2 Amount recoverable from reinsurers 421,312 411,640
B BRREAHNRA EE Net income from reinsurance
contracts held 352,922 278,699
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11.

Hblg A

kB INCES T RA W

11. Other income

Income from placements with the

2024

TR
HK$'000

2023
TAET
HK$'000

Exchange Fund 1,374,291 1,267,546
SLRZEN Exchange difference (187,457) (12,336)
PTHE T H BRI las * Gain from derivatives and hedging* 238,006 62,005
AR B ITT ARER Net (loss)/gain on investments at fair value
BR(SH),/ W 28 through profit or loss (48) 238
HEUAFET T AEMmEE  Netgain on disposal of investments at FVOCI
e B T B a3 400 =
THAEERN AT EER S Net change in fair value of loan portfolio
(B3 3.6(a)ii)) (Note 3.6(a)(ii) (210,636) 51,532
R EMA Dividend income from listed investments 289 265
S E 0 ON Administrative fee income 9,042 8,972
Hith Others 34,147 32,553
1,258,034 1,410,775
3 PTET BRI U zs A T AT S ¢ G) o Gain from derivatives and hedging represented the aggregate of (i) HK$631

million fair value gain on hedging instruments designated as fair value hedge
(2023: HK$1,996 million) and HK$531 million fair value loss on the hedged
items (2023: HK$1,851 million); and (i) HK$138 million fair value gain on
derivatives mainly for hedging foreign currency exposures which are not
qualified as hedges for accounting purposes (2023: HK$83 million loss).

FEE N FEN A AR EKZ6.31
BT (ZEZ=4F : 199628 7T) BRI HIR
BEAFESHRSINZABET(ZTE==4:
1851428 7T) + R (i) EZAEX R INCK G
BRARFEXANASUFENITETAAF
EW2E1.38ZET(Z T =4 : 58,300
T °
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12. BERYNSHZTH

REMARERA~ENTHATRT TR

12. Expenses by nature

An analysis of the expenses incurred by the Group in the reporting

period is included in the table below:

2023
FHIT
HK$'000
AP Staff costs:
— ¥ & MER — salaries and benefits 458,385 408,110
— IRIRERA — pension costs — defined
— REHETTY contribution plans 26,280 23,165
E=Yokn Directors’ fees - _
MEESS5RNAESEEN Emoluments in respect of directors’
HEMRESmA T2 other services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the
Company:
— e EZMNIELD — salaries, allowances and bonus 8,065 7,135
— NIRRT RIFTE 2 S5k — retirement scheme contributions 726 703
718 (BffE 25) Depreciation (Note 25) 89,748 82,158
2 E AR SS Financial information services 16,201 16,065
B[] 2% Consultancy fees 97,741 94,260
A RS &2 H Marketing and advertising expenses 40,813 47,087
DRE Premises 17,602 14,556
HEMRELH Other operating expenses 59,282 52,966
WEE S EHR/ e REERITR Recovery of operating expenses from
KA BERTREITR 100% SFGS and DLGS (Note 31(a))
& E > H (MHE31)) (166,388) (161,609)
648,455 584,596
REWEIN € RE = £/ Amounts attributed to insurance acquisition
Ri &8 R EAMEEIT XX cash flows incurred and other directly
attributable expenses (286,289) (260,774)
HEMAXERZ Other operating expenses 362,166 323,822
ARRIGE Claims and benefits 787,624 614,310
SHMEREE A0SR Losses on onerous insurance contracts 2,257,995 778,349
R BN € 7= 7 5 Amortisation of insurance acquisition
cash flows 254,209 193,743
REIRS = Insurance service expenses 3,299,828 1,586,402
3,661,994 1,910,224
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13. %EVPEN & 13. Auditor’s remuneration

2024 2023
FHT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
HIZIRSS Audit services 4,605 6,472
HERS Other services 4,382 4,228
8,987 10,700

14. RIEREZTTR 14. Change in impairment allowances

Ne kEERE (BHE3.2(c) Cash and short-term funds (Note 3.2(c)) 1,502 1,043
USSR Investment securities:
— RPN — amortised cost (Note 3.2(d)(i))
(B 3.2(cl)(i)) 179 89
— ARAFERITAEM — FVOCI (Note 3.2(d)(ii))
2 mEikEs (FF)E 3.2(d)ii) 147 477
WRAE @ BERREE Loan portfolio, including loan
(FE3.2(b)) commitments (Note 3.2(0)) 33,083 18,378
34,911 19,987
15. IR 15. Taxation
(a) HFEWBEXABHBIMA : (a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents:
2024 2023
Tz FHETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BBEFEH Hong Kong profits tax:
— L HAFL I — current tax 50,650 140,723
— NAEFEIFE — adjusted in respect of past years - (2,416)
12 RE I Deferred taxation:
— AFEIRE — credit for current year (185,220) (291,361)

(134,570) (153,054)
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BN F B 7T A WG 1T BOR BDE IR Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
16.5%( —F = = 4F : 16.5%) B Fi X (2023: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the
ITIRBABAETILE o BT IAR year. Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
AR 16.5% (ZF Z=4F : 16.5%) differences under the liability method using a principal
MESHEITE S HRERNZDM o taxation rate of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%).

AEFWBRBE R ST S XAR The taxation on the Group's loss before taxation differs from
BHREITENBLSTNESOT ¢ the theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation

rate of Hong Kong as follows:

2023
FET
HK$'000
EI IR Loss before taxation (552,610) (412,556)
12165% (—FE==4 : 16.5%) Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%
R 1T (2023: 16.5%) (91,181) (68,072)
HEZ M Tax effect of:
— AT R — income not subject to taxation (443,699) (451,919
— P FF — expenses not deductible for
taxation purposes 415,517 322,794
— RTINS — tax losses not recognised 5,060 83,600
— IEFERE — adjustment in respect of prior years - (2,416)
— Hfb — others (20,267) (37,041)
HILR[E Taxation credit (134,570) (153,054)
(b) BWSKREAHMITIKED : (b) Provision for taxation in the statement of financial

position represents:

2023
T TT
HK$'000

HHEARR IR = Current tax assets (included in
GF A THEA R ) “Other assets”) 38 38
= HAR I T (R Current tax liabilities 223,782 156,851
156 ZE F I £ {5m Deferred tax liabilities 174,488 307,254

398,270 464,105
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BB (A7), 5 R0 E B
SRENEHWT :

The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities and
the movements during the year are as follows:

HERER
A%
ikl Impairment RESYAR
Accelerated allowances Insurance
tax and other HESH contract BH
depreciation provisions Tax losses liabilities Total
TEL TEL T TEn T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-Z-=%—-HF—-H Asat1lanuary 2023 8,208 (3,774) (148 905) 129,327 584,856
TWHEENTE /(TEA)  Charged/(credited) to
income Statement 165 (3,355) 5,028 (293,199) (291,361)
TEMSERENME  Chargedto OC - - - 13759 13759
F-E-=%1+=7 As at 31 December 2023
=t+-H 8,373 (7,129 (143877) 449,887 307,254
FER AR/ Charged/(credited) to
(BA) income statement 28 (6,077) (26,244) (153167) (185,220)
TAM2AEYEAME  Chargedto OCI = - - 52,454 52,454
F-E-mE As at 31 December 2024
+ZA=1+-H 8,641 (13,206) (170,121) 349,174 174,488

F_E_NFE+—A=1T—HE=F
ZEFFZ A=+ BB EERRK
BIBIERI I o BER A = 2R TH
BB AR SR R IR B g K1) AT AR FL A 1B 5,
TH2WIA - RFABSSHMALR
HRLERE o

TTH=NMAR - BAEMEAEEN
Ri=/ REELE -

There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation as
at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that sufficient future
taxable profits will be available for realisation. The unused
tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

There is no significant amount of deferred tax assets/
liabilities to be settled within twelve months.
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16. MEREHEE 16. Cash and short-term funds
2024 2023
FET TFETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R & Cash at banks 913,754 1,128,772
RITEBTFER Time deposits with banks 51,739,077 50,696,426
e KRR E 58 Gross cash and short-term funds 52,652,831 51,825,198
e FRHREHBER S Impairment allowance on cash and
(H$E3.2(c)) short-term funds (Note 3.2(c)) (5,649) (4,147)
52,647,182 51,821,051
g EnEEME  NeRERNETAE For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and
BEATERIEE =" AAARLES cash equivalents comprise the following balances with

original maturities of three months or less.

2024 2023
F#&x T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RITO & Cash at banks 913,754 1,128,772
RITEBTFER Time deposits with banks 41,562,077 49,999,426
NekZERILIE Cash and cash equivalents 42,475,831 51,128,198
17. BRI BB CHR 17. Interest and remittance receivables
2023
FHIT
HK$'000
AT &I R U R &, Interest receivables from:

— FERBHEY — interest rate swap contracts 2,575,665 2,767,783
— AR R — investment securities 191,886 154,657
— RITEHFR — time deposits with banks 297,330 250,373

TIFRE A K RIICF B Interest receivables and instalments,
KBy o BB R in transit from loan portfolio 156,498 197,565

3,221,379 3,370,378
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18. fTE&MI A

(a)

TEITRANMBEA

AREFANATINTET AN R AEH
W BN -

BEMIZEI S £ NFEARK B HATSE IR
TE B LRGSR H E SN YA o B8
R Al = 2 8 A — 4B T 2 i IR ER
AR RENKE - RS
Mk F R ME LSRR - FRET
BEMEHIN  ZFERZ DS RERA
T o AREMERNRAZHFR
RERTEREMEERRANNE

FXA o RERRIFEFENEFESZ HN
FREERNG - HFLBEMNERA

B o

ETMRERMIANABNEH - I T
BREMS KRR TERE—
R R - MR RS R AR K
NEmMENESAXT AL AT
& - Bt - e RS E IR EY
SN REL o BEE 17 = oL
RN ERFRAK ) - STET AR RE
WARGKE = EB N (F) HAH (7
fFR)HFMW - STES T ANE L3
ANEBHEEF - BRBMHAFZ 0
BE  ROTETASRASRAGZ
RN BME - AIRE AT KIBR D) © AT
BRTETARFHER T X e

18. Derivative financial instruments

(a)

Use of derivatives

The Group uses the following derivative instruments to
hedge the Group's financial risks.

Currency forwards are commitment to purchase or sell
foreign currency at a pre-specified exchange rate on a future
date. Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result in
an exchange of currencies or interest rates or a combination
of all these. No exchange of principal takes place except
for certain currency swaps. The Group’s credit risk
represents the potential cost to replace the swap contracts
if counterparties fail to perform their obligations. This risk
is monitored on an ongoing basis under a prudent treasury
counterparty risk management framework.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments
provide a basis for comparison with instruments recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position but do
not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows
involved or the current fair value of the instruments and,
therefore, do not indicate the Group's exposure to credit or
price risks. The derivative instruments become favourable
(assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations
in market interest rates or foreign exchange rates relative to
their terms. The aggregate contractual or notional amounts
of derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to
which instruments are favourable or unfavourable, and thus
the aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and
liabilities, can fluctuate significantly from time to time. The
fair values of derivative instruments held are set out below.
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B4/
ZL&H AYE 2 i A¥E
Contract/ Fair values Contract/ Fair values

notional "= il notional R i
amounts Assets Liabilities amounts Assets Libilities

Fix FET FHT THL TET THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FMaRBRNRLIUTHE Derivatives not qualified as hedges
MTETR for accounting purposes
— F|isH — interest rate swaps 4,601,054 35,329 (2.802) 6771769 55,587 779
— s — currency swaps 8,109,388 152,812 (8,338) 7322928 34,270 (39,197)
— &MEHEYH — currency forwards 2,878,363 5,204 (3,024) 2715097 669 (5,897)
193,345 (14,164) 90,526 (19,873)
ATERTAETER Fair value hedge derivatives
— &8 — Interest rate swaps 110,629,191 212,397 (596,795) 99,654,192 283,590 (737,144)
— ke — currency swaps 52,465,683 258,420  (1,127,930) 61,158,725 454426 (1,800,484)
470,817 (1,724,725) 738016 (2537,628)
NemAmiTELR Cash flow hedge derivatives
— ke — currency swaps 388,397 456 (1,760) 2,998,250 - (238,021)
456 (1,760) - (238,021)
B Mﬁlﬂ Total recognised derivative assets/
A7/ () B4 (iabilties) 664,618 (1,740,649) 828502 (2825520)
(b) FApiEERD (b) Hedging activities
i fT 4 TEIER X FEXN IR Derivatives may qualify as hedges for accounting purposes if
A eIt EmE - STEIEA they are fair value hedges or cash flow hedges.
MRS 5 & X R A ©
(i) AFEIH (i)  Fair value hedges
REANRNFEXNREZBE The Group's fair value hedge principally consists of
ATREREE XTHREZIESFA interest rate and currency swaps that are used to
FERERDBEE NPT S B protect interest rate risk and foreign currency risk
2 X B A1 FNE RS B ) 2= 0 resulting from any potential change in fair value of
SrmiRHEl o underlying debt securities issued.
(i) LRI (i)  Cash flow hedges
NEFERARBI M A & The Group hedged the portion of foreign exchange
Mg BT ASNT I E ) & risks arising from variability of cash flows from foreign
T AN REANF=ERINE currency denominated financial instruments using
XE&EE 5 © currency swaps under cash flow hedge.
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19. RFRHEE S BHEEHER

BaaR P EREHERKRITY

AEAT _F_TFEHRIFEEO2BH )
ERABRITL - WEBEEFED /N
SN RS E N A i )
A - WA B b B A ANEL R o

RIELITR] - BERESSRFAARE -
TFHEHETERE  ZFE2 50K E A

TERMN T X AAREFAHEBRETRK
ZERABT 2 FER -

18 R AR b % B AR B M) OB M 2 2.5% 2
RS - ZFTHRAN B AR AEE =4
R SRAERIER —REERITBIT G
EREY

ZEBERTFEFARKI0F - BFRE
AEETRRU+ - MAEETER -

B EHEKRERETHITY

AEHAT _F_=FHHABERIK
?Hﬁlﬂzﬂ Ui S E MBI A RIEENE -
BRBNERTaZILFLIRELENE
FRERTRER AMKREELTENELR
BiLEE - ABBNLARRRE L RS H
TETRAMT  UHMERN T B RN
AL -

BRI ITR - TS SR EFAAGHE -
THHERRE » 252 S TRNAAEIA
TERM T XA AERAHEB KRR
ZE TR 2 HIELR

1B BRI IR B AL BB 2 O 6 ) 2R 2.5% 32 A+
ﬂ§°u#ﬁ*ﬂgﬁm%$%lﬁim
RERARBER—REERITBITX A
/\E[B(M‘L °

19.

Loans with 100% guarantee from the
Government

100% SFGS

The Group introduced special 100% SFGS in 2020. This measure
aims to alleviate the burden of paying employee wages and rents
by small and medium-sized enterprises which are suffering from
reduced income, thereby help minimise enterprise shutting down
and layoffs.

Under this scheme, loans are originated by participating lenders.
Upon origination, these participating lenders would sell the loans
to the Group without recourse. These loans are fully guaranteed by
the Hong Kong Government.

An interest rate of the Prime Rate minus 2.5% per annum is
charged to the borrowers. These loan interest, net of the funding
costs and relevant general operating and administrative expenses
incurred by the Group, are passed to the Government.

The maximum repayment period of the loan under the guarantee
is 10 years, with an option of principal moratorium for up to forty-
two months.

DLGS

The Group introduced DLGS in 2023. This measure aims to assist
eligible operators, registered vehicle or ferry owners of cross-
boundary passenger transport, licensed travel agents, local tour
bus operators and registered owners to support their business
resumption, and to encourage taxi owners to replace their
liquefied petroleum gas, petrol or hybrid taxis with electric taxis.

Under this scheme, loans are originated by participating lenders.
Upon origination, these participating lenders would sell the loans
to the Group without recourse. These loans are fully guaranteed by
the Hong Kong Government.

An interest rate of the Prime Rate minus 2.5% per annum is
charged to the borrowers. These loan interest, net of the funding
costs and relevant general operating and administrative expenses
incurred by the Group, are passed to the Government.
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ZEBRRERTRMARKI0F - BRAT
EETFRE N AEETER «

BoBARERAERITYRE D BER
TERRE AT R R B SR SRR 49 5 R
BB AR R IR4 » B T BT EL
R ER - WHERINVRER S - XEH
ERE A WA R - PR R
AREREEERNBEKRS - —REE
RATHITX o LR B WH S B R (NE)
BEIB - AREARREEZm °

The maximum repayment period of the loan under the guarantee
is 10 years, with an option of principal moratorium for up to twelve
months.

Accordingly, loan default losses are covered by the Government’s
guarantee in relation to loans with special 100% SFGS and
DLGS, and no impairment allowance is recognised in view of the
minimal default risk of the Government. All loan interest received
is set aside to meet the funding costs, general operating and
administrative expenses in relation to the purchase and servicing
of the loans of the Group. The remaining balance of the interest
received, if any, will be passed to the Government. The Group is
responsible for the operation of the product.

2024 2023

TR TET

BT ft B B ERE K -

HK$'000 HK$'000

Loans with 100% guarantee from

the Government under:

— B2 AR EEERBERITL — 100% SFGS 82,555,165 97,172,516
— B BEERERT TR — DLGS 227,533 189,840
82,782,698 97,362,356

20. MBS FE
(a) BDIAF(ETIT AR 5ER

20. Loan portfolio, net

(a) Loan portfolio at FVPL

e
2023
T4
HK$'000
FERIBIIRAS Residential mortgage portfolio 2,572,791 1,892,572
H BT RE S Other loan portfolio 24,067 14,473
2,596,858 1,907,045
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(b)

(c)

BRI ERES (b) Loan portfolio at amortised cost

2023
FHET
HK$'000
FEHEBRIRASE Residential mortgage portfolio 2,816,547 2,804,860
HETR Infrastructure loans 7,290,487 7,361,398
EHAth Others 71,725 90,379
10,178,759 10,256,637
FORER & (HHE3.20) Allowance for loan impairment
(Note 3.2(b))
— EERETRES — residential mortgage portfolio (6,849) (2,134)
— HER — infrastructure loans (52,940) (22,555)
— HAb — others (1,853) (1,531)
(61,642) (26,220)
10,117,117 10,230,417
HERBERSETLIERES (c) Total allowance for loan impairment as a percentage
RHREEXSERNBSL of the outstanding principal balances of the loan
portfolio
2024 2023
RRORE & & e 2 5 A Total allowance for loan impairment
BEAWB D as a percentage of the gross
loan portfolio 0.61% 0.26%
EH RO ER B - EEERKAR Allowance for loan impairment has been made after taking
K RITHE o into account the current market value of the collateral.
2024 2023
BERFES B8 S RA Gross impaired loan portfolio as a
BEH B 7 b (B E 3.2( )) percentage of gross loan portfolio
(Note 3.2(g)) 0.02% 0.02%
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21. IEH/E

(a) MIAFETBRITARMLSE
mAE SR &

R FHESIRE GRS

21. Investment securities

(a) Investment securities at FVOCI

2024
TERT

2023
THAT
HK$'000

HK$'000

Debt securities at fair value:

— TEHEBLM — listed in Hong Kong 1,846,255 1,067,317

— THEARIILET — listed outside Hong Kong 1,758,951 1,442,220

3,605,206 2,509,537

— 3L — unlisted 116,615 _
AT EEEITAREMEE Total FVOCI securities

U ZS HYIE 5 5 47 3,721,821 2,509,537

LA B 1+ AL A 4 T W s B 1E
FER/EHRFIES  HRENIEenE
ARG RFNE - MAKEFFA
55 IE 77 2 b SR EY B AR 8 I
ReEANIeREREESRA MK
i o

BARATINA BN D ITA R FEZL 1T

FVOCI securities comprise debt securities where the
contractual cash flows are solely principal and interest and
the objective of the Group’s business model is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets.

FVOCI securities are analysed by categories of issuers as

AHA S EWEROUESFAT ¢ follows:
2024 2023
F#&x T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RITRE M B4 Banks and other financial institutions 971,385 711,499
NEIRNY Corporate entities 837,460 931,689
NENA Public sector entities 1,044,727 361,587
PR Central governments 868,249 504,762
3,721,821 2,509,537
AN B I A EAth 4 UK &5 R IE The movement in FVOCI securities is summarised as follows:
FRMARTBHAT
2023
T
HK$'000
FT—H—H As at 1 January 2,509,537 1,244,974
0 Additions 1,512,090 1,440,325
& K B E] Sales and redemption (281,942) (195,990)
R4 Amortisation 1,746 1,442
NE{EZE D) Change in fair value 25,687 33,396
SNTCH ZER Exchange difference (45,297) (14,610)
F+=—B=+—8H As at 31 December 3,721,821 2,509,537

BxRBE  ERAERRAEHAEREX
ez B 5% 44 T BRHE 3.2(cl) 8

Information on the impairment, credit quality and the
Group's exposure to credit risk are disclosed in Note 3.2(d).
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(b)

(c)

L2 F{ET T A 5 & 695 5 (b)

4

Investment securities at FVPL

A TEFR A 5 PR E 4 Exchange-traded funds at fair value:

— T&E&LEM — listed in Hong Kong 9,774 9,870
ARNFEZA T AR T Total FVPL securities
U5 BN 9,774 9,870

REFB TS LR HK AT B IA
RNHERIT AR A 2 E S R E R
RS FTEREESHIEFR R 5937
RNHEZLIT AR

ATERAC T A R0 5 12 5)
BT :

The Group classifies investment securities in exchange-
traded funds at FVPL, which do not quality for measurement
at either amortised cost or FVOCI.

The movement in FVPL securities is summarised as follows:

2023

FET

HK$'000

+—H—H As at 1 January 9,870 9,628

NEEEZD Change in fair value (48) 238

HNTIEH 25 Exchange difference (48) 4

FT+=—HA=+—H As at 31 December 9,774 9,870
BRMERETIkESRE (c) Investment securities at amortised cost

R BR R AN 51 K B 153 55U 55

Debt securities at amortised cost:

— THEAELEM — listed in Hong Kong 5,715,799 6,631,315
— THEABRINET — listed outside Hong Kong 6,190,447 4,172,749
11,906,246 10,804,064
—dEET™m — unlisted 3,204,074 3,774,592
RS A AN A UE S AR Gross investment securities
=i at amortised cost 15,110,320 14,578,656
IR RS R NI MK B9IE SR A ) Impairment allowance on
REE E (MIE3.2(d) investment securities at amortised
cost (Note 3.2(d)) (4,850) (4,671)
PR AN R B UE 5 20 Total amortised cost securities 15,105,470 14,573,985
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REFNT BT S A TIrEZ 155
B I 2BIESFIR R 9 R AR
AFI0K :

o LHERHEFHEE R
WA AL RE : R

o  REFEASVFRERTE AN
ERED2HATXNAEM
RNEERZEHIF R -

R RATHADZE RN 2 AT R B B 12 B 4 K
ARBIMREYUESLAT

The Group classifies investment securities at amortised cost
only if both of the following criteria are met:

o the asset is held within a business model with the
objective of collecting the contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding.

Amortised cost securities before impairment are analysed by
categories of issuers as follows:

2024 2023

TExT FETT

HK$'000 HK$'000

RITREM S BN Banks and other financial institutions 4,520,414 6,077,582
Nalll Corporate entities 6,149,201 5,794,619
NEHA Public sector entities 1,936,527 1,070,127
AR SR AT Central governments 2,002,795 1,636,328
Hith (EZHBXGE) Others (infrastructure-related bond) 501,383 —
15,110,320 14,578,656

BB B I 3 H A AR B K B UIE 25 Y AR 5
BERZAT ¢

The movement in amortised cost securities before
impairment is summarised as follows:

2023

FETT

HK$'000

F=F=E As at 1 January 14,578,656 13,147,658
140 Additions 6,434,043 3,945,347
& & s E] Sales and redemption (5,848,597) (2,507,695)
e Amortisation 68,635 51,452
SNTSE 25 Exchange difference (122,417) (58,106)
FT+=—H=+—H As at 31 December 15,110,320 14,578,656
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22. ILEEFR

REABEBEBF S LA RIZIERRKE AT
BINCES TR D ENARNFEZLITA
RENERET T_T-_WF+=A
=+—H8 INCESHFERERNAIN2ZE
TT(ZFE =4 : 341128 7T) (KHE31(a))
BREAE BHRNIBZAET(ZE =4
28728 ) M ETFERBEHRBMEE 21t
BEAERAKA  ABAFSLRIRIZ
IHRE N BIMRBRBASTR

SNCESFFRA TINCESNERAEAE
REHIERES  ARBERAHRS -
SMCESFRERRRFEE - IRA A
BmE > ERRDGRERFTAGTENF
B R R % £ FE = F R G5
FHWERE(TRI0%) IHE - UREE N
Eeo g KHERKAATE - @IRXTDRE
REZR RN EREEE -

22. Placements with the Exchange Fund

The Group has classified the placements of the HKMCA and the
HKMCI with the Exchange Fund as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. As at 31 December 2024, the balance of the
placements with the Exchange Fund amounted to HK$49.2 billion
(2023: HK$34.1 billion) (Note 31(a)), comprising a total principal
sum of HK$42.5 billion (2023: HK$28.7 billion) plus income earned
and accrued but not yet withdrawn as at the reporting date, which
represented the premium and capital placements made by the
HKMCA and the HKMCI.

The placements with the Exchange Fund are invested in the
Investment Portfolio and Long-Term Growth Portfolio of the
Exchange Fund, subject to a lock-up period. The rate of return on
the placements with the Exchange Fund is determined annually.
For Investment Portfolio, the rate of return is calculated on the
basis of the average annual rate of return on the portfolio over
the past six years or the average annual yield of three-year
Government Bond in the previous year (subject to a minimum of
zero percent), whichever is the higher. With respect to the Long-
Term Growth Portfolio, the rate of return is determined based on
the current year time-weighted rate of return.
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23. RELFRER

F_BE-_WNE+_A=+—"H ARAH
TERBEATFBNOT :

23. Interests in subsidiaries

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31
December 2024 are as follows:

EMRIER

EXTRARRAEE
(Bt #9E31)
Particulars of issued and

;RN
(FEKEA)
FERENE D2
Percentage of
shares held by

HAREANHED R
(FHKEA)
FERONEDE
Percentage of

shares held by
the Company's

Place of FTEIE fully paid up share capital the Company subsidiary
incorporation Principal activities (Class of shares) (or its nominee)  (or its nominee)
BARIBEEBRAR B NAEFARTIMERBRET 1,000,000 (EBR) 100% TNER
HKMC Mortgage Management Limited Hong Kong ERRS  REAMRTH  HK$1,000,000 (Ordinary) N/A
HAERRS  REERE
RRRR LSRR A
ZH
Mortgage purchase and
servicing, servicing of
outstanding microfinance
|oans, and origination of
reverse mortgage loans and
policy reverse mortgage
loans, all for the Group
BARIERKERAR &b —RRB L% 15,000,000,000 77 (£ BR) 100% TER
HKMC Insurance Limited Hong Kong General insurance business HK$15,000,000,000 (Ordinary) N/A
BRFEERAR & KERM 1% 12,500,000,000757C (&) 100% TER
HKMC Annuity Limited Hong Kong Long term insurance business  HK$12,500,000,000 (Ordinary) N/A
HKMC Premier Solutions Limited B4 AAEAREEHRLE 100787 (F@kR) TER 100%
Hong Kong KRS RAEA R HK$100 (Ordinary) N/A
Provision of marketing and
business development

services and related facilities
to the Group
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24, FRIERIE - REREMES 24. Prepayments, deposits and other assets

2024 2023

T FHETT

HK$'000 HK$'000

NRISERS Corporate club debentures 910 910

13 B8 S B 1 7 U R I CSA receivables 308,854 523,485
EIREBHESEERND R1TIEAH Receivables from securities issued

R Y FRIR for settlement after the reporting date - 1,000,000

H AR 5= Other assets 76,223 57,637

385,987 1,582,032
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25. &R 25. Fixed assets
(a) BEIEE=TED (a) Movement in fixed assets
ERNR PAERE
Right-of-use EQYET
assets on Office
leased FFMUEE  equipment, RE
properties  Leasehold furniture R Motor BE
for own use improvement and fixtures  Computers vehicle Total
TR T#x THR THT FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-E-=%-A—-H  Costasat1lanuary 2023
HIRAR 201,418 60,792 19,509 332,557 1,154 615,430
=yl Additions 132,726 47% 1867 30,586 565 170,542
/e Written-off/disposals 11,299) (3,186) (707) (7,619 - (52,809)
F-E-=#+-f Cost as at 31 December 2023
=+—BHRA 292,851 62,404 20,669 355,524 1,719 733,167
=10 Additions 24,705 3,185 3606 28991 - 60,487
s/ e Written-off/disposals (23,589) (284) () 7,772 - (31,650)
F-E-_ME+=H Cost as at 31 December 2024
=t—-BHRA 293,967 65,305 24,270 376,743 1,719 762,004
TZE-=%—F—Bf Accumulated depreciation
21714718 asat 1 January 2023 (93,749) (32,385) (13063) (287,564) (893) (427,654)
IR (K2 12) Depreciation charge (Note 12) (39527) (10,096) 2920 (29473) (142) (82,158)
W/ hE Written-off/disposals 41,293 3186 707 7,619 = 52805
F-E_=F+ZR Accumulated depreciation
=t+—BHZ A as at 31 December 2023 (91,983) (39,295) (15,276) (309,418) (1,035) (457,007)
118 (K£12) Depreciation charge (Note 12) (50,797) 7,952 (2,766) (27.997) (236) (89,748)
e/ e Written-off/disposals 23,589 284 5 7772 - 31,650
F-E-_mE+ZA Accumulated depreciation
=8 =l S il as at 31 December 2024 (119,191) (46,963) (18,037)  (329,643) (1,271)  (515,105)
F-E-_mE+ZA As at 31 December 2024
==
R Cost 293,967 65,305 24,270 376,743 1,719 762,004
ESagiills Accumulated depreciation (119,191) (46,963) (18,037)  (329,643) (1,2711)  (515,105)
i T 380 Net book amount 174,776 18,342 6,233 47,100 448 246,899
F-F-=F+=R As at 31 December 2023
=1+-H
AR Cost 292,851 62,400 20,669 355,524 1,719 733,167
EShpiilln Accumulated depreciation (91,983) (39,295) (15,276) (309,413) (1,035 (457,007)
INEE Net book amount 200,868 23,109 5,393 16,106 684 276,160
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(b)

HE

5 R K 51 7R B X 18 BT ) & 21 40
T ¢

Leases

The statement of financial position shows the following
amounts relating to leases:

FERARE S — T Right-of-use assets — buildings 174,776 200,868

HEAM Lease liabilities:
— —F K — within 1 year 49,262 34,049
— B3 —F —over 1 year 127,707 161,075
176,969 195,124

HRMGREDERAT

The movement in lease liabilities is summarised as follows:

FT—R—H As at 1 January 195,124 109,781
N Addition 21,753 120,525
b Amortisation 8,338 2,591
HEARFIEF Interest portion of lease payments (8,338) (2,591)
HANRA o Principal portion of lease payments (39,908) (35,182)
F=—=F-_mMF+=-A=+—H Asat31December 2024 176,969 195,124

BE_ZT_NF+-_A=+—HIHF
g BRI LR S5 50,828,000
BIL(ZE =4 : 39,514,00087T) °

[i

BE_Z_N&E+-_A=+—HIF
€ » {3 F UK 7= 1 Hn 24,705,000 7 7T
(ZE =4 : 132,726,000 7T) ©

SEREKRITEREREN ST
T~

FEARA~HIR — HEF

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31
December 2024 was HK$50,828,000 (2023: HK$39,514,000).

Additions to the right-of-use assets for the year ended 31
December 2024 were HK$24,705,000 (2023: HK$132,726,000).

The consolidated income statement shows the following
amounts relating to leases:

2023

TAET
HK$'000

Depreciation charge of right-of-use
assets — buildings 50,797 39,527

Interest expense

8,338 2,591
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AEFAERETHAE - MEHEE
Bl R 7] - BH T AR A SR AE
HEER

NAEHE iz EE AR - Y ER
W2 BBEARLILEER - KED
SR RZEEFERNA BARET
£ - MAFAERAEAEA ©

26. RIfTFI2

VAT B I R A B

The Group leases various offices and rental contracts are
mainly made for fixed periods of six years but may have
extension options as described below.

Extension and termination options are included in property
leases of the Group for operational flexibility. The majority of
extension and termination options held are exercisable only
by the Group and not by the respective lessor.

26. Interest payable

2024 2023
FTET

HK$'000

TR
HK$'000

Interest payable from:

— B EATHRSIE S — debt securities issued 2,907,719 3,182,932
— FXEBHEY — interest rate swap contracts 429,198 499,175
— HAhffR — other liabilities 5,407 2,308

3,342,324 3,684,415

27. Eiiﬁ'llllﬁlﬁ s BT AR Hfth 6

27. Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other

& liabilities
2023
FET
HK$'000
RAH PRI R BTS2 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 2,988,126 1,937,813
Hb s m Other liabilities 894,445 1,901,803
T 5 (HE25(b)) Lease liabilities (Note 25(b)) 176,969 195,124
Hihtk & Other provision 73,126 72,729
4,132,666 4,107,469

EfhGmEEEEF/ N ERAERFRITNT
H45 Bl L BB HE B (M1 33) R D AR
TR (T 31(2)) BT B i8R 5 RIL (B
PR AR R AEFF 2 ) 894,445,000/ 70 (=
T~ =4F : 1,901,803,000/87T) °

Other liabilities represented mainly the guarantee fee
and fund received (net of claims and related expenses) of
HK$894,445,000 (2023: HK$1,901,803,000) under the special
concessionary measures of the SFGS (Note 33) and the PLGS
(Note 31(a)).
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28. RRRAGRBERIEREX 28. Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets

RERAGHRAFEBREEGN  IE A The breakdown of portfolios of reinsurance contracts held,
REEE A RS A BIRRKE AR EEHA insurance contracts issued and reinsurance contacts issued, that
BT« are in an asset and those in a liability position is set out in the table
below:
2024 2023
B il b R il gL
Assets Liabilities Net Assets Liabilities Net
T T TiEx BT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEEBRREHN Reinsurance contracts held
—fRARE — general insurance 1,081,689 - 1,081,689 761,043 - 761,043
FERRREY Insurance contracts issued
—fRIRE — general insurance - 6,017,192 6,017,192 - 4,991,968 4,991,968
AFRE —ife insurance - 18,833,695 18,833,695 - 14296229 14,296,229
- 24,850,887 24,850,887 - 19288197 19,288,197
FERBREEH Reinsurance contracts issued
AFHRE — life insurance - 195,009 195,009 - 87,648 87,648
281 FhiEEEBREEN FEEREBE 28.1 Reinsurance contracts held, insurance contracts
BEHRMEEBRIREY issued and reinsurance contract issued
(@ FEBEEBRREY  IE AR (@ Roll-forward of net asset or liability for reinsurance
BAENRIAES R BIREAES N contracts held, insurance contracts issued and
RrEgERAE2IEH(E reinsurance contracts issued showing the liability for
RTETRRE NG EFA~4R remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims
RAHUR)
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iy FRBEBRREY — — () Reinsurance contracts held — general insurance
ARARBS
B BREESHNHNR The roll-forward of the net asset or liability for
FARERARATEY reinsurance contracts held, showing assets for
(ERERTHRR A A remaining coverage and amounts recoverable
B lb 55 P = A BD R TR on incurred claims arising business ceded to
SRR B AEBRRA reinsurers is disclosed in the table below:
Bl &) T NRIKE -
RTRREF AHESH
Assets for Amounts
remaining coverage recoverable
Nt
WESRIS WESHRPS fEERR
Excluding
|05$-I’€COV€I‘Y Loss-recovery Incurred
component component claims
i3 Tén TR Thn Thn
Notes HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T-A-BHERRANES ReinsLirance contract assets
asat 1 January 249,002 506,104 5,937 761,043

BAURRRSALERERT Changes in the consolidated
income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

BRENREDIE Allocation of reinsurance premiums
SRTREAFEDERNEEH Amounts relating to the changes
in the assets for remaining coverage 3 (68,390) - - (68,390)
BN B RREMT RN Amounts recoverable for claims and other
AHE S expenses incurred in the period - - 25,335 25,335
s RRARET R Changes in amounts recoverable
ARESRE) arising from changes in iability
forincurred claims = = 7,386 7,386
SERtHER A A Changes in fulflment cash flows which
BONERERD relate to onerous Underlying contracts b - 388,591 - 388,591
FEEBRRANM () MASR  Net(expenses)income from
reinsLirance contracts held (68,390) 388,591 211 352,922
BREAHNME () /A% Netfinance (expenses)/income
from reinsurance contracts ¢ (119,542) 9,780 - (109,762)
BREASTEARREHNEM Effect of changes in non-performance
risk of reinsurers (4,544) - - (4,544)
(124,086) 9,780 - (114,306)
SARERRGASEARAREHER  Total changes in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated statement
of comprehensive income (192,476) 398,371 211 238,616
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RTRBAF TRESH

Assets for Amounts
remaining coverage recoverable
g
KESHS WESHEs fiEERE
Excluding
loss-recovery Loss-recovery Incurred
component component claims
T T T Thn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fefiE Cash flows

BRRERENTX Premiums and similar expenses paid 96,082 - - 96,082

Bled Amounts received - - (21,099) (21,099)

Nehesa Total cash flows 96,082 - (21,099) 74,983

HEN% Other reclassification 7132 - (85) 7,047

FHA=t+-ANERREY Reinsurance contract assets

R as at 31 December 159,740 904,475 17,474 1,081,689

FE - Notes:

a. BREMRED LR Included within the allocation of reinsurance premiums
BEAREAFE/TA] are non-recoverable expenses incurred by the Group,
WEFFS - SEITH#E directly attributable to fulfilment of reinsurance
EBERKENEER contracts held.

;Q °

b. MR ELREE Changes in the expected fulfilment cash flows on
29 48 51 /9 71 B B £ 3N reinsurance contracts held which relate to groups of
EmER Thm R underlying insurance contracts are recognised in profit
N MISHERRKEE S and loss if the changes in expected fulfilment cash
HREANFIFEE S flows from the group of underlying insurance contracts
REEE LR TNERE 4 issued was also recognised in profit and loss.

N FEZITTR
ZERFIA ©
C. AN & F H BARK W 5 The Group disaggregates net reinsurance finance

WA BT s Rk B
2 E R Z B
¥15 152 [ HE2.220)
V) °

income between profit or l0ss and other comprehensive
income. Please refer to Note 2.22()(v) for details.
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T-A-BHBREAHAF

Reinsurance contract assets

Assets for
remaining coverage
TofERES

Excluding
loss-recovery
component
AL TAL
HK$'000 HK$000

Loss-recovery
component

Amounts
recoverable
FFEEBRR

Incurred
claims
TAL

HK$000

Y g

e
HK$'000

asat 1 January 204,413 167,408 4,552 376,373
BABERREALEKERES  Changes in the consolidated
income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
BRENRRIE Allocation of reinsurance premiums
SATRRAFZIEXN LT Amounts relating to the changes
in the assets for remaining coverage (132.941) - - (132941)
BEENRRREMFRA Amounts recoverable
REEH for claims and other expenses
incurred in the period - - 74,054 74,054
A RRAGRR AL Changes in amounts recoverable
AREEHES arising from changes in liability
forincurred claims - - 1,305 1,305
5SRIERXEARAN Changes in fulfilment cash flows
BYILTELH which relate to onerous
Underlying contracts - 336,281 - 336,281
A BRRA LN () /A5 Net (expenses)income from
reinsurance contracts held (132,941) 336,281 75,359 278,69
BREANONS (Lh)/MAASR  Netfinance (expenses)income
from reinsurance contracts (55,151) 2415 - (52,736)
BRERADPEONKEDMZM  Effect of changes in non-performance
risk of reinsurers 4.725) - - (4,725)
(59,876) 2415 = (57,461)
SARERREFALERERTHZH Total changes in the consolidated
income statement and consolidated
Statement of comprehensive
income (192,817) 338,696 75,359 238
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&

Assets for Amounts

remaining coverage recoverable

PMERES RS a5 FEERR
Excluding

loss-recovery Loss-recovery Incurred

component component claims

TETL TAL TAL

HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Nekg Cash flows

ERREREUT X Premiums and similar expenses paid 264877 - - 264877

Bhed Amounts received - - (73960) (73960)

Hengsa Total cash flows 264,877 = (73960) 190917

RHEHHR Other reclassfication @747 = (1) (27485)

FT-A=t-BHBRRAY Reinsurance contract assets

R as at 31 December 249,002 506,104 5931 761,043

BE - Notes:

a. BRENRZHER Included within the allocation of reinsurance premiums
BARERAF £/ are non-recoverable expenses incurred by the Group,
WEF % - SBITH# directly attributable to fulfilment of reinsurance
EERKRENEER contracts held.

e

b. WXL LRRE Changes in the expected fulfilment cash flows on
248 71| &) 1 B /B L9 B reinsurance contracts held which relate to groups of
eREE TMEANT underlying insurance contracts are recognised in profit
N MSHERREE S and loss if the changes in expected fulfilment cash
ERIERNFTRA B flows from the group of underlying insurance contracts
REE LN INEE S issued was also recognised in profit and loss.

N HmEZITTR
AT

C. NER G BERRMS The Group disaggregates net reinsurance finance

WABSTiRskE income between profit or loss and other comprehensive

2 EREZ B
¥ 15152 M 2.22(0)
V) °

income. Please refer to Note 2.22()(v) for details.
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(i) FERFEERAYH — —K (i)
ol

FrERRR A LM E -
AERNGUERES (2
RTHEHRTIREER

Insurance contracts issued — general insurance

The roll-forward of the net asset or liability for
insurance contracts issued, showing the liability
for remaining coverage and the liability for

mRAFERRAGR) T incurred claims for portfolios, is disclosed in the
TREE - table below:
2024
RTRRARK fiFERE ik
LRC Lic
FEESRB SHiss
Excluding loss Loss
component component
T Thn Thn ThR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T-A-BHRRAARG Instrance contract liabiltes
asat 1 January 3,408,458 1,526,940 56,570 4,991,968
BAURRRSALARERT Changes in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income
REWA Insurance revenue
NFEETHAYS Contracts Under fair vallie approach (194,924) - - (194,924)
Had Other contracts (723,591) - - (723,591)
(918,515) - - (918,515)
RERSTX Insurance service expenses
i ERREMT L Incurred claims and other expenses - (72,033) 140,670 68,637
REMEN L2 HE Amortisation of insUrance acquisition
cash flows 3 238,000 - - 238,000
SHREAANSRRUSTRIAE Losses on onerous contracts and
reversals of those losses - 1,258,773 - 1,258,773
i RRARED Changes to liability for incurred claims - - 23,405 23,405
238,000 1,186,740 164,075 1,588,815
RERS LG Insurance service result (680,515) 1,186,740 164,075 670,300
RIBHE (BA) /it Insurance finance (income)/expenses b (239,808) 30,454 - (209,354)
BAREERGASERAZTAZR  Total changes in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated Statement
of comprehensive income (920,323) 1,217,194 164,075 460,946
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RIRRAR fiFEREffR
LRC LiC
FEESRB ShHigs
Excluding loss Loss
component component
T T Tén TEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
feHiE Cash flows
BlRT Premium received 934,886 - - 934,886
ERBRREMERAY Claims and otfer directly attributable
expenses paid - - (106,370) (106,370)

BRUENS TS Insrance acquisition cash flows C (272,291) - - (272,291)

NERERH Total cash flows 662,595 - (106,370) 556,225

B % Other reclassification d 10,276 1,551 (3,774) 8,053

FHZA=+-BNRREAAR Insurance contract liabilities

as at 31 December 3,161,006 2,745,685 110,501 6,017,192

BE Notes:

a. WENERETEAS a. Acquisition cash flows were allocated on straight-line
4 48 B &9 A 4R A (8] 19 basis during the coverage period of the respective
AELEDE - 152 H group of contracts. Please refer to Note 2.22(e).
Mi5E2.22(e) °

b. 7N & B 4 B AR e W b. The Group made an accounting policy choice to
Sy W ERZEREAM disaggregate insurance finance expense between profit
2 H Wz 2 8] 5 KK or loss and other comprehensive income. The Group
SUBERIER - AEH does not disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment
HIE S MR for non-financial risk between insurance service result
M IHEE D FRE and insurance finance expenses.

BR %5 Al 57 R AR BS W 55
X Z B ©

c. T O HIAE K AR C. Insurance acquisition cash flows paid after the related
BB RE W E N group is initially recognised are adjusted to the liability
EREBFEERTR for remaining coverage.

B A f5 ©
d. d. Other reclassification relates to where the accounting

HEHDKSRKRRK
BLBERNI SR
EREANETER
ik V=B R
3R R A S5 3R R
BB TRt ER
x o BFDRINMS
RREFHNEREAM
W %5 R R UL E #H TR

RIE%

treatment of some overheads included with the cash
flows within the boundary of an insurance contract are
grouped under other financial statement line items in
the statement of financial position. A reclassification
is made with a corresponding adjustment to such
other financial statement line items in the statement of
financial position.
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L0ss

component component
THm TEn TR Thr
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
T-A-BHRRAAAR Insurance contract liabities
asat 1 January 2,908,854 735,890 3,712 367645

GRURRRSALERERTY Changes in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive

income
REUA Insurance revenue
AFEETHRY Contracts under fair valug approach (265,247) - - (265,247)
HtoAY Other contracts (522,289) - - (522,289)
(787,53) - - (787,536)
REESTX Insurance service expenses
FFtERREMT R Incurred claims and other expenses - (35817) 58,652 28%
REMET S REkH Amortisation of insLirance acquisition
cash flows 3 184,190 - - 184,190
SHERANSRRES S RRE Losses on onerous contracts and
reversals of those l0sses - 818,615 - 818,615
iR Changes to liability for incurred claims - - 17m 7.M
184,190 782,798 75,863 1,042,851
RERSLE Insurance service result (603,346) 782,798 75,863 255,315
REMSFR Insurance finance expenses b 2734 5715 - 28449
BANERRIGASERERTHER  Total changes i the consolidated income
statement and consolidated tatement
of comprehensive income (580612) 788,513 75863 283,764
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2023

i ERRAR

LC
Excluding loss L0ss
component component
i3 Thr Thn FhL
Notes HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
fiehia Cash flows
BRSR Premium received 1917867 - - 1917867
ERBRREMERAY Claims and otfer directly attributable
expenses paid - - (59943) (59.943)
RREWENSHE Insurance acquisition cash flows C (651,800 - - (651,800)
NeheiF Total cash flows 1,266,067 - (59.943) 1,206,124
K& D% Other reclassification d (185,851) 2537 8938 (174,376)
F+-A=t-BHRRASGRE Insurance contract liabilties
asat 31 December 3,408,458 1,526,940 5,570 4991968

B -

WENERETEAE
2948 Bl B9 # AR Hi 18] R
ABEZEDE - B2 H
Fff5E2.22(e) ©

7 & B 1 45 AR B T
S M ERDREAM
S a2 7] 55 2K
SUTBERIESE - REH]
HEBESBNRD
R IA B RS TRE
BR %5k 53 B2 AR B T 55
XHZ B ©

TR HINE X AR
fa X A5 6 (R B 18 B I
ERBHEBER TR

e fa 5T

HihEBH HEKSRK
SHEERNNAER
BREINETER
FERKREXREMS K
L3R A A 55 4R R
THTH2ITAESR
X o BEFORINMS
RREZHWE R EAM
T 25 3% &= 0 B 3t 17 48
RIVEEE o

Notes:

Acquisition cash flows were allocated on straight-line
basis during the coverage period of the respective
group of contracts. Please refer to Note 2.22(e).

The Group made an accounting policy choice to
disaggregate insurance finance expense between profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. The Group
does not disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment
for non-financial risk between insurance service result
and insurance finance expenses.

Insurance acquisition cash flows paid after the related
group is initially recognised are adjusted to the liability
for remaining coverage.

Other reclassification relates to where the accounting
treatment of some overheads included with the cash
flows within the boundary of an insurance contract are
grouped under other financial statement line items in
the statement of financial position. A reclassification
is made with a corresponding adjustment to such
other financial statement line items in the statement of
financial position.
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(i) FAIERFREAEYH — AF (iii)
ol

FrERRR A LM E -
AERNGUERES (2
RNAE KR TR AU

Insurance contracts issued — life insurance

The roll-forward of the net asset or liability for
insurance contracts issued, showing the liability
for remaining coverage and the liability for

R ERRAG) TT incurred claims for portfolios, is disclosed in the
R table below:
2024
RTRRARK fiFERE ik
LRC Lic
FEESRB SHiss
Excluding loss Loss
component component
T Thn Thn ThR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T-A-BHRRAARG Instrance contract liabiltes
asat 1 January 10,549,149 3,692,363 54,717 14,296,229
BAURRRSALARERTY Changes in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income
REHA Insurance revenue
AFEETHAY Contracts under fair value approach (211,375) - - (211,375)
Had Other contracts (185,378) - - (185,378)
(396,753) - - (396,753)
RERSTX Insurance service expenses
i ERREMT L Incurred claims and other expenses - (269,562) 617,506 347,944
REMENS 2 HE Amortisation of insUrance acquisition
cash flows 3 16,209 - - 16,209
SHREANNSRRUSTRIAE Losses on onerous contracts and
reversals of those losses - 1322103 - 1,322,103
16,209 1,052,541 617,506 1,686,256
R’EHn Investment components (569,450) - 569,450 -
RERSLE Insurance service result (949,994) 1,052,541 1,186,956 1,289,503
REMES Insurance finance expenses b 184,971 97,014 899 282,884
BANGRREASERERENER  Total changes in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated Statement
of comprehensive income (765,023) 1,149,555 1,187,855 1,572,381
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KIRRAR £ R RR G
LRC LIC
FEFESRES SHES
Excluding loss Loss
component component
Tén TEn TEn TEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RERE Cash flows

BlRT Premium received 4,259,102 - - 4,259,102

BREREMEERY Claims and other directly attributable

£xpenses paid - - (1,180,048) (1,180,048)

BRNENS S Insurance acquisition cash flows c (113,975) - - (113,975)

AeieLa Total cash flows 4,145,127 - (1,180,048) 2,965,079

FHoAZt-ANRREA AR Insurance contract liabilities

as at 31 December 13,929,253 4,841918 62,524 18,833,695

BtE Notes:

a. HWEINERETEA Acquisition cash flows were allocated on straight-line
25 48 RI| #) 7 R HA 18] R basis during the coverage period of the respective
AELEDE - 152 group of contracts. Please refer to Note 2.22(e).
Ffi5E2.22(e) ©

b. A& H BB R M The Group made an accounting policy choice to
XY HAERSREAM disaggregate insurance finance expense between profit
2HEW R ZEDER or loss and other comprehensive income. The Group
SR LR - AREH does not disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment
HELBELRRAR L for non-financial risk between insurance service result
R IARELD ) FIRE and insurance finance expenses.

BR 55 b % 2 AR B W 55
X Z B HF
C. TR INE RAF Insurance acquisition cash flows paid after the related

fa X A% 69 (R B2 18 B I
ERBHEBER TR
e fa 5T o

group is initially recognised are adjusted to the liability
for remaining coverage.
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L0ss

component component
THm TEn TR Thr
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
T-A-BHRRAAAR Insurance contract liabities
asat 1 January 8,406,988 3653860 36,009 12,096,857

GRURRRSALERERTY Changes in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive

income
REUA Insurance revenue
NFEETHES Contracts under fair value approach (238,983) - - (238,989)
HtoAY Other contracts (101,428) - - (101,428)
(340,411) - - (340,411)
REESTX Insurance service expenses
FFtERREMT R Incurred claims and other expenses - (235,276) 535,392 300,116
REMET S RERH Amortisation of insLirance acquisition
cash flows a 9553 - - 9,553
SRR AN RREES R Losses on onerous contracts and
reversals of those losses - w7 - mn7
9,553 (12,259 535,392 532,686
LGED) Investment component w7889 = 176891 -
RERS LS Insurance service result (807,79) (12.259) 1,012,283 192,275
REMEFZ Insurance finance expenses b 1,544,047 50,762 303 1,595,112
SARRRRGASAREREHSR  Total changes in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated statement
of comprehensive income 736,298 38,503 1,012,588 1,787,387
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2023

FiEERZ M

lc
7 i i
Excluding loss L0ss
component component
i3 AT Thn T
Notes HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

fiehia Cash flows

BRSR Premium recelved 1523810 - - 1523810

ERBRREMERAY Claims and otfer directly attributable

£Xpenses paid - - (993878) (993878)

REWENSRE Insurance acquisition cash flows c (117,947) - - 17947)

bkt fox Total cash lows 1405863 - (93878 411,985

FHZA=T-BHRRANAR Inurance contract liabiltes

asat 31 December 10,549,149 3,692,363 54,717 14,296,229

BdE - Notes:

a. WEINERETEA a. Acquisition cash flows were allocated on straight-line
45 48 RI| Y 2 R HA (8] R basis during the coverage period of the respective
ELEDE - 152H group of contracts. Please refer to Note 2.22(e).
FMi5E2.22(e) °

b. RE R EDLBRRK M b. The Group made an accounting policy choice to
X HERas R E A disaggregate insurance finance expense between profit
2HEWEZE DR or loss and other comprehensive income. The Group
SUTBURER ° NEH does not disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment
HEBIES XKD for non-financial risk between insurance service result
KB REE ) TR and insurance finance expenses.

Bk 55 Al Gx R AR BS W 55
X Z B ©
cE T HiIAE X AR C. Insurance acquisition cash flows paid after the related

fa XA B9 (R B 18 B B
EREPEERTR
[ i -

group is initially recognised are adjusted to the liability
for remaining coverage.
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SREMEIREME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(ivy FIEABREEY — A (iv)  Reinsurance contracts issued — life insurance
FHIREG
Fr & & BRI & Y& 7= The roll-forward of the net asset or liability for
FESAREI(ERA reinsurance contracts issued, showing the
B R R MR SR RFT liability for remaining coverage and the liability
FEBRRMMR) TTIEE for incurred claims for portfolios, is disclosed in
B the table below:
20
FELRRAR
Lc
TSRS SHEs
Excluding loss Loss
component component
T#7 147 T#7 TR
HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T-A-ANRRAARG Insurance contract liabiltes
asat 1 January 79,310 7,938 400 87,648

BAURRRSALARERTY Changes in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

REUA Insurance revenue
ATEETHAY Contracts under fair value approach - - - -
AaY Other contracts (4,762) - - (4,762)
(4,762) = = (4,762)
RERSFX Insurance service expenses
FEh R RRE M Incurred claims and other expenses - (1,241) 6,043 4,802
SRR ANSRRESSRIE L08Ses on onerous contracts and
reversals of those losses - 19,955 - 19,955
- 18,714 6,043 24,751
) Investment components (3,659) - 3,659 -
RERSLE Insurance service result (8,421) 18,714 9,702 19,995
BB Insurance finance expenses 3 938 943 - 1,881
BARERRGASEAREREHSHR  Total changes inthe consolidated income
statement and consolidated statement
of comprenensive income (7,483) 19,657 9,702 21,876
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FTREAR gLy

LRC LI
FafESHRES SHEs
Excluding loss Loss
component component
TER TER TER TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
feRE Cash flows

BURS Premium received 94,659 - - 94,659

ERBRREMERAY Claims and other directy attributable

expenses paid - - (9,174) (9,174)

AERELE Totalcash flows 94,659 - (9,174) 85,485

FHZA=T-BNRREAAR Insurance contract liabilities

as at 31 December 166,486 27,595 928 195,009

M5 - Note:

&L RERAH T EBRRE M a. The Group does not disaggregate insurance finance
EYHETFHREREAM expense between profit or loss and other comprehensive
SR Z D IR income and does not disaggregate changes in the risk
T AES B R & X adjustment for non-financial risk between insurance
BT FIRR R service result and insurance finance expenses.

%l 5 RARBS M 55 =

HZ B o
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Insurance contract (assets)/liabilities
asat 1 January

component
TEL
HKS000

Loss
component
TEL
HKS'000

FERL
HK$'000

TEL
HK$000

SREERRGRLARERTS

Changes in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income

REUA Insurance revenue
AFEETHRY Contracts under fair valug approach - - - -
HtoaY Other contracts (836) - - (83¢)
(836) = = (836)
REESTX Insurance service expenses
FFtERREMT R Incurred claims and other expenses - (137) 3,055 2918
SHERANSRRESS IR L0sses on onerous contracts and
reversals of those osses - 7947 - 7947
- 7810 3,055 10,865
LUy Investment components (533 - 53 .
RERS L& Insurance service result (1,369) 7810 3588 10,029
B Insurance finance expenses 8261 128 - 8,389
BAREERGASERAREAZR  Total changes in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated Statement
of comprehensive income 6892 7938 3,588 18413
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2023

R

LC
Excluding loss L0ss
component component
Thr Thn T
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
fiehie Cash flows
BRRSR Premium received 748 - - 7418
ERBRREMERAY Claims and otfer directly attributable
expenses paid - - (3183 (3,183)
NehesH Total cash flows 708 - (3189) 69,230
FHZA=T-RHRRAAR R Insurance contract liabilties
as at 31 December 79310 7,938 400 87,648
BfSE - Note:
a. AN & B H T E AR R a. The Group does not disaggregate insurance

S B THRAEREM
SEWREZ B - IR
THESBXRHOR
f% 18 B %2 3 T R [ AR
£l 57 R AR B W 55 32
HZ B

finance expense between profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and does not disaggregate
changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk
between insurance service result and insurance finance
expenses.
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b) FMHEBRREY  AZAK (b)  Roll-forward of the net asset or liability for reinsurance
wE A RS K BREE L6 contracts held, insurance contracts issued and
RE2EXAGRAE (T reinsurance contracts issued showing estimates of the
TARRNEREBINEHMHIT present value of future cash flows, risk adjustment and
MR A% & & L9AR 55 W as ) CSM
() FFHERRREY (i) Reinsurance contracts held

TREZINMFEEBRR The table below presents a roll-forward of the net
N0k A= X W= K D asset or liability for reinsurance contracts held,
BEAED  HRE R showing estimates of the present value of future
AR BT E B cash flows, risk adjustment and CSM for reinsurance
R B E B ARKIE R held portfolios included in insurance unit.

EIRENM[IT - KK
BRAEHRSWE -

2024

SHRSKE
CSM

ARIERE  FERARN
Pkt R AV

Estimates of Risk
the present  adjustment for
value of future  non-financial Fair value
cash flows risk approach Others Total
K T T T T Tén
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T-A-BNERRAY Reinsurance contract (iabilities)/

()% assets as at 1 January (134,622) 351,089 157,515 387,061 761,043

BAURRRSALEUHERED  Changes in the consolidated
income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

SXHRSAXNTY Changes that relate to
current service
FEEXRSBUNANRSNE  CSMrecognised for the
services received - - (23,765) (51,308) (75,073)
SERENREAONLBE Risk adjustment recognised for
the risk expired - 13,159 - - 13,159
LS Experience adjustment (2,258) - - - (2.258)
(2,258) 13,159 (23,765) (51,308) (64,172)
SRRBEAXNT Changes that relate to
future service
BRREANAL Contracts initially recognised
in the period 3 (52,748) 1119 - 51,629 -
R ORE MR BT Changes in estimates that
adjust the CSM 320,778 (242,952) 36,340 (114,166) =
PREANRZNERETTED  Changes i estimates that
(o not adjust the CSM b 111,155 298,553 - - 409,708
379,185 56,720 36,340 (62,537) 409,708
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2024

WA BT R R
fb 2z 2 [ 5 1 o
F15 152 BT 2.220)
V) °

AHRS W
CSM
ARALTE FERRRN
REMHT RRAE AYER
Estimates of Risk
the present  adjustment for
value of future  non-financial Fair value
cash flows risk approach Others Total
Rx Thn T Thr Thr Thn
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SRERSAXNTL Changes that relate to
past service
HEFERRHHHEE Adjustments to incurred claim
component 1,584 5802 - - 7,386
BREMS () /WA ReinsLrance finance (expenses)/
income ¢ (125,730) - 2,894 13,074 (109,762)
BREADAEARKENZM  Effectof changes innon-performance
risk of reinsLirers (4,544) - - - (4,544)
(128,690) 5802 2,894 13,074 (106,920)
GRYEERFALENER Total changes in the consolidated
P EE income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income 248,231 75,681 15,469 (100,771) 238,616
fefiE Cash flows
BARERENTL Premium and similar expenses paid 96,082 - - - 96,082
(B Claims recovery received (21,099) - - - (21,099)
Nehesa Total cash flows 74,983 - - - 74,983
HEN% Other reclassification 7,047 - - = 7,047
FT-A=T-ANERKAY  Reinsurance contract assets
R as at 31 December 195,645 426,770 172,984 286,290 1,081,689
BiE - Notes:
BxUEHINE AN a. Please refer to Note 28.1(c)(iii) for a detailed breakdown
B - ESFRME of initially recognised contracts.
28.1(c)(iii) °
WKL LERKE b. Changes in the expected fulfilment cash flows on
2948 Bl &) T A B 49 I reinsurance contracts held which relate to groups of
EREE THENE underlying insurance contracts are recognised in profit
A MSHERRRESN and loss if the changes in expected fulfilment cash
PRI TSR flows from the group of underlying insurance contracts
REEE LR TNERE 49 issued are also recognised in profit and loss.
NenEXPINTH
FENHHIA o
RNEFG BARK M S C. The Group disaggregates net reinsurance finance

income between profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Please refer to Note 2.22()(v) for details.

EERBISARAT —S-—maFif 379



SREMEIREME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

T-H-RHBRRAY

ReinsLrance contract (iabilities)/

Estimates of
the present
value of future
cash flows

e —

i 7L
Notes HK$'000

adjustment for
non-financial

risk
i
HKS'000

Fair value
approach
T
HKS000

Others
%
HK$'000

HK$000

(R /%7 assets asat 1 January (29148¢) 304,538 78200 285,121 376,373
GARERRGALENERES  Changesin the consolidated
income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
SZHRSAXNTY Changes that relate to
current service
SEERRSEASAREKE  CSMrecognised for the
services received - - (26,347) #1,030) (67,383)
SRR ELNNREE Risk acfustment recognised for
the risk expired - 13158 - - 13,158
ZRRE Experience aojustment (14.431) - - - (14.431)
(14.431) 13,158 (26,347) (41,036) (68,656)
SRkBSEXNED Changes that relate to
future service
BOkEANEY Contracts initially recognised
inthe period a (189,909) 19111 = 174849 4,051
BEANRZUEREIED Changes in estimates that
adjust the CSM 178,076 (240,523) 104,601 (42.154) -
TAEEANRSNENEITED  Changesin estimates that
(o not adust the CSM b 87,107 254,292 - - 341,99
75874 32,880 104,601 132,695 346,050
SRERSAXNTL Changes that relate to
past service
HEFERRHH A% Adjustments to incurred claim
component 792 513 - - 1,305
BREMZ )/ KA Reinsurance finance (expenses)/
income ¢ (64,078) - 1,061 10,281 (52,736)
BREATMEAONRTHHFE  Effect of changesin non-performance
risk of reinsurers (4,725) - - - (4.725)
(68,011) 53 1,061 10,281 (56,156)
GRRERRTALENER Total changes in the consolidated
THEE income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (6,568) 46551 79,315 101,940 2238
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Estimates of

thepresent ~ adjustment for
value of future non-financial Fair value
cash flows risk approach Others
Thr AL ThL F Trr
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK§/000
fiehia Cash flows
BARRRENFL Premium and similar expenses paid 24877 - - - 24,877
alEEES Claims recovery received (73,960) - - - (73,960)
NeReEEH Total cash flows 190917 - - - 190917
K& D% Other reclassification (27.489) - - - (27.485)
FHZA=T-REBERRAY  Reinsurance contract (iabilties)
(i) %7 assets as at 31 December (13462 351089 157,515 37,061 761083
BfE Notes:
a. HEEHIAS L a. Please refer to Note 28.1(c)(iii) for a detailed breakdown
B - ESFRME of initially recognised contracts.
28.1(c)(iii) ©
b. HMEXLXMERRRE b. Changes in the expected fulfilment cash flows on
£ 48 5| &) T H2A 7B 49 T reinsurance contracts held which relate to groups of
EREETHRENE underlying insurance contracts are recognised in profit
N MSERRRESN and loss if the changes in expected fulfilment cash
HREFHTEER flows from the group of underlying insurance contracts
REEE LR TNERE 49 issued are also recognised in profit and loss.
NeREXRP I T
FENHHIA ©
C. R & % B AR M 5% C. The Group disaggregates net reinsurance finance

WAB T inam kA
fb 2 Wz 2 85 o
F15 152 BT 2.220)
(U

income between profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Please refer to Note 2.22(i)(v) for details.
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SREMEIREME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(i) FERFEERAYH — —K (i)
ol

Insurance contracts issued — general insurance

TREJMERRR A
YR AEL RS
FREY P ERAKRK
NemERNENMBI

The table below presents a roll-forward of the net
asset or liability for insurance contracts issued,
showing estimates of the present value of future
cash flows, risk adjustment and CSM.

RS 2 B & £ AR 55 W

Zs o
g

T-R-BHRRAARE

Insurance contract liabilities

ARALRE
Pt

Estimates of
the present
value of future
cash flows
AR
HK$'000

FERNRH
RERE

Risk
adjustment for
non-financial
risk

TER
HK$'000

2024

BHRS K&
CSM

ATEL

Fair value
approach
TR
HK$'000

Others
TiEn
HKS'000

Total
S
HKS'000

asat 1 January 310,015 1,279,262 1,109,769 2,292.922 4,991,968
BAURRRSALEUHERED  Changes in the consolidated
income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
LERSEXNE Changes that relate to
current service
SRS IS ARERE  CSMrecognised for the
services provided - - (236,495) (441,198) (677,693)
SEABNRELNRREE Risk adjustment recognised for
the risk expired - 19,065 - - 19,065
ZRRE Experience adjustments 46,750 - - - 46,750
46,750 19,065 (236,495) (441,198) (611,878)
SRRBEAXNT Changes that relate to
future service
ERBEANAY Contracts iniially recognised
inthe period (628,784) 36,801 - 612,909 20,926
BEAOREMRREITEY Changes in estimates that
adjust the CSM 114,206 56,003 (11,080) (159,129) -
TAEEANRSNENEIED  Changesin estimates that
(o not adfust the CSM 1,271,506 (33,659) - - 1,237,847
756,928 59,145 (11,080) 453,780 1,258,773
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2024

AHRS W
(2}
A¥ALRE FERNBH
REMET RERE AVER
Estimates of Risk
the present  adjustment for
value of future  nonfinancial Fair value
cash flows risk approach Others Total
Rx Thn Thn T ThT Thn
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SRERSAXNT Changes that relate to
past service
SRFEBRAGELNEE  Adustments toliabilties for
incurred claims 2,031 21,374 - - 23,405
RERS LG Insurance service result 805,709 99,584 (247,575) 12,582 670,300
REH% (RA)/Fx Insurance finance (income)/
eXpenses b (321,261) - 20,357 91,550 (209,354)
BANBRRGASENER Total changes in the consolidated
FHEE Income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income 484,448 99,584 (227,218) 104,132 460,946
feHhE Cash flows
BRR% Premium received 934,886 - - - 934,886
BNRERAMTS (BERAE Claims and other expenses
B RIRFER) naid (including investment
components and premium
refunds) (106,370) - - - (106,370)
BRHENSRE Insurance acquisition cash flows C (272,291) - - - (272,291)
Neihe 85 Total cash flows 556,225 - - - 556,225
LR DES Other reclassification d 8,053 - - - 8,053
FToA=T-ANRREY Insurance contract liabilities
R as at 31 December 1,358,741 1,378,846 882,551 2,397,054 6,017,192
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Pz

BRNIEFINE L8
AL - 152 HHDE
28.1(c)(i) °

AR E 1 RS
SXHARERR R
Hofth 2 [ s 2 A &Y
SUERRLF - A%H
HEBESBARD
KB 18 B R 3 TR [
BR %5 Al 55 B AR B T 55
XHZ B

TN INE K AR
fa XA B9 (R B 18 B I
EREBRABERTR
i fA R o

HiEH HKSRRK
SHEENNAER
BREaMNETER
FRKREREW SR
L3R R A T 55 R R
BB T2t ER
X o B RFIMS
RREZHR B X EAM
T 25 3% &= 0 B 3 17 48
RIVEEE
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Notes:

Please refer to Note 28.1(c)() for a detailed breakdown
of initially recognised contracts.

The Group made an accounting policy choice to
disaggregate insurance finance expense between profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. The Group
does not disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment
for non-financial risk between insurance service result
and insurance finance expenses.

Insurance acquisition cash flows paid after the related
group is initially recognised are adjusted to the liability
for remaining coverage.

Other reclassification relates to where the accounting
treatment of some overheads included with the cash
flows within the boundary of an insurance contract are
grouped under other financial statement line items in
the statement of financial position. A reclassification
is made with a corresponding adjustment to such
other financial statement line items in the statement of
financial position.



Insurance contract (assets)/iabiliies

Estimates of

the present

value of future

cash flows

Kz BT
Notes HKS'000

Risk
adjustment for
non-financial
risk

%

Fair value
approach
Thn

(87)/ i asat 1 January (77,265) 991310 1,348,995 1413416 367645
BANERREALERERTY Changes in the consolidated
income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
LERSEXNED Changes that relate to
current service
RARERSWANAARSYE  CMrecognised for he
Services provided - - (263488) (320800) (584,290)
FERBRREANRREE Risk adustment recognised for
therisk expired - 25,560 - - 25,560
2%R% Experience adjustments (14219 - - - (14219)
(14,219 25,560 (263,488) (320802) (572,949)
SRRESHXNE Changes that relate to
future service
BRRBINDEY Contracts initally recognised
inthe period a (1,168,588) 51836 - 1123693 6941
HRAARS YR EIRY Changes in estimates that
adjust the CM (55,267) 2948 6,037 19,812 -
PoBEANRSRENGITES  Changesinestimates that
donot acjust the CSM 631828 172,084 - - 804,112
(592027) 253538 6,037 1,143,505 811,053
SHARSEXNE Changes that relate to
past service
A EREN AL RBE Adjustments to iabites for
incurred claims 8357 8854 - - mm
REHRSLS Insurance service result (597,8%9) 287,952 (257451) 822,703 255,315
(RIS BA) /7 Insrance finance (income)/expenses b 16,579) - 18225 56,803 28,449
BANRARGALENER Total changes in the consolidated
T8 income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprenensive income (644,468) 27952 (239,226) 879,506 23764
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FANRAL - 152 DT
28.1(0)() ©

fEf I
Estimates of Risk
the present adjustment for
value of future non-financial Fair value
cash flows risk approach Others
i BT Thr
Notes HKS'000 HKS'000
feHiE Cash flows
2hR% Premium received 1917867 - - - 1917867
BIfEEREMFR (BERR Claims and other expenses
B RiREER) paid (nclucing investment
components and premium
refunds) (59,943) - - - (59,943)
RENENSH=E Insurance acquisition cash flows c (6571,800) - - - (651,800
emetH Total cash flows 1,206,124 - - - 1,206,124
EHERAE Other reclassification d (174,376) - - - (174,376)
FHoA=T-RANRRAY Inurance contract liablties
bk as at 31 December 310015 1,219,262 1,109,769 2292922 4,991,968
BE - Notes:
BXROBHINE AN Please refer to Note 28.1(c)(i) for a detailed

breakdown of initially recognised contracts.

7R £ [ 1 O R Be The Group made an accounting policy
FXHPRER R R choice to disaggregate insurance finance

H il £ B 2 [/ #
SUBERILE - NEH

expense between profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The Group does not

H ISR XEK R disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment
KB i B 2R o TR B for non-financial risk between insurance
PR 55 2ll: 57 B AR B W 55 service result and insurance finance expenses.
XM Z B

FHiaHINE <A Insurance acquisition cash flows paid after
B EREEEN the related group is initially recognised are

EREBPBER TR
e i -

HEHDKSRKRE
BLBERNIA LR
EREANETERE
R V=B R
MR R E A S R E
BB TSIt EE
X o BEFDRINMS
RREFHNEREAM
T 25 4 2= U1 B # 17 48
RIi%E
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adjusted to the liability for remaining coverage.

Other reclassification relates to where the
accounting treatment of some overheads
included with the cash flows within the
boundary of an insurance contract are
grouped under other financial statement line
items in the statement of financial position. A
reclassification is made with a corresponding
adjustment to such other financial statement
line items in the statement of financial
position.



(il FIZEREELHD — AFE (i)  Insurance contracts issued — life insurance

RIS

TREJMERRR S
YR AERIR S
FERY > HPERAKRK
NeREIEMMGKIT -

The table below presents a roll-forward of the net
asset or liability for insurance contracts issued,
showing estimates of the present value of future
cash flows, risk adjustment and CSM.

MBS 2 B A 40 AR 55 W

Zs o
iy

T-R-BHRRAARE

Insurance contract liabilities

ARAERE
Akt

Estimates of

the present

value of future

cash flows

Rix TER
Notes HK$'000

FEBNRH
NRRE

Risk
adjustment for
non-financial
risk

TER
HK$'000

2024

ARG KR
CSM

ATEL

Fair value
approach Others
TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000

Total
TExn
HKS'000

asat 1 January 14,150,143 146,086 - - 14,296,229
BANRRRSALEUHERNZ  Changes in the consolidated
income statement and
consoliciated statement of
comprehensive income
SLBRSEXANED Changes that relate to
current service
SERBNREARNRRE Risk adjustment recognised for
the risk expired - (8,102) - - (8,102)
ZRRE Experience adjustments (24,498) - - - (24,498)
(24,498) (8,102) - - (32,600)
SRXBEARNT Changes that relate to
future service
BOkEANEY Contracts initally recognised
inthe period 3 1,378,199 59,512 - - 14377111
PoBELARZNENEIED  Changesinesimates that
(o not adjust the CSM (132,006) 16,398 - = (115,608)
1,246,193 75910 - - 1,322,103
RERS LG Insurance service result 1,221,695 67,808 - - 1,289,503
REMSZL Insurance finance expenses b 282,884 - - - 282,884
SERBRRGALERARN  Total changes inthe consolidated
THEE Income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprengnsive income 1,504,579 67,808 - - 1,572,387
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2024
EARSE
CSM
A¥ALRE  FEHRRYG
REHRET REiA% AVEE
Estimates of Risk
the present  adjustment for
value of future  nonfinancial Fair value
cash flows risk approach Others Total
hx Thn Thn T T TEn
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fehE Cash flows
BT Premium received 4,259,102 - - - 4,259,102
B BRREMFS Claims and other expenses paid
(RERAH A RRTER) (including investment components
and premium refunds) (1,180,048) - - - (1,180,048)

ERBEN LTS Insurance acquisition cash flows c (113,975) - - - (113,975)

NERERT Total cash flows 2,965,079 - - - 2,965,079

FHA=T-ANRRAEY Insurance contract liabilities

il as at 31 December 18,619,801 213,894 - - 18,833,695

B : Notes:

a. BAPBHINE AH a. Please refer to Note 28.1(c)(i) for a detailed breakdown
EAEAA - 152 R of initially recognised contracts.

28.1(c)) »

b. 7 5 B 1E B AR B b. The Group made an accounting policy choice to
ST HPFERTE K disaggregate insurance finance expense between profit
Hfh 4 E W ek 2 71 K or loss and other comprehensive income. The Group
SUTBERER - REH does not disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment
HEEESBRNEKA for non-financial risk between insurance service result
KBS BB ) FIRB and insurance finance expenses.

Bk 55 Al Sr R AR B W 55
S Z B ©
C. F ¥ IAE < HF C. Insurance acquisition cash flows paid after the related

& At B R ES T B I
EREBEWEBER TR

e £

group is initially recognised are adjusted to the liability
for remaining coverage.
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Estimates of Risk
the present adjustment for

value of future non-financial Fair value
cash flows risk approach
Kz BT Thn
Notes HKS'000
T-A-BERRADRR Insurance contract liabiities
asat1January 11,976,636 120171 - - 12,096,857

BARBEREALERERNEH  Changesin the consolidated
income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

SHBRSRRNTY Changes that relate to
current service
HEABNRHINDNREZ Risk adjustrment recognised for
therisk expired - (4435) - - (4,435)
2K3% Experience adjustments (26,307) - - - (26307)
(26,307) (4435) - - (30742
SRRESEXNE Changes that relate to
future service
A4 Contracts nitally recognised
inthe period 3 36,704 16,090 - - 52,794
TLBEE YRS ekttt Tz Changes in estimates that
donot adjust the CSM 155,963 14,260 - - 170223
192,667 30350 = = 23017
RRBZ LS Insurance service result 166,360 25915 - - 192275
REM% Insurance finance expenses b 1,595,112 - - - 1,595,112
GRNRERGALENERD Total changes in the consolidated
THEH income statement and
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income 1761472 25915 - - 1,781,387
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Estimates of
the present adjustment for
value of future non-financial Fair value
cash flows risk approach
T Thn
HK$'000
k3 | Cash flows
EHR% Premium received 1523810 - - - 1523810
BRBRRAMF L Claims and other expenses paid
(BERRSD RRRER) (inclucing investment components
and premium refunds) (993878) - - - (993878)
REHEN LTS Insurance acquisition cash flows ¢ (117.947) - - - (117947)
RERELH Total cash flows 411,985 - - - 411,985
FroR=t-RNRRES Insurance contract iabilities
Rl a3t 31 December 14,150,143 146,086 - - 14,296,209
B - Notes:
a. BARUBAINE LK a. Please refer to Note 28.1(c)(i) for a detailed breakdown
EAEA - 152 RN of initially recognised contracts.
28.1(c)(i) °
b. 7N £ B S 45 AR B T b. The Group made an accounting policy choice to
FSXHPHEER R R disaggregate insurance finance expense between profit
H fib 2 T W &5 2 8] /Y or loss and other comprehensive income. The Group
SUTBUER LR - NEH does not disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment
HEBESBXEKR for non-financial risk between insurance service result
KBS 1 2 2R o) TR and insurance finance expenses.
B 25 2ll: 5% B AR B& W 55
X Z B ©
c. T s #INE X AHAl c. Insurance acquisition cash flows paid after the related

fa XA B9 (R B 18 B B
EMBHEBERTR

e F 5%

group is initially recognised are adjusted to the liability
for remaining coverage.
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MERBREEYH — A (iv)  Reinsurance contracts issued — life insurance
IR

NTEIMAELEBRE The table below presents a roll-forward of the net
A YRR BERAR asset or liability for reinsurance contracts issued,
BE - B ERAKRE showing estimates of the present value of future
eRENEHMEIT - K cash flows, risk adjustment and CSM.

RN A LIRS Y as o

2024
ARALHE  FERARN
Rkt MERE  S4RSUE
Estimates Risk

of the present  adjustment for

value of future  non-financial
cash flows risk CSM Total
iy T T THT Thn
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T-A-BHRRAAAR Insurance contract liabiiies as at 1 January 86,694 954 - 87,648

BAURRRSALARERTD Changes in the consolidated income statement
and consolidated statement of comprehensive

income
SLHRSEXHNE Changes that relate to current service
SEBNREIRNR RE Risk adjustment recognised for the risk expired - (24) - (24)
2RRE Experience adjustments 64 - - 64

64 (24) - 40
SRRBEEANED Changes that relate to future service
BHREAY Contracts initally recognised in the period 18,759 1,189 - 19,948
T BRANRSRENEITED Changes in estimates that do not adjust the CSM (147) 154 - 7
18,612 1,343 - 19,955
REMRS LG Insurance service result 18,676 1319 - 19,995
REMEIH Insurance finance expenses 3 1,881 - - 1,881
CRbERRGALERER Total changes in the consolidated income statement
FHEE and consolicated statement of comprehensive
income 20,557 1319 - 21,876

EERBISEARAT —S-—maFif 391



SREMEIREME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2024
ARALRE  FERARN
RENHELT MERE  A4RSUE
Estimates Risk

of the present  adjustment for
value of future  nonfinancial

cash flows risk CSM Total
g3 T T Thr Thn
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
byt 1 Cash flows
BlR%E Premium received 94,659 - - 94,659
BRERRAMT S (BERA Claims and other expenses paid (including investment
B RRFEN) components and premium refunds) (9,174) - - (9,174)
NERERT Total cash flows 85,485 - - 85,485
FHZA=t+-ANRR Insurance contract liabilities
BURE as at 31 December 192,736 2,273 - 195,009
BHE - Note:
a. 7N & B F T B AR B W a. The Group does not disaggregate insurance

S B TR REMm
SHEWEZBSH © A
SHAITEESRR
RE X EBER T
RE AR S5 b 5 SR [
W55 H 2 B4 -
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finance expense between profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The Group does not
disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment for non-
financial risk between insurance service result and
insurance finance expenses.



T-A-BHRBAK (A7) A

Instrance contract (assets)/iabilities as at 1 January

Estimates

of the present
value of future
cash flows
BT

HKS'000

adjustment for
non-financial

HK$'000

a7
HK$000

HK$'000

GRRERRGRLARERIS

SEBRSHXNED
HERHRREAONRIEE

Changes in the consolidated income statement
and consolidated statement of comprehensive
income

Changes that relate to current service

Risk adjustment recognised for the risk expired

2083

- (1)

ZRRE Experience adjustments - - 2083
2,083 (1) - 2082

SRRBSEXHE Changes that relate to future service

AR RA Contracts initally recognised in the period 6,938 862 = 7800

ABERYRSURHEIED Changes in estimates that do not adjust the CSM 54 93 - 117

6,992 955 = 7947

RERS LG Insurance service result 9075 954 - 10,029

REMSZL Insurance finance expenses a 8,389 - - 8389

CRbERRGR L ERER Total changes in the consolidated income statement

B et and consolidated statement of comprehensive
income 17,464 954 = 18418
feHiE Cash flows

BHiRR Premium received 748 B B, 748

BREREMFS (BERR Claims and other expenses paid (including investment

B RRRER) components and premium refunds) (3,188) - - (3,189)
AERELT Totalcash flows 69230 B, B, 9230
F+ZA=T—RHRE Insurance contract liabilties

BNRfR aat 31 December 86,694 954 - 87,648

BE - Note:

a. N & B I T B AR S a. The Group does not disaggregate insurance
ST HTFREREA finance expense between profit or loss and other
SEWEZ B D o A comprehensive income. The Group does not
SHHTEESRN disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment for non-

fE Xk B R T
RBE AR 55l 57 5 R B
2532 H 2 B e

financial risk between insurance service result and
insurance finance expenses.
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() FlLFEHD (c) The components of new business
i) FSEBERREY ()  Reinsurance contracts held
ARG BV FAR The components of new business for reinsurance
BRESYER (2381 contracts held portfolios (all were reinsurance
NETWERNBRREEY) contracts purchased) included in the insurance

BT S5 E8 D T TR M

& .

unit is disclosed in the table below:

2024 2023

FET TFTT
BREGSYRF Reinsurance contracts assets HK$’'000 HK$'000

AR MAIER Estimates of the present value of

&1t future cash inflows 25,405 116,545
KR & mEIER Estimates of the present value of

&t future cash outflows (78,153) (306,454)
XU 15 Risk adjustment 1,119 19,111
& AR S WEs CSM 51,629 174,849
FEFEEBRREY Cost of retroactive cover on

B R IB B RS AR reinsurance contract assets

held - 4,051
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rERRIEE LT

AR & 7 0 T % %
REAHFLEHS T
THRBE

Insurance contracts issued

FrERRBRAN

F5RtRY
Non-onerous
contracts
TEn
HK$'000

Insurance contracts issued

The components of new business for insurance
contracts issued included in the insurance unit is
disclosed in the table below:

2024
SHiteY 2t ' 51 S
Onerous Non-onerous Onerous
contracts Total contracts contracts Total
TEn Tn TR ThI TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

KFALHL (RaE  Estimates of the present value of
REWENSHE)N  future cash outflows, excluding
HERT insurance acauisition cash flows 116,062 5,462,083 5,578,145 121423 1,584,877 1,706,300
BRINENSREMIT  Estimates ofinsurance acquisition
cash flows 257,568 301,104 558,672 664,319 21,906 692,225
FFOERLIERGEIT  Estimates of the present value of
future cash outflows 373,630 5,763,187 6,136,817 785,742 1,612,783 2,398,525
FEAEHAIENGEIT  Estimates of the present value of
future cash inflows (1,015,838) (4,371,564) (5,387,402) (1,955,040) (1,575,369) (3,530,409
FEBNRONKIEE  Riskadustment for non-financial risk 29,299 67,014 96,313 45,605 2301 67,926
2RS MR CSM 612,909 - 612,909 1123693 - 1123693
SHREAHTNHRBEIAR  Losses on onerous contracts at
58 initial recognition - 1,458,637 1,458,637 - 59,735 59,735

AR MIAFHRER °
EANSHEaNTERT
RERAFENS HEX
FREFEANARNEFE
N BAVEETZER
R H R X XA E TN
FRTEAERSRE

BT e

New contracts were issued on market terms.
Onerous contracts were accepted as the Group
did not have an opportunity to reprice them
for the relevant group of policyholders and we
believe that the market has a high development
potential for future renewals and cross selling of
additional products.
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(il FIEEBREEY (i)  Reinsurance contracts issued

2024

Shtas  SHERK 2t E=H :
Non-onerous Onerous Non-onerous Onerous

contracts contracts Total contracts contracts Total
TEn TiEn AR TAL T AT
FERRREY Insurance contracts issued HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

FREASRE (R Estimates of the present value of
REMENSHE)N  future cash outlows, excluding

HEfit insurance acquisition cash flows - 114,398 114,398 - 85,351 85,351
REWENSTEMLIT  Estimates of insurance acquisition
cash flows - = = - - _

KRS R EIERN G Estimates of the present value of

future cash outflows = 114,398 114,398 = 85,351 85,351
KFILHATEN G Estimates of the present value of

future cash inflows - (95,639) (95,639) - (718413 (18413)
FLBRBAHNKEL sk adjustment for non-financial risk - 1,189 1,189 - 862 862

SHREAHTNRBEIAR  Losses on onerous contracts at
SR initial recognition - 19,948 19,948 - 7,800 7800
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28.2 SRR S & T 4R & BRI

TR T AREFEEITARENE LR
FRERBET TREF

FEEBERREA Reinsurance contracts held
—RRARE General insurance
FERRREY Insurance contracts issued
—RRIRE General insurance

28.2 CSM recognition in profit or loss

SF1%E
Less than

1 year
TR
HK$'000

70,055

633,011

The disclosure of when the CSM is expected to be in profit or
loss in future years is presented below:

2024

1-5% 5-10% 1015 15-20% BE20% Bit
More than

1-5years  5-10years 10-15years 15-20 years 20 years Total

TR TER TER TR TER TER

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

192,682 98,955 33,690 24,529 39,363 459,274

1,734,319 775,342 89,798 18,394 28711 3,279,605

FRABRRAY Reinsurance contracts held
—RIRE General insurance
FEERRAEN Insurance contracts issued
—RIRE General insurance

S5
Less than

1year
TR
HK$'000

66,994

579,844

2023

156 5-10% 10-154 15-20F RE0E
More than
1-5years 5-10years  10-15years  15-20years 20years Total
b TAT TAL AT AT b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

197,140 123147 53,003 38,341 65,951 544,576

1,676,870 895,958 159,957 34,246 56,216 3,402,691

RERAMATOFARIAEENT
REWING YIRS KR - A AEE R
LEROBEAHTHRKRELRAR -

FPIFEE BRSNS LIRS K
BN B SAERRRE L) —
B o

The Group expects to recognise the CSM in profit or loss
for existing contracts within 60 years, which represents the
longest coverage period for the contracts in force issued by
the Group.

The expected timeline for the CSM recognition for

reinsurance contracts held is in line with insurance contracts
issued.
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29. BRTIRSBIESH 29. Debt securities issued

2024 2023

FET TET

HK$'000 HK$'000

2 I B B 7S Bl ik B9 453 S5 IE 35 Debt securities carried at amortised
cost
H H (i 25 MTN 5,799,769 11,548,631
IR AS A AR Y (R 51E 5 B8 Total debt securities carried at amortised
cost 5,799,769 11,548,631
EERFPIE H AT EFEXH  Debt securities designated as hedged
W R S5k 25 items under cash flow hedge
Hi i MTN - 2,741,419
FETE DRI A H APt Total debt securities designated as hedged
RS 58 items under cash flow hedge = 2,741,419
EEAX R A HFLLAFENF Debt securities designated as hedged
W R S5k 35 items under fair value hedge
R Hi (5 275 MTN 142,499,867 147,428,447
FEE AR E FH AN @R Total debt securities designated as hedged
RN = items under fair value hedge 142,499,867 147,428,447
B AT IS A Total debt securities issued 148,299,636 161,718,497

The movement in debt securities issued is summarised as follows:

BERITHRSIULSFNERFIBRANT

2024 2023

FH&xT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

+—H—H As at 1 January 163,787,833 134,993,402
KT Issuance 103,507,595 98,329,402
R T[] Less: redemption (117,658,640) (69,456,323)
AN SE 3, Z AT Exchange difference 256,615 (78,648)
B NN EEBER Total nominal value 149,893,403 163,787,833
RMEAEITLEER Unamortised portion of discount (169,545) (114,053)
NFE IR Fair value adjustment (1,424,222) (1,955,283)
F+=A=+—H As at 31 December 148,299,636 161,718,497
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30.

REZRITOES

Notes issued during the year comprise:

RHAfR MTN
B AT HEE Amount issued at nominal value 103,507,595 98,329,402
= WER N Consideration received 103,114,200 98,146,625

AT B R ITH R SSIE 5 B A & F T H AR
RIE - MARITRZERSIES § ERE—R
ECRERIEBRARR -

Bz %

All the debt securities issued are unsecured obligations of the
Group, and are issued for the purposes of providing general
working capital and refinancing.

30. Share capital

2024

2023
TAT
HK$'000

THxT
HK$'000

ERITRER Issued and fully paid

201288 E B 2 billion ordinary shares 26,500,000 14,500,000

AR iR an T The movement in share capital is summarised as follows:
2024 2023
THET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
F—HA—H As at 1 January 14,500,000 12,000,000
ER Capital injection 12,000,000 2,500,000
F+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 26,500,000 14,500,000
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3. 5BEXREALTITIAMHEXRR S

RN R E 2R ME R B RBFZLI
CEERERAE - FH - EHS
BREALITSARFNEARZHMN

@)

T~

SBFEXNMEEZERNZSE
ETHIE :

(i)

(ii)

REATAFERGESTAF
REGZRGMRHEOITEE RS
ERERSRNESSE RN
FABF200 0BT (ZE=_=
F 160 7BTT)

RNEH T A = 4£2,6707
BIT(ZEZ=9F:2460 7%
T)BRE  (FEANEESE
BEERIHZER :

THEETRABETINCESM
NN B3R A 1B 5 DT 80012 7
T F T -_MFE+ - A
=+t —BAHEREERT RN
HHE(ZE-=F: AEH
x)

CREET QENINCES Y
AL AR RE AFINE &
A £ =K 125127 TTAE R A
(tRPMTF_E=-—%xA
Z+NB ZB=--FXA
—+ttEBEBR-_FE-_=%FXA
Zt+EtHMBEBFEEQANER
BZBETLE NREAST AR
20012 T H0BR) - B KM
RPARNBMBESFESAEH
FONER » AN B g SR
MEBES N EEARMFIN
REVERNEBA - BHONAR
BEBFESARINEMNENR
H—EKFE: &

FToE-WMFE+ZA+RAE
SRERZTABIINCESR
RRBENR @ 120128 TTlE
RRRAR - B BN R B A A
ARIELRG R BT R - B &
AR RFF R AR B 22 B #9425
BE B — B K o

31. Material related party transactions

@)

The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries are wholly
owned by the Government for the account of the Exchange
Fund. During the year, the Group entered into or maintained
material transactions with the related parties as follows:

Transactions with the HKMA, a Government-related entity,
included the following:

(i)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

the Group paid a total fee amount of HK$2.0 million for
the year (2023: HK$1.6 million) to the HKMA in respect
of custodian and clearing agent services from the
Central Moneymarkets Unit;

the Group incurred a secondment fee of HK$26.7
million for the year (2023: HK$24.6 million) in respect of
secondees from the HKMA;

the Monetary Authority through the Exchange Fund
provided a revolving credit facility of HK$80 billion to
the Company, and there was no outstanding balance
and accrued interest as at 31 December 2024 (2023 nil
for both);

the Monetary Authority through the Exchange Fund
maintained its commitment to inject additional funds
up to HK$12.5 billion in aggregate (reduced from
the original amount of HK$20 billion after taking into
account the HK$2.5 billion capital injection each into
the HKMCA on 28 June 2021, 27 June 2022 and 27 June
2023 respectively) into the Company as equity for the
sole purpose of financing the Company’s additional
capital injection into the HKMCA and the Company
maintained its commitment to inject such additional
funds into the HKMCA as equity for the sole purpose of
maintaining the HKMCA’s margin of solvency above a
certain level; and

the Monetary Authority through the Exchange Fund
injected HK$12.0 billion capital into the Company on
16 December 2024, as equity for the sole purpose
of financing the Company’s capital injection into the
HKMCI as equity for the sole purpose of maintaining
the HKMCI's margin of solvency above a certain level.
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SRR S8/ TS :

0]

(iif)

RIFRES 2 Al iR 4R AR ~ JUBK
RAD A RN RBRITR
THRFIER - ABFRER
5 142,9001Z 78 Ty Bz pr iR
REBEN(BIEARLQBFA N
EREEERITY TRENE D
BRI AER) - 1EEILH
A3 FTE»BEFR/PERERE
RITKBW A EZESE - BUT
M IZIE R A 8 12 1.66012
BIL(ZE-=F 1616125
Jo)  tERRIERIE AR AFEE
BITEIT X

KRB SBMFITZ B &
It AR B4R AEGE M RN
AR BRITRI T BB R EE
HEEE » AR BR
TR - ARFE SR
IEREABES TR - 1F15
DLFFSE 19

RNABEBMITZHI B
It RRARERFERBERED B
R BT E TR T B 53 3
MEBWEE S BERARRE
DT &I TR BT - AR E S
RIERES A AIE 2 B4R - X
T Y 548 (R R 2R 9112 5
7T FEAKE19 FTEEE
ERE - BUT RIRIE{REE A &)
IMEAOF BT (ZE=_=F:
10FBTT)  ERRIERE A
RIAFENTRITY

Transactions with the Government included the following:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

the HKMCI provided 80%, 90% and 100% SFGS loan
guarantees with a total guarantee commitment up
to HK$290 billion reimbursable by the Government
(including guarantees on 100% SFGS loans acquired
by the Company), see Note 33 for details. With respect
to the day-to-day operation of the 100% SFGS, the
Government reimbursed HK$166.0 million (2023:
HK$161.6 million) to the HKMCI for the administrative
expenses incurred by the HKMCI for the year;

the Company entered into an agreement with the
Government, pursuant to which the Company
maintained its commitment to purchase from SFGS
lenders all 100% SFGS loans that are fully guaranteed
by the Government via the HKMCI, see Note 19 for
details;

the Company entered into an agreement with the
Government, pursuant to which the Company
maintained its commitment to purchase from DLGS
lenders all DLGS loans that are fully guaranteed by
the Government via the HKMCI with a total guarantee
commitment up to HK$9.1 billion reimbursable by the
Government, see Note 19 for details. With respect to
the day-to-day operation, the Government reimbursed
HK$0.4 million (2023: HK$0.1 million) to the HKMCI for
the administrative expenses incurred by the HKMCI for
the year;
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(iv) ARQERZIERRE QR SKEAF
ZATHE @ REBEDE - AQF]
EIE A2 5N AFREFITL)
RN AT WA SEFTAE BE R - T
BN RAA R L 3R &
LADE SR Er A A AR R BT KT &
B BT IR o FRUER & 2 &) 0 47 3%
EIEREEN ABFRERERKIT
X o % F MEAT U R B F 163
AN AR R BT ) BT 5k A0 FA
FoEMNRERBOREERF
ANINATHLAG - R &1 7 1.89312
BIL(ZBZ=1F : 1.476127%
JT) ° W RILRR A RIE IR
BREZEENN ABFRRERIT L
MEEA - 2HRN9007 BT
—E-_=F:900F8T)°
NAERBFIT R BT £/
MBS R B3R R BT A &

vy, FZFE-_mE+=ZA=+-—
S VNN DN § 7N R /NG E =
B129781Z BT (ZE =5 :
9.4N1ZETT) B AR HR%H
fEf&® - AR S N34707 B
T(ZE-=ZF: 2107 B
JL) °

RARTAFEEAREHME LR R
A ERS  AXREREATEE
BTE ° 3t2 SIRIERR N B EE R
Ul B BTSRRI - AARIE
FZBEFANAER Z AR LR A E]
AR BREBIERRARZERTHE
BB RITHTH LS - i3 5F
BE TR A R I SRR IR B A
REEESERFERREFEA - RAF
EMIZREAIESINHERREREA
ERE S AR DR ARHER - AR
RFEEHIPNER

the Company and the HKMCI entered into an
agreement with the Government, pursuant to which
the Company committed to purchase all loans under
the PLGS from the participating Authorized Institutions
(Als) and the Government provided full funding to the
Company for the purchase of all PLGS loans. The HKMCI
is responsible for the operation and administration
of the PLGS. With respect to the advance payment
received from the Government to purchase loans
under the PLGS, a portion of such advance funding
was deposited with Als with an outstanding balance
of HK$189.3 million (2023: HK$147.6 million). The
HKMCI was appointed by the Government to act as the
administrator for the PLGS for a fee of HK$9.0 million
(2023: HK$9.0 million) for the year. Risks and rewards
arising from the PLGS loans rest with the Government;
and

the Company and the HKMCI held investment of
HK$1,297.8 million (2023: HK$949.1 million) in the Hong
Kong Government Bonds as at 31 December 2024
and the interest thereon was HK$34.7 million (2023:
HK$21.1 million).

The Company provided corporate support services to its
subsidiaries during the year for fees on an arm'’s length basis.
The Company had issued a parental guarantee in favour of
the participating lenders for the HKMCI's due performance
of its obligations under the insurance programmes and
schemes operated by the HKMCI. The Company had issued
a parental guarantee in favour of ceding partner insurers and
policyholders under the respective reinsurance agreements
or policies of the HKMCA to facilitate the development of the
local annuities market.
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NATHERERIEATHERET Balances of amounts due to relevant related parties are as
follows:

SMLES B
The Exchange Fund The Government

2024 2023 2024 2023
T FHT Ti#gx THEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ISCES TR (FHE22) Placements with the Exchange Fund

(Note 22) 49,244,684 34,070,393 - =
Hb 5 (FfE27 %33)  Other liabilities (Notes 27 and 33) - - 894,445 1,901,803
(b) XFEEEEAR (b) Key management personnel
FEBERARNEEREERNT Key management personnel are those persons having
RHRER -~ #81E MR G ARERF S authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
MAL BEESERSREEAA - controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,

including directors and senior officers.

FN - FEZEBEEARINFMELE Compensation of the key management personnel for the
year comprised:

e MEME AR R EF Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits 29,658 28,812
B fEEF Post-employment benefits 2,573 2,537

32,231 31,349
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32.

33.

738 32. Commitments
(d) &F (a) Capital
2024 2023
TH T FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt AERITS Authorised and contracted for 29,394 44,362
PR EARFIBEESWHEENIRE The above capital commitments mainly relate to
REFK - commitments to purchase computer equipment and
software.
(b) EHfthakig (b) Other commitments
2024 2023
THERT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RIE AT PRI AR Undrawn loan commitments 476,663 1,013,479
R EEERITXTAER 33. Special concessionary measures under the SME

/e f5 e

RNEFAFI AR/ N EE BRI T
J\BR R LA HEAR AR BE O B SRR AR 7= SR R it
HEMNBRZRE  URAGDER DD
BUR BRI RIFTEVS M BT R - BT IR
BIEFIRRANSIE 2,900128 7T °
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Financing Guarantee Scheme

The Group provided loan guarantee products with 80% and 90%
guarantee coverage under the existing SFGS at a concessionary
guarantee fee rate, together with guarantee for 100% SFGS loans
acquired for a total guarantee commitment up to HK$290 billion
reimbursable by the Government.

Regarding the 80% and 90% guarantee products, all guarantee
fees collected under the special loan guarantee products are set
aside to meet the relevant default claims and related out-of-pocket
expenses. The remaining balance of the guarantee fees, if any, will
be returned to, and any shortfall will be borne by, the Government.
The Group is responsible for the operation of the product and
the applicable day-to-day operating costs. There is no impact on
the consolidated income statement of the Group in respect of
guarantee fee revenue and default claims. Given that the Group
operates only these products for the Government, the Group
considers the risk and rewards associated with this product rest
with the Government. Hence, the risk-in-force for these products
has not been included as the Group'’s off-balance sheet exposures.

For the 100% SFGS, please refer to Note 19 for more details.
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34. BE5REGES ARSI 34. Involvement with unconsolidated structured

entities
AERABEEREGE AKERFE N mEH The Group acts as a sponsor and collateral manager to structured
EHRMREARKAREEA o FERER entities that the Group does not consolidate but in which it holds
LEMSEURE A R MR an interest. The following table describes the type and nature of

the structured entities:

2024 2023
ZEHMEHER HRRE# AERA AN G TET THT
Type of structured entities  Nature and purpose Interest held by the Group HK$'000 HK$'000
BEEBFEHE AR TEBRXREERTUIANTE BRZAAATHER 640,826 329,703
Securitisation vehicle for To develop an infrastructure Investment in notes issued by
infrastructure loans financing securitisation the vehicle
platform in Hong Kong REATTR 23,304 19,809

Sponsor loan

R B A Interest income 33,286 15,268
REFEATI T B UA Interest income on sponsor loan 2,008 870
IR E TR Collateral management fee 7,043 1,092
S NSRS ANz oL N The maximum exposure to loss is the carrying amount of the
il o investment in the structured entity.
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SREMEIREME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35. ?ﬁﬁ%ﬂt%ﬁ;ﬂi&ﬁ#ﬁﬁ 35. Statement of financial position and reserve

)| movement of the Company
BANEFEAXFNTFTF-_E_NWE+_A 35.1 Statement of financial position of the Company as at
=+—HHUSKRAE 31 December 2024
2024 2023
BT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
"= ASSETS
NekERE Cash and short-term funds 46,314,950 46,876,199
R B KLk Interest and remittance receivables 3,161,265 3,322,402
TESRIE Derivative financial instruments 664,618 828,542
B R E 5 BIERE SR Loans with 100% guarantee from the
Government 82,782,698 97,362,356
AR B Loan portfolio, net 9,307,080 9,337,433
EHER Investment securities:
— UAFEZEITA — at fair value through other
Hin4EaE comprehensive income 3,721,821 2,509,537
— AATHERE I AR — at fair value through profit or
l0ss 9,774 9,870
— R AT MK — at amortised cost 13,337,065 12,176,127
UIIEENGIE S Interests in subsidiaries 32,981,543 21,089,334
TR ~ 2 RE AR = Prepayments, deposits and other
assets 331,170 1,552,692
B ERR IR 7= Deferred tax assets 4,681 17
Bl Fixed assets 229,443 256,030
B RBE Total assets 192,846,108 195,320,539
R LIABILITIES
R H) & Interest payable 3,343,451 3,684,484
L ENGIEEE N Placements by subsidiary 561,000 50,000
RATIRIR ~ RS2 K Accounts payable, accrued expenses
Hfth 51 and other liabilities 3,356,023 3,683,136
TESBMTA Derivative financial instruments 1,740,649 2,825,522
LRI (R Current tax liabilities 165,598 98,666
BRITHREIE S Debt securities issued 148,299,636 161,718,497
HUR BB Total liabilities 157,466,357 172,060,305
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2024 2023

TERT FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
& EQUITY
NEFEANSRARES Capital and reserves attributable
to the equity holder:
AR Share capital 26,500,000 14,500,000
REBEA Retained profits 35.2 8,857,536 8,733,357
NERR Fair value reserve 35.2 23,518 8,158
PPt e Hedging reserve 35.2 (1,303) 18,719
R BE Total equity 35,379,751 23,260,234
AEENEEH Total liabilities and equity 192,846,108 195,320,539
EERET-E-AFHAA=+/"H Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
HOE RN FIAT on 26 May 2025.
RIEX YUE Wai Man, Eddie #1535 POU Hak Wan
BlEEFEMTESE  Deputy Chairman and MITEEF LS Executive Director and
Executive Director Chief Executive Officer
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SREMEIREME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35.2 XL FMEE 35.2 Reserves of the Company

REBF ALEHES X & B#
Retained  Fair value Hedging

profits reserve reserve Total
THT THT THT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

—F-=%-F—HA%% Balanceasat 1January 2023 8,734,079 (1,017) 138966 8872028
TEESH Loss for the year (722) - - 722
Hivem(SH),/ e Other comprehensive (loss)/income
DAFETHITAEMEE  Change inthe fair value of debt securities

WRZHRSIESATFERS  atFvoCl - 8,698 - 8,698

DATETHITARMAE  Change in the loss allowance of debt
WHNBRFILHTIRK & securities at FVOCI

&) = 477 - 477
WIS RN X LA Change in the fair value of hedging

NFETE) instruments at cash flow hedge - - (120,247) (120,247)
AEE4E(SH) /W54 Total comprehensive (loss)/income for

the year (722) 9.175 (120,247) (111,794)

F-ZE=-=%+=-H=+—H Balance as at 31 December 2023

LS 8,733,357 8,158 18,719 8,760,234
AEE R Profit for the year 124,179 - = 124,179
Hipemks/ (S1) Other comprehensive income/(10ss)
MAFETHITAEMEE  Change in the fair value of

WHMRETAHATFETS  debt securities at FVOC - 15,213 - 15,213

WARETHITAEMEE  Change in the loss allowance of
MBS SIREE debt securities at FVOCI

) - 147 - 147
A& R e T A Change in the fair value of hedging
NEEED instruments at cash flow hedge - - (20,022) (20,022)

AEELEUE/(SH)E5 Total comprehensive income/(oss)
for the year 124,179 15,360 (20,022) 119,517

F-Z2-mF+=A=+—H Balance as at 31 December 2024
ES 8,857,536 23,518 (1,303) 8,879,751
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36. EETXH RHMSHHE  36.

37.

38.

EXHEXR
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37.

38.

Directors” material interests in transactions,
arrangements and contracts

Apart from those disclosed in Note 31, there was no other
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to
the Company’s business, to which any member of the Group was
a party, and in which any person who was a Director at any time
during the year or a connected entity (as defined in the Companies
Ordinance) of any such person had, directly or indirectly, a material
interest, which subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Events after balance sheet date

On 24 February 2025, the Monetary Authority through the
Exchange Fund injected capital of HK$5 billion into the Company
as equity for the sole purpose of financing the Company’s
additional capital injection into the HKMCA for the sole purpose of
maintaining the HKMCA's margin of solvency above a certain level.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors
on 26 May 2025.
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